-

PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE
Wednesday, 2nd September, 2020

10.00 am

Online

~

| Kent

County
Council

kent.gov.uk







AGENDA

PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE

Wednesday, 2nd September, 2020, at 10.00  Ask for: Andrew Tait
am
Online Telephone: 03000 416749

Membership (13)

Conservative (10): Mr R AMarsh  (Chairman), Mr R A Pascoe (Vice-Chairman),
Mr M A C Balfour, Mrs R Binks, Mr A Booth, Mr A HT Bowles,
Mr P C Cooper, Mr H Rayner, Mr C Simkins and Mr J Wright

Liberal Democrat (1): Mr | S Chittenden

Labour (1) Mr J Burden

Independents (1) Mr P M Harman

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS
(During these items the meeting is likely to be open to the public

A. COMMITTEE BUSINESS

1. Substitutes

2 Declarations of Interests by Members in items on the Agenda for this meeting.
3 Minutes - 15 July (Pages 1 - 6)

4.  Site Meetings and Other Meetings
B

. GENERAL MATTERS

1. General Matters

C. MINERALS AND WASTE DISPOSAL APPLICATIONS

D. DEVELOPMENTS TO BE CARRIED OUT BY THE COUNTY COUNCIL




1. Proposal TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019) -Construction of a new railway station
consisting of two platforms connected via an existing underpass (to be refurbished)
with stair and lift access and associated infrastructure including vehicle and cycle
parking, public announcement system, drainage, security and lighting, landscaping,
level crossing upgrade works, and vehicle, pedestrian and cycle access including
the creation of a vehicle access onto the A299 Hengist Way with associated
highway works and a footway/cycle link to Clive Road at Land to the north and
south of the A299 (Hengist Way) and to the east of the A256 (Richborough Way)
including an existing railway line and part of the A299, Cliffsend (Thanet Parkway
Station); KCC Growth, Environment and Transport (Pages 7 - 70)

E. MATTERS DEALT WITH UNDER DELEGATED POWERS

1. County matter applications (Pages 71 - 80)
2.  County Council developments

3.  Screening opinions under Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact
Assessment) Regulations 2017

4.  Scoping opinions under Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact
Assessment) Regulations 2017

5.  Urgent Matter Proposals agreed pursuant to the Urgent Matter Procedure

F. KCC RESPONSE TO CONSULTATIONS

1. Written Statement to the Examination of the Folkestone and Hythe District Council
Core Strategy Review (Pages 81 - 86)

2.  Application SW/18/502/EIHYB - Housing Proposal at Land North Quinton Road,
Sittingbourne (Pages 87 - 92)

G. OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE URGENT

EXEMPT ITEMS

(At the time of preparing the agenda there were no exempt items. During any such items
which may arise the meeting is likely NOT to be open to the public)

Benjamin Watts
General Counsel
03000 416814

Monday, 24 August 2020

(Please note that the background documents referred to in the accompanying papers may
be inspected by arrangement with the Departments responsible for preparing the report.)



Agenda Item A3

KENT COUNTY COUNCIL

PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE

MINUTES of a meeting of the Planning Applications Committee held in the Online on
Wednesday, 15 July 2020.

PRESENT: Mr R A Marsh  (Chairman), Mr R A Pascoe  (Vice-Chairman),
Mr M A C Balfour, Mrs R Binks, Mr A Booth, MrAHT Bowles, Mr JBurden,
Mr | S Chittenden, Mr P C Cooper, Mr P M Harman, Mr H Rayner, Mr C Simkins and
Mr J Wright

ALSO PRESENT: Mr R H Bird, Mr J Clinch and Mr D S Daley

IN ATTENDANCE: Mrs S Thompson (Head of Planning Applications Group),
Mr J Wooldridge (Principal Planning Officer - Mineral Developments), Mr P Hopkins
(Principal Planning Officer), Mr D Joyner (Transport & Development Manager),
Mr A Millard (Senior Development Planner), Mr T Harris (Development Planner) and
Mr A Tait (Democratic Services Officer)

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS

29. Minutes - 10 June 2020
(Item A3)

RESOLVED that the Minutes of the meeting held on 10 June 2020 are correctly
recorded and that they be signed by the Chairman.

30. Application TM/20/62 (KCC/TM/0284/2019) - Development of a Household
Waste Recycling Centre (HWRC), new access to a highway, associated
infrastructure and earthworks at Allington Integrated Waste Management
Facility, Laverstock Road, Allington, Maidstone; FCC Environment (UK) Ltd
(Item C1)

(1) The Head of Planning Applications Group referred to a petition signed by 174
local residents in opposition to the application. This supplemented the 376
signatories who had signed the online petition referred to in paragraph 69 of the
report.

(2) Mr R H Bird was present for this item as the Local Member and spoke. He
informed the Committee that his contribution had been jointly agreed with his fellow
Ward Member, Mr D S Daley.

(3) The Clerk to the meeting read out representations from Mr Neil Hammond (a
local resident) and the response on behalf of the applicants from Mr David Molland
(FCC Environment (UK) Ltd).

(4) On being put to the vote, the recommendation of the Head of Planning
Applications Group were unanimously agreed.

Page 1



(5)

RESOLVED that:-

(@)

permission be granted to the application subject to conditions, including
conditions covering covering the implementation of the permission within 3
years; the submission for approval of a Construction Management Plan
covering the routing of construction and delivery vehicles to / from
site, parking and turning areas for construction and delivery vehicles
and site personnel, timing of deliveries, provision of wheel washing
facilities and temporary traffic management / signage); highway
condition surveys being undertaken before and after construction.
with the repair of any damage caused by vehicles related to the
development being funded by the applicants; the provision of
construction vehicle loading / unloading and turning facilities, parking
facilities for site personnel and visitors and wheel washing facilities
prior to commencement of work on site and for the duration of
construction; the provision of measures to prevent the discharge of
surface water onto the highway; the provision and permanent retention
of the vehicle parking spaces and / or garages, the vehicle
loading/unloading and turning facilities and the cycle parking facilities
shown on the submitted plans prior to the use of the site commencing;
use of a bound surface for the first 5 metres of the access from the
edge of the highway; completion and maintenance of the access
shown on the submitted plans prior to the use of the site commencing;
the provision and maintenance of 2.4 metre by 43 metre visibility
splays at the access, with no obstructions over 0.6 metres above
carriageway level within the splays, prior to use of the site commencing;
implementation of the proposed measures to avoid queuing at
the Allington IWMF on Laverstoke Road (with provision for annual
reviews and amended measures being agreed with KCC as necessary);
hours of use (i.e. to allow the HWRC to be open to the public) being
between 0700 and 2000 hours on weekdays, weekends and on Bank
Holidays (but closed on Christmas Day, Boxing Day and New Year’s
Day) with site maintenance / cleaning and other operational activities
being allowed during the 30 minutes before the site opens and 30
minutes after the site has closed to the public; the submission for
approval of a Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP);
Enabling and Construction works only taking place between 0700
and 1800 on weekdays and Saturdays unless otherwise approved
in the CEMP; the submission for approval of an operational Dust
Management Plan (DMP); the submission for approval of a site Odour
Management Plan (OMP); no occupation of any part of the development
taking place until a verification report demonstrating the completion of
works set out in the approved remediation strategy and the
effectiveness of the remediation has been submitted to and approved in
writing by KCC; development works ceasing if contamination not
previously identified is found to be present at the site until a further
remediation strategy has been submitted to and approved in writing by
KCC; no piling or any other foundation designs using penetrative
methods taking place unless approved in writing by KCC; the
implementation of a detailed planting plan; tree protection measures; the
removal of permitted development rights; avoidance of tree removal
during the bird nesting season; all planting, seeding or turfing being

Page 2



carried out in the first available planting and seeding season
following the occupation of the site or the completion of the
development (whichever is the sooner); an aftercare period of no less
than five years; the use of a dark coloured roofing material; a detailed
lighting scheme; details of foul and surface water sewerage disposal;
the submission for approval of a detailed sustainable surface water
drainage scheme and a verification report; the implementation of
ecological compensation measures (an Ecological Design Strategy);
and post-development management for the ecological features (a
Landscape and Ecological Management Plan); and

(b) the applicants be advised by Informative:-

0] that they need to ensure that all necessary highway
approvals and consents are obtained;

(i)  that if piling is proposed, a Piling Risk Assessment must be
submitted to the Environment Agency in accordance with
the Environment Agency guidance document Piling and
Penetrative Ground Improvement Methods on Land Affected by
Contamination: Guidance on Pollution Prevention. National
Groundwater & Contaminated Land Centre report NC/99/73;

(i)  of the need for a Trade Effluent discharge licence and for an
application to be made to Southern Water to connect to the
public foul and surface water sewer; and

(iv) of their obligations under the Wildlife and Countryside Act
1981 in respect of nesting birds.

31. Proposal SW//20/501709 (KCC/SW/0079/2020) - New two-storey teaching
block of 8 classrooms with associated facilities, a new nursery block and
reception external play space; and ancillary parking at Sunny Bank Primary
School, Sunny Bank, Murston, Sittingbourne; KCC Children, Young People and
Education
(Item D1)

(1) The Head of Planning Applications Group informed the Committee of late
representations from a local resident raising questions about the application,
including why the car park was to be fenced off, whether the additional spaces could
be accommodated, traffic and parking concerns, loss of trees and flooding. The
correspondence proposed that an eco-friendly approach should involve the
construction of a purpose-built school.

(2)  Mr JClinch was present for this item as the Local Member and spoke.

(3) The Clerk to the meeting read out representations from Mr James Hall (the
Local Borough Councillor) and the response on behalf of the applicants from Mr Ben
Sherreard (KCC Infrastructure).

(4) In response to the representations made by Mr Clinch and Mr Hall, the Head
of Planning Applications Group confirmed that there had been no change to the

Page 3



original planning application and that the Land Registry title deeds showed that the
land in question was held for Education purposes. She confirmed that it was not
held by KCC as highway land.

(5)

On being put to the vote, the recommendation of the Head of Planning

Applications Group were unanimously agreed.

(6)
(@)

RESOLVED that:-

permission be granted to the proposal subject to conditions, including
conditions covering commencement of the development within three years of
planning permission being granted; the development being carried out in
accordance with the permitted details; no phase of the development beginning
until a detailed sustainable surface water drainage scheme for the site has
been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority; the
submission for approval in writing by the County Planning Authority of a Construction
Management Plan prior to commencement of the development, and its
implementation for the duration of construction; the provision and permanent
retention of cycle parking facilities and vehicle parking spaces as shown on
the submitted plans, including the Electrical Vehicle (EV) charging points prior
to the use of the site commencing; the provision of the access details shown
on the submitted plans prior to occupation of the development; gates being
hung to open away from the highway; the submission for approval of a School
Travel Plan prior to occupation of the development. This Travel Plan
remaining in force for the duration of the approved use, with an annual review
taking place for a minimum of 5 years; the submission for approval by the County
Planning Authority of details of measures showing how the development will
enhance biodiversity within 6 months of the development commencing; no
development commencing until a remediation strategy to deal with the
risks associated with contamination has been submitted to, and approved in
writing by, the County Planning Authority; a verification report being
submitted for approval in writing by the County Planning Authority,
demonstrating the completion of works set out in the approved remediation
strategy and the effectiveness of the remediation; if, during development,
contamination not previously identified is found to be present at the site then
no further development (unless otherwise agreed in writing with the local
planning authority) shall be carried out until a remediation strategy detailing
how this contamination will be dealt with has been submitted to, and
approved in writing by, the local planning authority; no drainage systems for
the infiltration of surface water to the ground being permitted other than with
the written consent of the County Planning Authority; no piling using
penetrative methods being carried out other than with the written consent of
the County Planning Authority; The submission for approval by the County
Planning Authority of a detailed planting plan prior to commencement of
development. This scheme is to include species to encourage bee pollination,
and the provision for trees within areas of hardstanding should include details
of appropriate underground infrastructure to ensure that they thrive in the long
term; the replacement of any trees lost as a result of the proposals being with
those of a similar size and appropriate species. Any trees or plants which die,
are removed or become seriously damaged / diseased within a period of five
years from the completion of the development are to be replaced in the next
planting season with others of similar size and species unless the County

Page 4



(b)

Planning Authority gives written consent to any variation; the submission for
approval by the County Planning Authority of a tree constraints plan in accordance
with BS5837 2012: Trees in Relation to Design, Demolition and Construction
before construction work begins on site in order to inform any design work;
details of any trenches or services in the fenced-off Root Protection Areas
requiring the prior consent of the Planning Authority, with all trenches being
dug and backfilled by hand, and any tree roots encountered with a diameter of
25mm or more being left unsevered; any tree / shrub / hedge removals
proposed as part of this scheme being carried out outside of the bird nesting
season (1st February to 31st August inclusive); and all planting, seeding or
turfing comprised in the approved details of landscaping being carried out in
the first planting and seeding season following the occupation of the site or the
completion of the development, whichever is the sooner; and

the applicants be advised by Informative that:-

0] it is their responsibility to ensure that before the development is
commenced, all necessary highway approvals and consents are
obtained and that the limits of the highway boundary are clearly
established in order to avoid any enforcement action being taken by the
Highway Authority; and

(i) it is an offence under section of the Wildlife and Countryside Act
1981 (as amended) to remove, damage or destroy the nest of any
wild bird while that nest is in use or being built. Planning consent for a
development does not provide a defence against prosecution under
this Act. Trees and scrub are present on the application site and are
assumed to contain nesting birds between 1st March and 31st August,
unless a recent survey has been undertaken by a competent ecologist
and has shown that nesting birds are not present.

32. Matters dealt with under delegated powers
(Item E1)

RESOLVED to note matters dealt with under delegated powers since the last
meeting relating to:-

(@)  County matter applications;
(b) County Council developments;

(©) Screening Opinions under the Town and Country Planning
(Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017; and

(d)  Scoping Opinions under the Town and Country Planning
(Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017 (None).

33. KCCresponse to consultations
(Item E4)

There were no items under this heading.

Page 5



Page 6



Agenda Item D1

SECTION D
DEVELOPMENT TO BE CARRIED OUT BY THE COUNTY COUNCIL

Background Documents: the deposited documents; views and representations received as
referred to in the reports and included in the development proposals dossier for each case;
and other documents as might be additionally indicated.

Item D1
Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and
associated access, car parking and infrastructure, at

Cliffsend, Thanet - TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019)
|

A report by Head of Planning Applications Group to Planning Applications Committee on 2
September 2020.

Application by Kent County Council (Transport Strategy Team) for the construction of a
new rail station (Thanet Parkway) consisting of two platforms connected via an existing
underpass (to be refurbished), with stair and lift access, and associated infrastructure
including vehicle and cycle parking, public announcement system, drainage, security and
lighting, landscaping, level crossing upgrade works, and vehicle, pedestrian and cycle
access including the creation of a vehicular access onto the A299 Hengist Way, with
associated highway works, and a footway/cycleway link to Clive Road at Cliffsend, Thanet
— TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019)

Recommendation: subject to compliance with the agreed Memoranda of Understanding
PLANNING PERMISSION BE GRANTED SUBJECT TO and conditions.

Local Members: Ms Karen Constantine, Mr Paul Messenger,

Ms Emma Dawson, and Ms Liz Hurst Classification: Unrestricted
Application Site and Surroundings

1. The 9.27ha triangular shaped application site is located to the north western edge of the
village of Cliffsend, approximately two miles west of the town of Ramsgate, on the
southern edge of the Thanet Pensinsula. The wider surrounding area of the application
site is mostly rural, with large scale open arable fields and small villages, with the urban
area of Thanet (Broadstairs, Ramsgate and Margate) located to the east of the
peninsula. The application site is largely flat agricultural land, with an elevated tree lined
railway embankment running along the southern site boundary from the south west to
the north east. The A299 Hengist Way lies to the north of the application site, and runs
under the railway line by means of an underpass in the north east corner of the
application site. Agricultural fields lie beyond the A299 Hengist Way, with Canterbury
Road West to the north, beyond which lies Manston Airport (approximately 0.6 miles to
the north of the site).

2. The village of Cliffsend is split by the existing railway line. The main route through the
centre of the village (Foads Hill/Foads Lane) which runs north to south, crosses the
railway line at the Cliffsend level crossing, to the north east corner of the application site.
The village of Cliffsend lies predominately to the south east of the application site, with
the northern section of the village to the north east of the site. The nearest residential
properties lie immediately to the south east of the application site and include properties
in Earlsmead Crescent, Old Hall Drive and Beech Grove. Properties in Foads Lane and
Clive Road lie to the north east. Beyond an agricultural field to the south of the site,
Cottington Road runs east to west, from which access is gained to a small number of
residential properties in Lavender Lane, and St Augustine’s Golf Club. Beyond the

Page 7 D1.1



Item D1
Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet -
TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019)

western site boundary lies further open and flat agricultural land before meeting the
A256 Richborough Way.

3. To facilitate access, the application site includes a section of the A299 Hengist Way, a
footway link to Clive Road to the north, a link to Cottington Lane to the south west. The
Cliffsend and Sevenscore Level Crossings are also included within the application site
as upgrade works are proposed as part of the Thanet Parkway development.

4. Public Right of Way (TR32) runs from Cottington Road to the south, along the edge of
the railway embankment, under the railway line via an underpass which is located to the
rear of properties in Earlsmead Crescent, then follows the railway line to the east before
crossing the A299 Hengist Way and extending to the north.

5. The application site is not within a Conservation Area and nor are there any Listed
Buildings within or immediately adjacent to the site boundaries. However, St Augustine’s
Cross, a Scheduled Ancient Monument which is Grade |l Listed, is located to the south
of Cottington Road, approximately 90 metres to the south of the application site. Five
other Listed Buildings are located within a kilometre of the site but physically separated
from it by existing built development.

6. A total of six designated sites for nature conservation are located within a 2 kilometre
radius of the application site, all to the south/south east of the site:

- Thanet Coast Special Area of Conservation (SCA);

- Sandwich Bay Special Area of Conservation (SCA);

- Thanet Coast and Sandwich Bay Special Protection Area (SPA);

- Thanet Coast and Sandwich Bay Ramsar Site;

- Sandwich Bay to Hacklinge Marches Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI); and
- Sandwich Bay and Pegwell Bay National Nature Reserve (NNR)

7. Recent planning permissions have been granted by Thanet District Council for housing
developments in the local area. The most notable and relevant to the application site
and its immediate surroundings are as follows:

- Application reference OL/TH/17/0151 (Land north of Cottington Road and east of
Lavender Lane) — Outline application for the erection of up to 41 dwellings including
access (N.B. Construction underway);

- Application reference OL/TH/17/0150 (Land adjacent to Oakland Court to the south
of Cottington Road) — Outline application for the erection of up to 23 dwellings
including access (N.B. Construction underway); and

- Application reference OL/TH/17/0152 Land east of 40 Canterbury Road West —
Outline application for the erection of up to 62 dwellings including access;

Other development proposals in the area, such as Manston Green (OL/TH/14/0050 -
785 dwellings), have been assessed by the applicant in the application documents,
although they are not in the immediate vicinity of the application site.

8. In addition to the above, a Development Consent Order (DCO) application was
submitted by ‘RiverOak Strategic Partners Limited’ to re-open Manston Airport as a
freight airport. The application was submitted to the Planning Inspectorate on the 9 April
2018 and subsequently approved by the Secretary of State for Transport (SoS) in July
this year. The (DCO) has granted permission for the development of Manston Airport
into a dedicated air freight facility able to handle at least 10,000 air cargo movements

Page 8 D1.2



Iltem D1

Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet -
TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019)

10.

11.

per year, whilst also offering passenger, executive travel, and aircraft engineering
services. In making his decision, the SoS considered that there was a clear case of
need for the proposed development and that significant economic and socio-economic
benefits would flow from the development. Both of these factors were given substantial
weight in the decision making process, and balanced against other material planning
considerations.

As outlined above, the application site is currently agricultural land. In terms of its
Agricultural Land Classification the land is considered best and most versatile and,
reflecting this classification, the application site is also designated within Natural
England’s Character Area (NCA) 113: North Kent Plain and described as a ‘very
productive agricultural area with predominately high quality soils characterised by arable
use’.

The application site is located within the Wantsum North Slopes Landscape Character
Area, a Groundwater Source Protection Zone and partly within (the A299 Hengist Way)
Thanet’s Urban Air Quality Management Area (AQMA).

This planning application was received prior to the recent adoption of the new Thanet
District Council - Local Plan to 2031, the development plan prepared by the District
Council. The initial processing of the application was therefore considered against the
previous Thanet Local Plan 2006. The Thanet Local Plan 2006 Policy Map showed that
the application site was outside of the defined boundary of the urban and village
confines and was therefore defined within the Thanet Local Plan 2006 under saved
Policy CC1 as countryside. The application was therefore advertised as a departure
from the Development Plan, as that was the case when the application was submitted.
However, at a meeting of the District Council on the 9 July 2020, Thanet District Council
adopted the Thanet Local Plan to 2031 meaning that the Thanet Local Plan 2006 is no
longer relevant to the determination of this application. Policy SP46 of the newly
adopted Local Plan (see paragraph 47 of this report for more detail) safeguards the
application site for a new railway station. Further land in the vicinity of the application
site is also allocated for housing development.

Environmental Impact Assessment

12.

This application is accompanied by an Environmental Statement (ES) in accordance
with the Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations
2017. The ES considers and environmental effects of the proposed development
through both construction and operational phases, and sets out the proposed mitigation
measures necessary to prevent, reduce or offset any significant adverse effects on the
environment. The ES was accompanied by a non-technical summary, and appendices
(figures) which contain detailed survey work regarding a range of matters including
landscape, ecology, noise and air quality. An addendum to the ES was submitted on the
9 June 2020. The application has been advertised in accordance with the requirements
of the above Regulations.

Background/Case of Need

13.

Although paragraph 47 of this report will set out the relevant Planning Policies to take
into account in the determination of this application, it is important to set out the
background and strategic transport policy support for the provision of a new station in
Thanet, specifically Thanet Parkway.

Page 9 D1.3



Iltem D1

Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet -
TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019)

14. The applicant advises that improving rail access to East Kent has been a priority for Kent

15.

16.

17.

18.

County Council (KCC) since 2010 when it was first identified in Growth without Gridlock:
A transport delivery plan for Kent and the Local Transport Plan for Kent (2011-2016). It
remains a priority in KCC’s latest Local Transport Plan 4; Delivering Growth without
Gridlock (2016-2031) (LTP4) published in July 2017,

Strategic Transport Priorities set out in LTP4 support the need for ‘Journey time
improvements and Thanet Parkway Railway Station’, which seeks to deliver a new
railway station to significantly improve rail connectivity, particularly within East Kent,
London and the wider area by providing access to mainline and high speed services. In
particular;

- Delivery of a Thanet Parkway railway station aims to address the issue of poor
accessibility that discourages major employers from locating in the area due to
currently being beyond the ‘magic hour’ time from London. Regeneration in East Kent
is considered to be dependent on improving accessibility.

- The estimated journey time from Thanet Parkway to London St Pancras would be
just over 20 minutes shorter than from Deal to London St Pancras, therefore
enhancing the accessibility of the wider area of East Kent.

- Delivery of Thanet Parkway railway station is considered to improve rail connectivity
between East Kent, London, and the wider Kent areas, and provide increased
attractiveness of East Kent, helping to achieve the LTP4 outcomes of economic
growth and minimised time connection, and affordable and accessible door-to-door
journeys.

- The station would also provide access to greater employment opportunities for local
residents and increase the attractiveness for investment in the nearby Discovery Park
Enterprise Zone (located approximately 3 miles to the south of the application site,
north of Sandwich) and numerous surrounding business parks in Thanet. It would
also support local housing growth.

Further, in 2011 KCC published its Rail Action Plan for Kent which sets out the principal
objective to ensure that rail services fully meet the needs of the County’s commuters,
residents and visitors. One of the major priorities for action identified improvements to
rail journey times between Ashford and Ramsgate, and to London, via the proposed
Thanet Parkway Railway Station at Cliffsend. The creation of a Parkway Station in
Thanet is stated to be a key driver for the economic regeneration of deprived wards
throughout East Kent, facilitating new employment, education and business
opportunities.

With regard to delivering strategic economic objectives, the proposed development also
supports the aims of the Growth and Infrastructure Framework (GIF) which is prepared
by KCC and Medway Council. The GIF provides a framework for identifying and
prioritising investment in infrastructure and also for testing the impact of innovation on
the way in which public services are provided. In considering existing transport capacity
issues, the GIF makes reference to the planned major improvements to rail journey
times and connections to London to support economic growth, including Thanet
Parkway.

The proposed development is also a regional priority for the South East Local Enterprise
Partnership (SELEP) and the Kent and Medway Economic Partnership (KMEP).
Delivery of Thanet Parkway would support their objectives by facilitating the delivery of
new houses and employment space in coastal areas, promoting investment in the

Page 10 D1.4



Item D1
Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet -
TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019)

former Manston airport site and reinforcing the success of Discovery Park Enterprise
Zone (located approximately 3 miles to the south of the application site, north of
Sandwich). Thanet Parkway Station is specifically referenced in SELEP’s Strategic
Economic Plan 2014 (SEP), which also identifies the need for Local Growth Fund (LGF)
transport investment in Thanet Parkway ‘as a priority to reinforce the success of
Discovery Park and support investment in Manston, as well as in the Westwood Relief
Strategy, eliminating the major bottleneck impacting on employment and commercial
growth in Thanet Central Island’. SELEP has awarded Thanet Parkway Station a
provisional allocation of £14 million LGF funding.

19. In August 2020, an additional £12 million of funding for Thanet Parkway was also
secured via the ‘Getting Building Fund’ (an initiative announced by the Prime Minister in
June 2020 to invest in housing and infrastructure projects to support economic recovery
across the Country).

20. In addition to the above, at a National level, the principle of improvements to the
Country’s transport infrastructure to support economic growth, enhance connectivity
between businesses, goods and people, and encouraging a sustainable low-carbon
economy, are set out in the National Infrastructure Plan (2014), the DfT Single
Departmental Plan 2015-2020, Creating Growth, Cutting Carbon (white paper published
by the DfT in 2011), Door to Door; A strategy for improving sustainable transport
integration (DfT, 2013), Transport Investment Strategy (DfT, 2017) and the National
Infrastructure Assessment (published by the National Infrastructure Commission in
2017).

Previous planning application (withdrawn)

21. An application (KCC/TH/0105/2018) was submitted in May 2018 seeking approval for a
railway station at this site. Following consultation and review of responses received, that
application was subsequently withdrawn by the applicant in November 2019. The
primary distinction between the development as now proposed and the previous
withdrawn application is that the previous proposal included an elevated footbridge to
facilitate access across the operational railway. Various consultees, including the
County Council’s Landscape Advisor and Conservation Officer, expressed concern over
the design and height of the footbridge and its subsequent wider landscape impact.
Following the withdrawal of the previous application, the applicant reconsidered how to
facilitate access across the railway line and is now proposing in the current application
to utilise an existing underpass beneath the railway which would link the two platforms.

Proposal

22. This application has been submitted by Kent County Council and proposes the
construction of a new rail station with associated car parking, access, landscaping and
other ancillary works at land at Cliffsend in Thanet. The applicant states that the
purpose of the proposed development, here on referred to a Thanet Parkway, is as
follows:

- to support future investment and economic growth in East Kent by improving rail
connectivity to London and other Kent centres;

- to expand rail accessibility to series of key development site including Discovery Park
Enterprise Zone, Manston Park, EuroKent Business Park, and the former Manston
Airport site; and

Page 11 D1.5



Item D1
Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet -
TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019)

- to provide additional car parking capacity to supplement existing provision at
Ramsgate Station.

23. In summary, the proposed development comprises a two-platform station located on the
existing Ashford International to Ramsgate Line serving high speed and mainline
services to London, including a forecourt and associated car parking. Pedestrian access
is to be provided from the south of the railway line via the existing public right of way
(PROW), TR32 and pedestrian and cycle access is to be provided from north of the
A299 Hengist Way, from Clive Road. A new signalised junction is required to provide
vehicular access to the proposed development from the A299 Hengist Way. The
following section of this report will describe the various physical and operational
components of the development in turn.

Additional/Amended Information Following Submission

24. This application was submitted on the 15 November 2019, and subsequently publicised
and consulted on. Following that initial consultation, the applicant amended the scheme
to address consultee comments, including an objection from Southern Water which
related to the proximity of the built development on site to a water main. The amended
proposal was submitted on the 9 June 2020, and a summary of the changes made are
as follows:

- increase in the number of electric vehicle parking bays;

- amended kerb line onsite to facilitate easier bus access;

- inclusion of a pedestrian walkway across the western car park to link to the station
entrance, which has resulted in a loss of 2 parking spaces, bringing the total to 297
plus pick-up/drop-off spaces. The walkway through the car park is raised to also
provide a speed attenuation feature. New crossing point has also been included in
the eastern car park;

- reconfiguration of the infiltration pond to achieve the easement required by Southern
Water;

- revision to the platform structure so that it spans over the water main at the point
where the main passes under the railway embankment;

- relocation southwards of the lift shaft and staircase on the Down platform (i.e. north
of the embankment) to achieve the required easement;

- relocation of the passive provision for a future station building towards the car park to
achieve the required easement (passive provision in this scheme means an allocated
space and so there is no material impact on this application as a result of this
change);

- reduction in size of area for cleaning store/sub-station to achieve required easement.

- minor adjustment to orientation of Secondary Means of Escape staircase on the Up
platform (south side of the embankment) to achieve required easement

25. In addition to the above, the landscaping scheme was also amended to reflect the
changes outlined above, and also to amend tree species and proposed planting
locations to comply with Southern Waters guidance on tree planting in proximity to a
water main.

It is the amended proposal that will be discussed throughout this report, unless stated
otherwise.

Page 12 D1.6



Iltem D1

Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet -
TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019)

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

The Station

The station is designed to be unstaffed (the train operating company can choose to post
staff there) with two platforms located atop the existing railway embankment,
approximately 6m above existing ground levels. Subject to detailed design, each
platform would measure up to approximately 250m in length and be approximately 2.6m
in width. The platforms would be capable of accommodating trains of up to 12 carriages
in length. Each platform would include customer information displays, waiting shelters, a
passenger help point and driver only operation viewing facilities. Closed-circuit television
(CCTV) cameras and public address speakers will be mounted on lighting columns at
the back of each platform (see paragraphs 35 to 38).

The existing underpass, through which PROW TR32 runs, would be refurbished to
provide suitable access between the two platforms, and to allow access from the car
park to the platform south of the railway line. The existing underpass would be upgraded
as part of this development, including surfacing works (it is currently unsurfaced),
lighting, and CCTV. Step-free access to both platforms would be provided via two 16-
person lifts located outside of the railway embankment profile next to the proposed
staircases on either side of the underpass. The north lift would serve the forecourt and
the north platform, whilst the south lift would serve the south platform.

The applicant advises that the external materials would be finalised at detailed design
stage, but would be chosen to provide a high quality architectural style, whilst also being
functional and durable — in accordance with Network Rails safety standards. Blockwork
cladding is proposed at the lower levels of the station, the stairs would be enclosed with
a powder coated rigid perforated metal panel to allow visibility of passengers, and
platform structures would incorporate tactile paving and appropriate surfacing. Acoustic
fencing (2.4 metre high) would enclose the platforms on both sides of the embankment.

Level Crossings

The proposed development would also necessitate the upgrading of two level crossings,
Sevenscore level crossing where Ebbsfleet Lane North crosses the railway line, and
Cliffsend level crossing where Foads Lane crosses the railway line. These upgrade
works are included within the planning application. Cliffsend level crossing is proposed
to be upgraded from an Automatic Half Barrier (AHB) to a full Manually Controlled
Barrier (MCB) - a crossing with a barrier that extends across both lanes of the road,
separating the railway and the road entirely when down. This would be monitored by
CCTV or obstacle detection via radar, and modelling assumptions used within the
Transport Assessment reflect the worst-case scenario of barrier down times of 180
seconds.

Sevenscore level crossing would remain an AHB (a crossing where the barriers cover
half the road). However, there would need to be changes to the signaling to account for
the introduction of stopping trains at the new station.

Station Forecourt and Entrance

The forecourt area, proposed to be located at ground level to the north of the railway
line, adjacent to the car park, would provide the focus of activity for the station. It would
link the car park, bus stops and cycle storage to the entrance of the lift shafts, stairwell
and underpass for access to the platforms. The forecourt would include at least one
ticket vending machine and further customer information displays. Cycle parking for 40

Page 13 D1.7



Iltem D1

Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet -
TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019)

32.

33.

34.

35.

bikes would be located beside the entrance as well as two bus shelters and real time
passenger information for waiting passengers. A substation and a brick finished modular
unit (approximately 22m? floor area and 2.5metres in height) with facilities including a
welfare room, cleaner’s storage, and toilet is proposed to be located in the forecourt. An
area is also identified for the future provision of a station building, should that be
required (not included within this application).

Station Car Park

Parking provision will allow for 317 car parking bays. This includes 16 disabled bays, a
dedicated area for motorcycles, 60 spaces offering electric car charging points (30
active, 30 passive), a dedicated area for pick up/drop off, accommodating 20 vehicles
including taxis. The car park would have lighting columns and CCTV cameras to aid
security (see paragraphs 35 to 38 below). In addition, pedestrian walkways would link
the car park to the station entrance, and landscaping would be incorporated into the car
parking area. Car parking ticket machines will be provided within the car park at
appropriate locations to ensure a short walking distance from all car parking spaces.

Access

The proposed development would involve highway improvement works to provide

access from the westbound lanes of the A299 Hengist Way. This involves the following:

- a signalised ‘left in / left out’ T-junction with dedicated turning lanes that would
provide access to/from the station at the A299 Hengist Way;

- widening of the westbound lane on the A299 Hengist Way to provide a dedicated left
turn for Thanet Parkway Station;

- diversion of farmers access track to accommodate the station access; and

- a two-way single access road within the application site to provide vehicular access
and egress between the A299 Hengist Way and Thanet Parkway Station. This would
have a nominal carriageway width of 6.75m.

Pedestrian access is proposed to be provided from the south using the existing railway
underpass which connects to the existing PROW (TR32) that runs adjacent to the
railway line. An additional footpath/cycleway is proposed to the north of the station
connecting to Clive Road. This additional footpath/cycleway would pass along the
southern edge of the proposed car park and over the A299 Hengist Way following the
existing PROW and farm access track. Once north of the A299 Hengist Way, the
proposed footway/cycleway would run along the eastern edge of the field and connect
with Clive Road.

Lighting/Public Address System/CCTV

The lighting within the car park and all external areas is proposed to be light emitting
diode (LED) street lighting mounted on columns. All columns within the car park would
be approximately 5m tall and all other external area columns would be approximately
8m tall, with final details to be confirmed at detailed design, pursuant to condition. The
platforms would be illuminated by linear LED luminaires. The lighting within the enclosed
underpass, stairs and waiting shelters would be ceiling mounted LED linear luminaires
to illuminate the floor level. Lighting for the underpass and car park is proposed to be on
a light and movement sensor, with light levels taking into consideration the CCTV and
requirement for facial recognition. Exact lux levels would be determined at detailed
design.

Page 14 D1.8



Iltem D1

Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet -
TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019)

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

Emergency lighting is to also proposed in the waiting areas, the underpass and areas
outside the station which form part of an emergency escape route. Further, lighting at
Cliffsend level crossing is proposed, which would be on a light sensitive sensor, with a
minimum level of 55 lux maintained. No additional lighting would be required at the
Sevenscore level crossing.

A Long Line Public Address (LLPA) system is proposed for all publicly accessible areas
of the station platforms. The LLPA system would include approximately 38 projection
loudspeakers (approximately 2.5 watts), 19 on each platform. The LLPA system would
be provided in accordance with the relevant British Standards as well as Network Rail
Standard The LLPA system would be split into two zones, with Zone 1 and Zone 2 being
Platform 1 and 2 respectively. Each zone would then be split into two sub-zones; one for
the center portion of the platform and one for the outer ends of the platform, allowing for
the LLPA system to be configured to mute the outer ends of the platforms during certain
hours. An Induction Loop system (IL) is proposed to enable passengers with hearing
difficulties to listen to the LLPA announcements. Four Ambient Noise Sensors (ANS) are
proposed to assess the ambient noise volume level and then adjust the zone speaker
volume as required, enabling the speakers to be quieter when there is little noise but to
be louder if a train is standing on the platform.

The station, platforms and underpass would be fully covered by CCTV, with no
substantial ‘blind spots’ anywhere within the station premises. Approximately 32
Security CCTV cameras are proposed to provide general monitoring of the car park,
drop-off and pick-up areas, bicycle racks and parking machines and offer a means of
protecting the safety and security of the public. The design is compliant to the relevant
British Standards as well as taking considerations from the British Transport Police
(BTP) regarding security CCTV positioning and coverage. Help Points would also be
provided at each lift access points and as the foot of each set of stairs.

It is proposed to provide a new 11kV/400V sub-station that would be used to power the
proposed development. This substation would be approximately 5m wide by 5m deep by
3m tall and is proposed to be located within the forecourt area.

Drainage

The proposed surface water drainage strategy uses permeable paving across large
areas of the application site, which would attenuate storm water before releasing it
slowly into the ground. A swale and infiltration basin (storm water balancing pond) have
also been incorporated into the design to manage surface water runoff from the adjacent
undeveloped land, which would minimise the risk of flooding to the railway station and
car park. Due to the distance between the proposed development and the nearest public
sewers, a cesspit is also proposed.

Landscaping

To the north and south of the railway line and to the west of the existing railway
underpass, existing trees along the embankment would need to be removed to facilitate
construction of the station platforms and associated infrastructure. It is proposed that the
majority of the railway embankment in this location would then be seeded with a rough
grass mix and intermittently planted with scrub, with trees only included where they do
not present a danger to the operation of the railway (all planting must meet Network Rail
guidance). Trees would be planted along the foot of the railway embankment to the

Page 15 D1.9



Iltem D1

Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet -
TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019)

42.

43.

south of the railway line. Existing trees and vegetation on the embankments to the east
of the existing railway underpass are to be retained and protected during construction.

Tree and hedgerow planting are proposed along the perimeter of the car park and along
the railway embankments. A large area of grassland is proposed to the east of the car
park, with perimeter trees. Within the car park, further tree planting is proposed, along
with low-growing shrubs and ground cover planting. The proposed swale and infiltration
basin would be seeded with a suitable wildflower grassland mix to enhance biodiversity.
A number of areas of tree planting would be supplemented by a native ‘scrub mix’
composed of flowering and fruiting species to support birds and other wildlife. In
addition, a hedgerow with native trees is proposed along the western boundary of
the application site to create a defined field boundary. A belt of native scrub and trees is
also proposed along the northern boundary where there is more space. Over time this is
intended to develop into a strip of woodland, connecting with the proposed field
boundary along the western boundary, linking with the existing and proposed planting
along the railway embankment

Construction Phasing

The development is anticipated to be constructed in phases, broadly set out as follows:

Phase A
- Junction enabling works (vegetation clearance on the A299 Hengist Way)

Phase B
- Creation of temporary construction access from the A299 Hengist Way (to be the
permanent access upon completion), and associated street lighting.

Phase C

- Site set up (construction compound, site hoarding etc) and enabling works, including
construction access from Cottington Road

- Vegetation clearance

Phase D
- Construction of station and car park works

Phase E
- Level crossing and signalling works (to be undertaken by Network Rail)

Operation

44. It is proposed that the station is unstaffed, so no permanent staff presence is anticipated.

45.

However, the train operating company could choose to post staff at the station when
operational. The station would be served as a minimum by the existing services on the
following routes:

i) London Charing Cross - Tonbridge - Ashford International - Canterbury West -
Ramsgate (Mainline); and

i) London St Pancras International - Ebbsfleet International - Ashford International -

Canterbury West — Ramsgate - Margate (High Speed).

It is predicted that there would be a peak frequency of four to six trains per hour
stopping at the station, which would provide a connection to London St Pancras in
Page 16 D1.10



Iltem D1

Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet -
TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019)

46.

approximately 1 hour 9 minutes and connection to Stratford International in
approximately 1 hour 2 minutes. The first service from the proposed development would
depart at 04:57 to London and the last arrival will be at 01:18 from London on weekdays
with services starting at 07:14 and ending at 00:25 on Sundays, based on the May 2019
timetable. These times are subject to change following the Ashford to Ramsgate
Journey Time Improvements project.

Provision for parking for motorcycles would also be included within the car park at the
proposed development. Bus access is proposed, and it is anticipated that Stagecoach
buses would divert from their current route to serve the station. As detailed above,
improved pedestrian and cycle access is also proposed.

Planning Policy Context

47.

(i)

The most relevant Government Guidance and Development Plan Policies as
summarised below are pertinent to the consideration of this application:

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) February 2019 and the National
Planning Policy Guidance (March 2014), sets out the Government’s planning policy
guidance for England, at the heart of which is a presumption in favour of sustainable
development. The guidance is a material consideration for the determination of planning
applications but does not change the statutory status of the development plan which
remains the starting point for decision making. However, the weight given to
development plan policies will depend on their consistency with the NPPF (the closer
the policies in the development plan to the policies in the NPPF, the greater the weight
that may be given). Proposals that accord with an up-to-date development plan should
be approved without delay (paragraph 11).

In determining applications, the NPPF states that local planning authorities should
approach decisions in a positive and creative way, and decision takers at every level
should seek to approve applications for sustainable development where possible.

In terms of delivering sustainable development in relation to this development proposal,
the NPPF guidance and objectives covering the following matters are of particular
relevance:

- significant weight should be placed on the need to support economic growth and
productivity, taking into account both local business needs and wider opportunities for
development (paragraph 80);

- consideration of whether the opportunities for sustainable transport have been taken
up and safe and suitable access to the site can be achieved for all people.
Opportunities to promote walking, cycling and public transport use should be
identified at the plan making stage and pursued (paragraph 102);

- whether impacts from the development on the transport network (in terms of capacity
or congestion), or on highway safety, can be cost effectively mitigated to an
acceptable degree. Development should only be prevented or refused on highway
grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the residual
cumulative impacts on the road network would be severe (paragraph 109);

Page 17 D1.11



Iltem D1

Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet -
TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019)

(ii)

- achieving the requirement for high quality design and a good standard of amenity for
all existing and future occupants of land and buildings. Planning decisions should
ensure that developments would function well and add to the overall quality of an
area; be visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate
and effective landscaping; be sympathetic to local character and history, including the
surrounding built environment and landscape setting; establish and maintain a strong
sense of place, creating a welcoming and distinctive place to live, work and visit;
include an appropriate mix of development and support local facilities and transport
networks; and create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible (paragraph 127);

- public rights of way should be protected and enhanced, including taking opportunities
to provide better facilities for users (paragraph 98);

- planning decisions should contribute to and enhance the natural and local
environment by protecting and enhancing valued landscapes and site of biodiversity
or geological value; recognise the intrinsic character and beauty of the countryside —
including the economic and other benefits of best and most versatile agricultural land,
and of trees and woodland’ minimise impacts on, and provide new gains for
biodiversity; prevent new and existing development from contributing to unacceptable
levels or soil, air, water or noise pollution; and remediating and mitigating derelict,
contaminated and unstable land where appropriate (paragraph 170);

- the presumption in favour of sustainable development does not apply where a project
is likely to have significant effects on a habitat site (paragraph 177);

- planning authorities should identify and assess the particular significance of any
heritage asset that may be affected by a proposal (including the setting) taking
account of the available evidence and any necessary expertise. They should take this
into account when considering the impact of a proposal on a heritage asset, to avoid
or minimise any conflict between the heritage assets conservation and any aspect of
the proposal (paragraph 190).

Development Plan Policies

(i) Thanet District Council - Local Plan to 2031 (Adopted at the meeting of the
District Council on 9 July 2020)

The following policies are relevant to consideration and can be summarised as:

Strateqic Policy

Policy SP04 The aim is to accommodate inward investment in job creating
development, the establishment of new businesses and expansion and
diversification of existing firms.

Policy SP26 Development proposals should demonstrate how they respect and
respond to the character, key sensitivities, qualities and guidelines of
the relevant landscape character areas (NB. The site is within the
Wantsum North Slopes). All development should seek to avoid skyline
intrusion and the loss or interruption of long views of the coast and the
sea, and proposals should demonstrate how the development will take
advantage of and engage with these views. Development proposals
that conflict with the above principles will only be permitted where it

Page 18 D1.12



Iltem D1

Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet -
TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019)

Policy SP28

Policy SP30

Policy SP35

Policy SP36

Policy SP37

Policy SP43

Policy SP44

Policy SP45

can be demonstrated that they are essential for the economic or social
well-being of the area. In such cases, landscape impacts should be
minimised and mitigated as far as possible.

Sites of International Nature Conservation Importance will receive the
highest level of protection. Where possible applicants should
incorporate measures to avoid or mitigate any adverse impacts.

Development proposals will, where appropriate, be required to make a
positive contribution to the conservation, enhancement and
management of biodiversity and geodiversity assets resulting in a net
gain for biodiversity assets. Sites should be assessed for the potential
presence of biodiversity assets and protected species. For sites where
important biodiversity assets, including protected species and habitats
including SPA functional land, or other notable species, may be
affected, an ecological assessment will be required to assess the
impact of the proposed development on the relevant species or
habitats. Planning permission will not be granted for development if it
results in significant harm to biodiversity and geodiversity assets,
which cannot be adequately mitigated or as a last resort compensated
for, to the satisfaction of the appropriate authority.

All development is required to provide high quality and inclusive
design, sustainability, layout and materials.

The historic or archaeological significance of Heritage Assets should
have due regard to ensure conservation and enhancement of Thanet’s
historic environment.

New development must take account of the need to respond to
climate change by minimising vulnerability and providing resilience to
the impacts of climate change through the use of up to date
technologies, efficient design and appropriate siting and positioning of
buildings.

The Council will work with developers, transport service providers, and
the local community to manage travel demand, by promoting and
facilitating walking, cycling and use of public transport as safe and
convenient means of transport. Development applications will be
expected to take account of the need to promote safe and sustainable
travel. New developments must provide safe and attractive cycling
and walking opportunities to reduce the need to travel by car

Development generating a significant number of trips will be expected
to be located where a range of services are or will be conveniently
accessible on foot, by cycle or public transport.

Development proposals will be assessed in terms of the type and level
of travel demand likely to be generated. Development will be permitted
only at such time as proper provision is made to ensure delivery of
relevant transport infrastructure. Where appropriate, development will
be expected to make a proportionate contribution to the provision,

Page 19 D1.13



Iltem D1

Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet -
TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019)

Policy SP46

extension or improvement of walking and cycling routes and facilities
and to highway improvements.

Land west of Cliffsend is safeguarded for a new railway station.
Proposals will be required to specifically demonstrate satisfactory
vehicular access arrangements form the A299, suitable level of car
parking, integration with wider public transport services, mitigation of
any noise impacts on sensitive receptors, compatibility with the
landscape character of its location and located to minimise the loss of
best and most versatile agricultural land.

Development Management Policies

Policy E16

Policy CC02

Policy QD01

Policy QD02

Apart from allocated sites, planning permission will not be granted for
significant development which would result in the irreversible loss of
best and most versatile agricultural land.

Development is required to manage surface water resulting from the
development using sustainable drainage systems (SuDs) wherever
possible. SuDs design and a robust long-term maintenance plan
should be included as an integral part of the master planning and
design process, incorporating multi-functional benefits for people and
wildlife.

Development must be designed to reduce emissions of greenhouse
gases and have resilience to function in a changing climate, both
meeting sustainable design requirements and using resources
sustainably.

Development must promote or reinforce the local character of the area
and provide high quality inclusive design and be sustainable in all
other respects. Development must:

1) Relate to the surrounding development, form and layout and
strengthen links to the adjacent areas.

2) Be well designed, respect and enhance the character of the area
paying particular attention to context and identity of its location, scale,
massing, rhythm, density, layout and use of materials appropriate to
the locality. The development itself must be compatible with
neighbouring buildings and spaces and be inclusive in its design for all
users.

3) Incorporate a high degree of permeability for pedestrians and
cyclists, provide safe and satisfactory access for pedestrians, public
transport and other vehicles, ensuring provision for disabled access.
4) Improve people's quality of life by creating safe and accessible
environments and promoting public safety and security by designing
out crime.

External spaces, landscape, public realm, and boundary treatments
must be designed as an integral part of new development proposals
and coordinated with adjacent sites and phases. Development will be
supported where it is demonstrated that:

5) Existing features including trees, natural habitats, boundary
treatments and historic street furniture and/or surfaces that positively

Page 20 D1.14



Iltem D1

Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet -
TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019)

Policy TP01

Policy TP02

Policy TP03

Policy TP04

Policy TP06

Policy TP10

Policy G101

contribute to the quality and character of an area are should be
retained, enhanced and protected where appropriate.

6) An integrated approach is taken to surface water management as
part of the overall design.

7) A coordinated approach is taken to the design and siting of street
furniture, boundary treatments, lighting, signage and public art to meet
the needs of all users.

8) Trees and other planting is incorporated appropriate to both the
scale of buildings and the space available, to provide opportunities for
increasing biodiversity interest and improving connectivity between
nature conservation sites where appropriate.

Development proposals which would have significant transport
implications shall be supported by a Transport Assessment and where
applicable a Travel Plan. These should show how multi-modal access
travel options will be achieved, and how transport infrastructure needs
arising from the expected demand will be provided.

Development will be expected to be designed to facilitate safe and
convenient movement by pedestrians including people with limited
mobility, elderly people and people with young children. Proposals
should provide and enhance safe and convenient walking routes
including specifically connection to and between public transport
stops, railway stations, town centres, residential areas, schools and
other public buildings.

Development should consider the need for the safety of cyclists and
incorporate facilities for cyclists into the design. Sustainable
development generating travel demand should provide convenient
cycle parking and changing facilities.

Development proposals will be expected to take account of the need
to facilitate use of public transport and should consist of or incorporate
improvement of passenger waiting facilities, measures to improve
personal security, improved accessibility for people with mobility
limitations, bus/rail interchange facilities and secure cycle storage.

Proposals for development will be required to make satisfactory
provision for the parking of vehicles.

Development is required to implement traffic management measures
to ensure best use of the highway network in terms of safety, traffic
capacity and environmental conditions.

Development which would materially harm nationally designated sites
including Site of Special Scientific Interest, National Nature Reserve or
Marine Conservation Zone will not be permitted and mitigation
measures will be required to maintain the integrity of the site, and
where possible, measures implemented to enhance and improve
connectivity to the designated sites.

Page 21 D1.15



Iltem D1

Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet -
TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019)

Policy G102

Policy Gl06

Policy HEO1

Policy SE01

Policy SE03

Policy SE04

Policy SE05

Policy SE06

Policy SE08

Development with a detrimental impact on locally designated wildlife
sites will not be permitted unless suitable mitigation can be provided
either on or off site within Thanet.

Development likely to have a significant landscape implications should
be supported by a landscape survey and demonstrate how
landscaping and green infrastructure will be provided to enhance the
setting of the development.

Developers should submit information with the planning application
that allows an assessment of the impact of the proposal on the
significance of the heritage asset.

Development with the potential to pollute will only be permitted where
the impact upon existing and proposed land uses and the environment
can be effectively and adequately minimised.

Development on land affected by contamination should fully consider
the impact on human health, public safety and the environment
including underlying groundwater resources.

Development in Ground Water Protection Zones, which have the
potential to result in a risk of contamination to groundwater sources,
will not be permitted unless adequate mitigation measures can be
implemented.

Development should promote the use of sustainable low emission
transport to minimise the impact of vehicle emissions on air quality,
ensuring that users are not significantly adversely affected by air
quality and include mitigation measures where appropriate.

Development proposals that generate significant levels of noise must
be accompanied by a scheme to mitigate such effects, bearing in mind
the nature of surrounding uses. Proposals that would have an
unacceptable impact on noise-sensitive areas or uses will not be
permitted

Development that includes the provision of new outdoor lighting
should be designed to minimise light glare, light trespass, light spillage
and sky glow to ensure there is no adverse impact on residential
amenity, the character of the surroundings and prevent disturbance to
sites of nature conservation interest and protected of vulnerable
species.

Other Material Considerations

48. In addition to the considerations arising from the planning policy section above, local
finance considerations and various strategy documents are also material considerations
for the determination of the application. In respect of the latter, many are identified by
the applicant in their case of need (see paragraphs 13 to 20) but are repeated here for
ease of reference.

Page 22 D1.16



Iltem D1

Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet -
TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019)

(i)

(ii)

The local finance consideration arising from s43 of the Localism Act 2011. Section
43 amends Section 70 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (determination of
applications for planning permission: general considerations) such that in the
determination of a planning application, the local planning authority must have regard to:

(a) the provisions of the development plan, so far as material to the application,
(b) any local finance considerations, so far as material to the application, and
(c) any other material considerations

Section 70(4) of the 1990 Act (as amended) defines a local finance consideration as a
grant or other financial assistance that has been, that will or that could be provided to a
relevant authority by a Minister of the Crown. In this case, the financial assistance
arising from the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government's Getting
Building Fund of £11.999m and the South East Local Enterprise Partnership Local
Growth Fund (LGF) of £14m are local finance considerations material to the application.
The Getting Building Fund is an initiative announced by the Prime Minister in June 2020
to invest in housing and infrastructure projects to support economic recovery across the
Country. Growth Deals are a long term programme to revitalise local economises. The
South East Growth Deal runs from 2015-2021 and was signed by the then Transport
Minister and Chairman of the South East Local Enterprise Partnership (SELEP) in 2014.

In deciding an application for planning permission where a local financial consideration
is material, decision takers need to ensure that the reasons supporting the decision
clearly state how the consideration has been taken into account and its connection to
the development.

The Local Transport Plan 4: Delivering Growth without Gridlock (2016-2031)
(LTP4) published in July 2017. Journey time improvements and Thanet Parkway
Railway Station’ are identified as one of the Strategic Transport Priorities which seeks to
deliver a new railway station to significantly improve rail connectivity, particularly within
East Kent, London and the wider area by providing access to mainline and high speed
services. Improving rail access to East Kent has been a priority for Kent County Council
(KCC) since 2010 when it was first identified in Growth without Gridlock: A transport
delivery plan for Kent and the Local Transport Plan for Kent (2011-2016).

(iii) The Council’s Rail Action Plan for Kent 2011 sets out the principal objectives to

ensure that rail services fully meet the needs of the County’s commuters, residents and
visitors. One of the major priorities for action is improvements to rail journey times
between Ashford and Ramsgate, and to London, via the proposed Thanet Parkway
Railway Station at Cliffsend. The creation of a Parkway Station in Thanet is stated to be
a key driver for the economic regeneration of deprived wards throughout East Kent,
facilitating new employment, education and business opportunities

(iv) The Growth and Infrastructure Framework (GIF) prepared by KCC and Medway

Council which provides a framework for identifying and prioritising investment in
infrastructure and also for testing the impact of innovation on the way in which public
services are provided. In considering existing transport capacity issues, the GIF makes
reference to the planned major improvements to rail journey times and connections to
London to support economic growth, including Thanet Parkway.

Page 23 D1.17



Item D1
Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet -
TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019)

(v) The proposed development is also identified as a regional priority for the South East
Local Enterprise Partnership (SELEP) and the Kent and Medway Economic Partnership
(KMEP). Construction of Thanet Parkway would support their objectives by facilitating
the delivery of new houses and employment space in coastal areas, promoting
investment in the former Manston airport site and reinforcing the success of the nearby
Discovery Park Enterprise Zone. Thanet Parkway Station is specifically referenced in
SELEP’s Strategic Economic Plan 2014 (SEP), which also identifies the need for
Local Growth Fund (LGF) transport investment in Thanet Parkway ‘as a priority to
reinforce the success of Discovery Park and support investment in Manston, as well as
in the Westwood Relief Strategy, eliminating the major bottleneck impacting on
employment and commercial growth in Thanet Central Island’.

(vi) In addition to the above, at a National level, the principle of improvements to the
countries transport infrastructure to support economic growth, enhance connectivity
between businesses, goods and people, and encouraging a sustainable low-carbon
economy, are set out in the National Infrastructure Plan (2014), the DfT Single
Departmental Plan 2015-2020, Creating Growth, Cutting Carbon (white paper published
by the DfT in 2011), Door to Door; A strategy for improving sustainable transport
integration (DfT, 2013), Transport Investment Strategy (DfT, 2017) and the National
Infrastructure Assessment (published by the National Infrastructure Commission in
2017).

Consultations

49. Thanet District Council strongly support the proposal and comment as follows:

“Thanet District Council (TDC) are strongly supportive of the Thanet Parkway
Station project. This is recognised directly in Council’'s Corporate Statement
2019-2023, approved by full Council in October 2019, which supports
infrastructure improvements including the Parkway Station to support inward
investment, local enterprise and housing growth. The Local Plan includes
recognition of this supportive position within Policy SP46. In accordance with the
policy, we expect consideration of the following factors in the determination of the
application by Kent County Council:

1) Satisfactory vehicular access arrangements should be provided from A299.

2) Suitable level of car parking to serve the station should be provided.

3) Integration with wider public transport services.

4) Mitigation of any noise impacts on sensitive receptors.

5) Compatibility with the landscape character of its location.

6) Located to minimise the loss of best and most versatile agricultural land.

Dover District Council supports the application. The Portfolio Holder for Transport and
Licensing comments as follows:

“You will be aware the case of the proposed development has evolved over a
number of years and is supported by Dover District Council (DDC). | am mindful
of the substantial consultations that have taken place as part of the process and
that, overall the proposals have been very well received.

From DDC's perspective, it is evident that improvements to accessibility are
required to East Kent in general and to the locality and the catchment area in
which the new railway station at Cliffsend is located.

Page 24 D1.18



Item D1
Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet -
TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019)

You will be no doubt be aware that considerable progress has been made at the
nearby Discovery Park Enterprise Zone and work is underway to realise its full
potential in terms of bringing forward a mixed use development on the site. The
issue of transport and accessibility for Discovery Park remains as strong today as
when it was made during the early development of the Enterprise Zone. In fact,
this is even more important given the fact that it is the intention of the new owners
to bring forward the site for a mixed use development.

Dover District Council, therefore, continues to support the proposals for a railway
station at Cliffsend as this will facilitate improved accessibility for the future
growth and development of the Discovery Park Enterprise Zone alongside other
opportunities that may emerge in the locality. In supporting the application for the
new railway station at Cliffsend | should make the point that DDC expects that
there will be no dilution of rail services to either Sandwich, Deal or Dover as a
consequence of the service connections to be made to Cliffsend railway station.

| should be grateful if you would take into account DDC's comments in reaching a
decision on this planning application.”

Cliffsend Parish Council no comments received to date.

Minster Parish Council raise strong objection to the proposal and comment as follows:

“The proposal is based on improved access to London to encourage investment
in one of the most deprived areas in the UK. It is stated that reducing the journey
time by 3 minutes and improving parking will achieve this aim. There are already
7 railway stations in Thanet and a further one in nearby Sandwich. Two of these
stations are less than 2 miles from the proposed Parkway site.

The Local Plan (Policy SP45) and the Design & Access statement refer to
protection of the environment and mitigation of climate change. Yet this project is
to be built on Grade 2 agricultural land in a rural area, with a significant loss of
mature trees and will result in more car journeys to access it, making use of the
299 parking spaces. History suggests development along this fast rail line will
result in the urbanisation of a corridor of land stretching through from Cliffsend to
Stourmouth, thus even more environmental destruction.

The Planning Application Supporting Statement includes Table 4.1 setting out 6
options with their advantages and disadvantages. We refer here to the first two
options. The first option is to deliver a new railway station, giving 3 advantages:
high frequency train service to London in less than an hour, shortest distance for
a shuttle bus and a good marketing tool to attract investment. It sets out one
disadvantage of a high initial cost. The second option is to increase parking
provision at Ramsgate Railway Station, giving 3 advantages: lower cost, high
frequency service to London in an hour, and available in a shorter timescale than
building a new station. It sets 2 disadvantages: lack of available land for
additional parking and it "would not have the same environmental impact as a
new railway station,".

We are therefore expected to accept that in excess of £34 million is to be spent
on building a new station within 2 miles of two existing stations rather than find a
location for additional parking, based on the above perceived 'advantages,' and
the much-overstated reduction in journey time. Furthermore, assurances have

Page 25 D1.19



Item D1
Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet -
TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019)

been given that Minster Station will remain operational. However, it is clear from
the Planning Application Supporting Statement that this is not the case. It states,
"Minster Station is currently only served by mainline services and with limited
parking, this is not a station which will meet the needs of local residents current
and in future."

In summary, the construction of Parkway Station is not justified either in terms of
economic or social need; and therefore, this ever-increasing sum of money would
be better spent in addressing so many other needs in this deprived area.”

Manston Parish Council no comments received to date.

Ramsgate Town Council no comments received to date

Kent County Council Highways and Transportation raise no objection to the
application subject to the imposition of conditions regarding the following matters:

- the submission of a Construction Management Plan prior to each phase of the
development commencing;

- provision of wheel wash facilities during construction;

- the submission of details of the permanent bus shelter facilities prior to bus
services commencing, and thereafter ongoing retention;

- provision of measure to prevent surface water discharge onto the highway;

- provision and permanent retention of vehicle parking spaces prior to use of
the site commencing;

- the submission of details of the Electric Vehicle Charging Points as indicated
on the application drawings, and thereafter ongoing retention;

- the submission of details of secure, covered cycle parking facilities prior to
use of the site commencing, and thereafter ongoing retention;

As part of this application, and to address concerns raised regarding potential
parking on local roads (see paragraph 54 below), the applicant has submitted a
signed Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) which sets out an agreement between
the applicant and the Highways, Transportation & Waste Directorate. Under the
agreement, the applicant commits to monitoring on-street parking within a 600m
radius of the new station after opening in comparison to levels prior to opening
through means of a parking beat survey, i.e. a count of on-street parked vehicles.
Should on-street parking levels after opening be found to significantly increase
affecting residential amenity, the applicant commits to implementing measures to
alleviate the concern up to a total capped value of £15,000 (including survey costs).
Options could include the introduction of a controlled parking zone (CPZ) in the
residential streets surrounding the new station. It is of note that a CPZ would need to
be implemented in conjunction with Thanet District Council and be subject to
consultation with the local community and the Thanet Joint Transportation Board as
appropriate.

Highway and Transportation advises that the MoU addresses potential concerns over
parking displacement within surrounding local roads. Highways and Transportation
also comments as follows:

“The proposed Thanet Parkway Station (TPW) forms a part of the emerging

Thanet Transport Strategy (TTS), which in turn underpins the Thanet Local

Plan (TLP). It represents an important piece of transport infrastructure to
Page 26 D1.20



Item D1
Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet -
TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019)

encourage increased use of rail-based travel in the locality, by complimenting
the existing stations within the district with improved vehicle access and
vehicle parking offer. It is also identified as a strategic priority within KCC
Local Transport Plan 4 and is consistent with several national transport
planning policies/strategies including the National Planning Policy Framework
(NPPF). Whilst it is important to recognise the strong policy position for TPW,
it is equally important that its access strategy is appropriately designed and
does not create overbearing residual impact on the surrounding highway
network, or highway safety issues. It is equally important to recognise the
status of TPW as a complimentary transport-based infrastructure to
encourage sustainable travel and relieve parking pressure around existing
stations in the locality.

The proposed TPW would improve access to rail services within Thanet and
parts of Dover District. It would also provide access to rail services for Cliffsend
residents, a village which is currently very limited in terms of sustainable travel
options. TPW is likely to have a modest impact on the local road network and the
proposed site access is likely to have enough spare capacity to accommodate a
significant increase in flows over and above local plan growth.

Some approach arms of local junctions at Sevenscore and Lord of the Manor are
identified as being over capacity within the future and TPW would create a
moderate level of additional queuing and delay. However, these forecasts are
based on very robust modelling outputs. They take no account for future highway
improvements that may be delivered as local plan growth is realised or potential
travel mode shift in Cliffsend. There is also a robust level of allowance for
theoretical recommencement of freight activities at Ramsgate Port, which may or
may not materialise in the future.

The site access is located in a challenging position in terms of topography and
road geometry. The proposed access differs to the previous [withdrawn] planning
application, with an all movements signal junction now being replaced by a less
complex left in left out signal junction arrangement. The access has been subject
to an independent Stage 1 Road Safety Audit (RSA) and is acceptable from a
road safety perspective. There are benefits and disbenefits to the current station
access proposals, with a reduction in the amount of delay to traffic on the A256
Hengist Way (compared to the previous scheme) being an advantage, and an
increase in journey distance/time for those accessing the station (including any
future bus services) from the west of the station being a disadvantage. On
balance, whilst a suitable all movements access arrangement would be the
preferred solution (particularly for future bus access), the current proposals are
not considered to be objectionable. It is recommended that should funding/land
availability circumstances change, that the applicant consider the provision of a
suitable all movements access, as this would enhance access and the
attractiveness of the station.

Bus service provision at the proposed station can be reviewed closer to the
opening of the station (and then periodically in line with TLP growth). Following
initial discussions, it would appear that there are no immediate plans by
commercial bus operators to stop at the station, however it is eminently sensible
to provide areas within the site for future bus services, as there are plans to link
potential development at Manston Airport (if permitted) to the station via a shuttle
bus arrangement.”

Page 27 D1.21



Item D1
Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet -
TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019)

With regard to the Manston DCO decision made in July 2020, Highways and
Transportation are satisfied that no additional survey work is required.

Environment Agency raise no objection to the application subject to the imposition of
conditions regarding the submission of a remediation strategy to deal with risks
associated with land contamination, submission of a verification report regarding the
remediation strategy, ceasing of work should unexpected contamination be found,
control over the infiltration of surface water to ground, and restrictions on piling and other
foundation designs using penetrative methods. Advice and guidance is also provided
with regard to the disposal of waste material.

The County Council’s Flood Risk Team (SuDs) raise no objection to this application
subject to the imposition of conditions regarding the submission of a detailed surface
water drainage scheme prior to the commencement of the development (except for
necessary enabling works and site clearance), and the submission of a verification report
pertaining to the above prior to fist occupation/use of the development.

Southern Water raise no objection to this application and are satisfied that the proposal
would not adversely affect Southern Water apparatus. However, ongoing dialogue
between the applicant and Southern Water would be required during the construction of
the development. Advice and guidance is provided with regard to the protection of
apparatus, sustainable drainage, surface water, petrol interceptors and land drainage.

The County Council’s Biodiversity Officer raises no objection to this application
subject to the imposition of conditions regarding the submission of a biodiversity plan
demonstrating biodiversity net gain, the submission of a Construction Environmental
Management Plan for the protection of bats, reptiles, badgers, hedgehogs and breeding
birds, and the submission of details of a sensitive lighting scheme that aims to minimise
and avoid impacts to foraging and commuting bats.

It is noted that the Construction Environmental Management Plan would ensure that
construction activities would not adversely impact on protected species. During the
operational phase however, the Environmental Assessment concludes (precautionary
given the current lack of detailed lighting proposals) that there would be a moderate
adverse (significant) residual impact of lighting on bat activity.

Kent Wildlife Trust no comments received to date.

Natural England raise no objection to the application and consider that the proposed
development would not have significant adverse impacts on statutory protected nature
conservation sites or landscapes.

CPRE Kent Thanet Branch raise objection to the application, and question the need for
the station. It is not considered that the development would be sustainable, nor would it
add to the overall quality of the area or establish a strong sense of space, as required by
the NPPF. CPRE Thanet do not consider that the development would positively affect
employment opportunities in Thanet, and question the financial viability of the scheme. It
is stated that more jobs should be provided within Thanet, not provide another station
for commuters to travel out of the area. It is also suggested that the introduction of the
Parkway Station would not improve journey times but could add to existing journey
times from stations already operating in Thanet, and that existing stations are able to
accommodate passenger demand. Should existing passengers revert to using the

Page 28 D1.22



Item D1
Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet -
TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019)

Parkway Station, existing stations may close, and traffic movements in the area would
increase.

In addition, CPRE Thanet note that the proposed site is flat Grade 1 Agricultural land -
the best and most versatile quality in terms of its Agricultural Land Classification, and
stress the vital importance of safeguarding such land resource for agricultural use. The
list of potential environmental impacts seems to focus on positive benefits, with no
recognition of negative impacts, and it appears to ignore the need to assess the
consequential and wider impacts.

CPRE Thanet conclude that the proposed Thanet Parkway is not the right solution to
deliver the benefits that are claimed. Further alternatives such as enhanced coordination
of bus transport to “feed” existing stations need to be explored and compared with the
environmental disbenefits of a new station. CPRE Thanet's interpretation of the
proposals is that the Parkway is a country car park for the railway and would greatly
increase car traffic, contrary to all planning policies. Rail growth which replaces car
journeys is clearly beneficial, but the Parkway is predicated on providing more car
parking places, not fewer.

Historic England do not wish to offer any comment on the application, and suggest we
seek the views of out specialist conservation and archaeological advisors.

The County Council’s Archaeological Officer raises no objection to this application
and comments as follows:

“The submitted Written Scheme of Investigation is a suitable scheme of works to
address the archaeological mitigation of the scheme impacts. A suitably worded
condition that secures the implementation of these works in accordance with a
timetable that will be agreed directly with the County Archaeologist should be
imposed. Any changes to the scheme of works should be agreed with the County
Archaeologist.”

The County Council’s Conservation Officer raises no objection to this application and
comments as follows:

“The historic assets that are likely to be affected by the proposal are three
farmsteads within 1km of the application site (Thorne Farm and Sevenscore
Farm to the west and Cliffsend Farm to the south) and St Augustine’s Cross to
the south of the site. Negative visual effects would result from the removal of
mature tree screening from the railway embankments and the construction of
new platform structures above the embankments.

If this application is approved, it is essential that the proposed landscaping
scheme is carried out. This would help to mitigate the visual effects of the
development over the long term by screening the new platform structures once
the re-planted trees have matured.

Overall, the negative visual effects on the setting of the historic assets in the area

of the application site are likely to be of minor significance. We therefore do not
wish to raise an objection to this proposal.”

Page 29 D1.23



Item D1
Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet -
TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019)

The County Council’s Noise Advisor raise no objection to the application, subject to
conditions securing the provision of the acoustic barriers to the rear of the platforms,
and the submission of Construction Environmental Management Plans (CEMPs) for
each construction phase to detail, amongst other matters, noise control measures and
provision of suitable mitigation where necessary. The Noise Advisor further comments
as follows:

“The noise chapter (of the ES) includes a robust assessment of the operational
rail noise impact. The findings support the original view that train noise will be no
worse than the baseline scenario. This conclusion was achieved by undertaking
additional noise monitoring at a similar station [Birchington-on-Sea] in order to
differentiate and compare high speed passing train noise (current situation) with
noise from a train arriving at a station (proposed situation). The measured data
showed that an arriving train was slightly quieter than a passing train, but the
actual train arrival event was slightly longer. The net effect was a marginal higher
noise level of 0.4 dB. Amey have reviewed this additional section in detail and
support the conclusion that a 0.4 dB change in noise is negligible (and not a
perceptible change) and is therefore acceptable. The introduction of a 2.4m
acoustic barrier at the rear of the platforms is also welcomed and addresses any
concerns regarding potential disturbance from brake squeal and engine
acceleration at receptors to the north-east and south-east of the station site.

The previous comments made by Amey (relating to the previous planning
application which was withdrawn) highlighted the potential for adverse noise
effects from the location of the site compound and recommended that the
location be reviewed. The current application continues to show the compound
location unaltered although three access points have now been identified. The
use of Network Rail's Foad’s Lane access point would be used only for out of
hours use during rail blockades and the main site access would be the temporary
roads off Hengist Way and Cottington Road. These changes are welcomed
although it will remain important that the control measures for the construction
compound (and the works in general) are addressed by a robust Construction
Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) including the provision of suitable
mitigation where necessary.

In summary, the key noise issues have been satisfactorily addressed. However, it
is recommended that provision of a comprehensive CEMP detailing noise control
measures is conditioned as is the provision of acoustic barriers to the rear of the
platforms. The applicant has suggested that separate CEMP documentation be
submitted for each phase of the works, and this is considered to be a pragmatic
and satisfactory methodology for delivering noise control measures.”

The County Council’s Air Quality Advisor raise no objection to the application,
subject to a condition securing the submission of Construction Environmental
Management Plans (CEMPs) for each construction phase to detail, amongst other
matters, dust control measures and provision of suitable mitigation where necessary.

The County Council’s Landscape Advisor raise no objection to the application
subject to the imposition of conditions regarding the following matters:
- Tree retention and protection of trees to be retained, including root protection
areas;

Page 30 D1.24



Item D1
Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet -
TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019)

- The submission and approval of a scheme of landscaping and tree planting prior
to the commencement of the development (apart from enabling works and site
clearance), including the provision of early tree planting if possible;

- Implementation of the approved landscaping scheme in the first planting season
following completion of the development, and replacement of any trees/plants
that are damaged/diseased/dead within 5 years from the completion of the
development;

- Any mounding proposed must be agreed by the County Planning Authority;

- Al tree work to be undertaken in accordance with BS3998:2012
‘Recommendations for Tree Work'.

The County Council’s Public Rights of Way Officer raises no objection to this
application subject to a condition of consent requiring the submission and approval of a
scheme of access and construction works setting out any path alignment, surfacing,
width and signage details within 6 months of the date of the permission, and a further
condition requiring the delivery of the approved works prior to first use/occupation of the
development.

The Ramblers no comments received to date.

Network Rail fully supports the introduction of Thanet Parkway Railway Station and
considers that the new station would provide numerous benefits including improved rail
passenger journey time between Thanet and London, supporting the overall
regeneration of the Isle of Thanet.

Kent Police Designing Out Crime Officer provides advice and guidance with regards
to designing our crime and crime prevention, and requests that, should permission be
granted, further dialogue be undertaken with Kent Police, in addition to British Transport
Police.

Health Protection Agency (Public Health England) state that they would not normally
comment on this type of planning application unless there were specific chemical &
environmental hazard concerns. Impacts on public health from local air quality, noise
and contaminated land fall under the remit of the local planning authority.

Ramsgate Heritage and Design Forum remain supportive of the parkway concept as
part of the overall strategy for improving rail accessibility to the East Kent sub region but
have reservations regarding the design and landscaping. The removal of the elevated
footbridge reduces the impact of the station structure on the landscape and this is
welcomed. However, the design is still considered to be utilitarian and would, due to its
form, massing and materials, sit uncomfortably in its rural setting. To enliven the visitor
experience and use of the existing subway commissioning of a public art project should
be considered. The changes to restrict vehicle ingress and egress to the westbound
carriageway of Hengist Way is sensible, but consideration should be given to reducing
the speed limit on this section of the road.

The Broadstairs Society object the application and are of the view that the application
should not proceed until the future of Manston Airport is determined. A decision was due
on Manston on May 2020 but this was delayed. Assuming the airport is given approval,
it is not clear how may people using the airport would want to use the station. Most
people living in Broadstairs who commute the London would continue to walk to
Broadstairs Station. The Society also has concerns about the fact that the station would
not be staffed.

Page 31 D1.25



Item D1
Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet -
TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019)

Local Member

50. The application site straddles the border of two divisions, Ramsgate and Birchington &
Rural. The County Members for both divisions, Ms Karen Constantine (Ramsgate), Mr
Paul Messenger (Ramsgate), Ms Emma Dawson (Birchington & Rural), and Ms Liz
Hurst (Birchington and Rural) were notified of the application on the 10 December 2019.
All four County Members were also notified of the submission of additional and
amended information, including the addendum the Environmental Statement, on the 15
June 2020. No written views have been received.

Publicity

51. This application was publicised by an advertisement in a local newspaper, the posting of
8 site notices and the individual notification of 195 residential properties.

52. The submission of additional and amended information, including the addendum to the
Environmental Statement, was publicised by an advertisement in a local newspaper,
and the posting of 12 site notices. Neighbour notification was suspended by the County
Council at that time due to the Covid-19 pandemic, so an additional 4 site notices were
posted in local residential streets surrounding the application site. Members will be
aware the neighbour notification is a discretionary publicity requirement.

Representations

53. In response to the publicity, 35 letters of representation were received in response to the
initial consultation, 29 raising objection to the scheme, and 6 supporting the proposal.
An additional letter of support was received from the CEO of Discovery Park.

54. A further 6 letters of representation have been received in response to the
advertisement of the receipt of additional and amended information, including the
addendum to the Environmental Statement, 4 raising objection, and a further 2 in
support (including one from the Margate Civic Society). A summary of the main
planning issues raised, including points of objection and support, is set out below:

Need/impact on existing stations

e lack of a case of need and perceived benefit to journey times is minimal;

¢ the station would negatively impact on journey times from existing stations in Thanet
due to the additional stop required;

o the trains cannot travel any faster than they currently do so the time saving is purely
due to the stations location, but you have to drive there;

¢ the people of Thanet do not want or need another station as they have 7 already and
two within 3 miles of Thanet Parkway (TPW);

e would TPW result in a reduction of train services at existing local stations/result in
their closure?

o the cost of parking and the cost of high speed train travel would be prohibitive so the
station would not be used;

e TPW is a waste of public money — the money could be better spent on other needed
local facilities or improving existing stations/line upgrades;

e anew station would be more beneficial at Manston Airport;
the station would not benefit the residents of Cliffsend or Thanet and is not needed;

Page 32 D1.26



Iltem D1

Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet -
TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019)

Highways and Access Matters

highway and access concerns including additional traffic and congestion on already
congested roads/junction, including the Lord of the Manor and Sevenscore
roundabouts;

access to the station/underpass from Earlsmead Crescent needs to be
blocked/prevented. It is not a PROW and it would encourage users of the station to
park in local roads to avoid parking costs;

what will be done to stop station users parking in local residential roads? Will parking
restrictions be introduced? The local roads in Cliffsend cannot accommodate
additional on street car parking;

house building in the area is already putting pressure on local roads and adding to
existing parking problems, the station will only exacerbate this;

the main road through Cliffsend does not have a pavement and is not safe to
accommodate additional pedestrians/vehicles;

the station is just a car park, with poor access links by foot and cycle, and limited
access by public transport. All TPW will do is encourage people to drive to a station
to park, instead of walking to a local station that already exists;

buses will not access the station due to the proposed access arrangements with a
left in and out only;

Landscape Matters, including Design, and Ecological Concerns

the loss of agricultural land is unacceptable;

the development would be an eyesore and obtrusive in the rural landscape;

the visual impact of the development would be detrimental to the local area and
would have an urbanising effect on the wider landscape;

the loss of trees from the embankment would impact on the wider landscape and
also result in a loss of habitat;

the development would have a negative impact on ecology and wildlife, due to a loss
of habitat and introduction of hard surfacing and lighting etc;

additional landscaping and tree planting should be provided, especially within the car
parking area;

off-site tree planting should be provided along the verges of all adjacent main roads
to screen the development;

evergreen planting must be included to screen the development in winter months;

the external materials proposed are not suitable for a rural location;

a more suitable location for the station is a quarter of a mile further west, on flat land
beyond the new A256 Sandwich Road,

General Matters including Amenity Concerns

the development is not sustainable;

the loss of trees from the embankment would remove the screening local residents
currently have from the train line and its associated noise, and the replacement
planting is not sufficient and will take years to mature;

increase in air pollution due to additional vehicle trips;

increase in noise pollution from stopping trains and tannoy announcements;
increased light pollution;

loss of privacy and overlooking of local properties from the platforms;
safety/vandalism/antisocial behaviour concerns regarding an unmanned station;

the use of an underpass at an unmanned station raises personal safety and crime
concerns;

how can disabled users use this station if unmanned?

Page 33 D1.27



Iltem D1

Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet -
TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019)

o the station may encourage further house building and development around the
village of Cliffsend, urbanising the currently rural area;
e drainage issues and concerns raised by Southern Water need to be addressed,;

Support

¢ the proposal has full support as a major contribution to the regeneration of the area;

o the station would be of great benefit to Thanet, reducing journey times to London,
encouraging businesses and commuters to the area;

o the projects merits stand on their own, but with the green light now given to the
Manston Airport DCO the station will prove as even more important addition to the
local transportation network;

¢ the underpass is a much better design solution that the previous footbridge.

Discussion

55. In considering this proposal regard must be had to the Development Plan Policies

56.

outlined in paragraph 19 above. Section 38(6) of the 2004 Planning and Compulsory
Purchase Act states that applications must be determined in accordance with the
Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. Therefore, this
proposal needs to be considered in the context of Development Plan Policies,
Government Guidance, including the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and
the other material considerations as set out in paragraph 48 of this report, and other
material planning considerations arising from consultation and publicity. Members
should note that the Localism Act requires that where a local financial consideration is
material, as in this case, decision takers need to ensure that the reasons supporting the
decision clearly state how that consideration has been taken into account.

In this case the key determining factors, in my view, are the principle of the development
and case of need, local finance considerations, siting and design including landscape
and visual impact, access and highway matters, biodiversity, heritage matters and
general residential and local amenity considerations. The main issues are discussed
below and where appropriate reference is made to the Environmental Statement (ES)
and/or detailed surveys carried out in support of the application and to consultees
responses/views.

Principle of the Development and Case of Need

57.

Whilst there is strong policy support for a Thanet Parkway Station, as set out in
paragraphs 49 and 54 of this report, the need for the station and it benefits have been
questioned, and objection has been raised to the proposal by Minster Parish Council,
CPRE (Thanet), the Broadstairs Society and local residents on this ground. However, it
should also be noted that Thanet District Council, Dover District Council, the Ramsgate
Design and Heritage Forum, the CEO of Discovery Park and a number of local residents
support the principle of the development and consider that Thanet Parkway (TPW)
would be a catalyst for employment opportunities and economic growth, and be of great
benefit to the local area by improving transport links to London. This strong support is
given significant weight by the recent adoption of the Thanet District Council Local Plan
to 2031, Policy SP46 of which specifically safeguards the application site for a new
Railway Station. Policy SP46 reads as follows:

Page 34 D1.28



Iltem D1

Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet -
TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019)

58.

59.

60.

61.

Land west of Cliffsend is safeguarded for a new railway station. Proposals will be
required to specifically demonstrate all of the following:

1) satisfactory vehicular access arrangements from the A299,

2) suitable level of car parking,

3) integration with wider public transport services,

4) mitigation of any noise impacts on sensitive receptors,

5) compatibility with the landscape character of its location, &

6) located to minimise the loss of best and most versatile agricultural land.

In addition to the local plan designation, which must be given significant weight in the
consideration of this application, as set out in paragraph 48 of this report, improving rail
access to East Kent has been a priority for Kent County Council (KCC) since 2010 when
it was first identified in Growth without Gridlock: A transport delivery plan for Kent and
the Local Transport Plan for Kent (2011-2016). It remains a priority in KCC’s latest Local
Transport Plan 4; Delivering Growth without Gridlock (2016-2031) (LTP4) published in
July 2017. One of the Strategic Transport Priorities outlined in LTP4 is for ‘Journey time
improvements and a Thanet Parkway Railway Station’, which seeks to deliver a new
railway station to significantly improve rail connectivity, particularly within East Kent,
London and the wider area by providing access to mainline and high speed services.

LTP4 sets out the key principles behind the case of need for a TPW station, namely:

- aims to solve the issue of poor accessibility in Thanet that discourages major
employers from locating in the area due to currently being beyond the ‘magic hour’
time from London. Regeneration in East Kent is considered to be dependent on
improving accessibility.

- enhancing the accessibility of the wider area of East Kent by reducing the estimated
journey time from Thanet Parkway to London St Pancras to just over 20 minutes
shorter than from Deal to London St Pancras,

- to improve rail connectivity between East Kent, London, and the wider Kent areas,
and provide increased attractiveness of East Kent, helping to achieve LTP4
outcomes of economic growth and minimised connection, and affordable and
accessible door-to-door journeys.

- to provide access to greater employment opportunities for local residents and
increase the attractiveness for investment in the Discovery Park Enterprise Zone and
other business parks in Thanet. It would also support local housing objectives.

As set out in paragraph 48 of this report, TPW is also identified within the Rail Action
Plan for Kent as one of the major priorities for facilitating improvements to rail journey
times between Ashford and Ramsgate, and to London. The creation of TPW is stated to
be a key driver for the economic regeneration of deprived wards throughout East Kent,
facilitating new employment, education and business opportunities. Furthermore, with
regard to delivering strategic economic objectives, the proposed development also
supports the aims of the Growth and Infrastructure Framework (GIF) developed by KCC
and Medway Council. In considering existing transport capacity issues, the GIF makes
reference to the planned major improvements to rail journey times and connections to
London to support economic growth, including TPW.

The proposed development is also a regional priority for the South East Local Enterprise
Partnership (SELEP) and the Kent and Medway Economic Partnership (KMEP). The
purpose of these Partnerships is to determine strategic economic priorities, while
making investments and delivering incentives to drive growth and create jobs. Delivery
of Thanet Parkway would support their objectives by facilitating the delivery of new
Page 35 D1.29



Iltem D1

Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet -
TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019)

62.

63.

64.

houses and employment space in coastal areas, promoting investment in the former
Manston Airport site and reinforcing the success of Discovery Park Enterprise Zone.
Thanet Parkway Station is specifically referenced in SELEP’s Strategic Economic Plan
2014 (SEP), which also identifies the need for Local Growth Fund (LGF) transport
investment in Thanet Parkway ‘as a priority to reinforce the success of Discovery Park
and support investment in Manston, as well as in the Westwood Relief Strategy,
eliminating the major bottleneck impacting on employment and commercial growth in
Thanet Central Island’. In recognition of the key role that TPW plays in SELEP’s
economic strategy, SELEP has awarded Thanet Parkway Station an allocation of £14
million LGF money, subject to planning consent. A further £11.999 million of
Government funding from the recently announced Getting Building Fund has also been
secured to support economic recovery, subject to planning consent. Further to this, at a
National level, the principle of improvements to the country’s transport infrastructure to
support economic growth, enhance connectivity between businesses, goods and
people, and encouraging a sustainable low-carbon economy, are set out in a number of
key documents (see paragraph 48)

In considering the above, it is clear that that there is strong national, regional and local
policy support for TPW, and that its delivery is a strategic priority for Kent County
Council, as identified within its LTP4; Delivering Growth without Gridlock and the Kent
and Medway Growth and Infrastructure Framework. There is a strong strategic policy
support for the development, but material considerations raised throughout the
consultation process need to be considered and addressed, and subsequently balanced
against the national, regional and local strategic and policy support for the scheme. In
addition to the matters specifically referenced in the newly adopted Thanet District Local
Plan, Policy SP46, and the matters raised throughout the consultation process (to be
discussed later in this report), the principle of the development and case of need has
been questioned. These matters need to be addressed before the principle of the
scheme can be accepted.

Manston Airport Decision

As set out in paragraph 8 of this report, in July 2020 the Secretary of State for Transport
approved the Development Consent Order authorising proposals by ‘RiverOak’ to open
Manston airport as a freight airport. It has been questioned what the implications are of
this decision on the case of need for TPW. The applicant confirms that TPW was
originally conceived as an airport parkway station to support the forecast expansion in
passenger services at Manston. However, those forecast passengers never materialised
and ultimately the airport closed in 2014. The need for the station was reviewed at that
time and it was found that the project still provided high value for money even without an
airport, partly due to the housing growth identified in the Thanet Local Plan, as well as
having a strong strategic case in terms of attracting investment to East Kent.

As part of the original development proposals, a spur of the High-Speed line to directly
connect with the airport terminal was investigated. However, such a project was cost
prohibitive and did not justify the required level of investment when a shuttle bus or taxi
service could provide the last mile link between a new station on the existing line and
the Airport. However, the proposals from RiverOak Strategic Partners are predominantly
for a freight airport and, as such, the need for a new passenger railway station is not
part of their proposals (albeit they do intend to introduce some passenger services). The
applicant advises that the TPW ‘Passenger Demand Modelling’ has been independently
reviewed by several consultants since Manston Airport closed and so they are confident

Page 36 D1.30



Iltem D1

Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet -
TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019)

65.

66.

67.

68.

69.

that it is robust and accurate. The business case has also been independently verified.
Notwithstanding this, should the airport reopen in the future, as planned, the case for
Thanet Parkway would only be strengthened and could justify further enhancements,
such as a shuttle bus link to the airport.

Having considered the information provided above, and in giving the level of strategic
and policy support for TPW which is not predicated on a future use for Manston Airport, |
am satisfied that the recent decision on the future of Manston would not detract from the
case of need for TPW. Further, the reopening of Manston as a freight airport, with
limited passenger flights, could strengthen the need for TPW, providing an infrastructure
first approach with possible future shuttle links between the two transport hubs.

Journey Time Improvements (JTI)

The benefit of the development to journey times has also been questioned, as a key
target for TPW is to reduce the journey time to London. However, by adding an
additional station on the existing line, 2 minutes is added to any journeys from stations
to the east of TPW, arguably offsetting any gain from a high speed (HS1) service. The
applicant advises that it has worked together with Network Rail on a scheme to reduce
journey times between Ashford International and Ramsgate stations through public
crossing and track alignment improvements. The Journey Time Improvement (JTI)
scheme is expected to deliver a three-minute saving, with two minutes delivered in the
December 2019 timetable and the third minute planned for the December 2021
timetable change. Importantly, these journey time savings have always been envisaged
as benefitting the whole Thanet District rather than specifically just Ramsgate.

| am further advised that the above would mean that a new station could be
accommodated within the existing timetable because it would typically add 2 minutes
(through stopping and starting) and this would be offset by the journey time saving whilst
the new station would receive the full JTI benefit. An additional 2 minutes has already
been included in the timetable from the removal of joining and dividing of HS1 trains at
Ashford International (so it is expected to be a total of 5 minutes saved compared to the
2014 timetable). As the JTI saving would offset the increase in journey time from
introducing a new station, passengers further along the line would not see a worsening
compared to their current service time.

On this basis, the existing HS1 services, combined with JTI, would result in an improved
perception of the region as a viable place to attract inward investment and provide an
invaluable opportunity to bring Thanet to within an hour of London. JTI was awarded
funding by the Regional Growth Fund round 2 on the basis of the support it could offer
to delivering a new station. With the JTI improvements, TPW could have a journey time
of around 60 minutes to London (Stratford International), and of just under 70 minutes to
London St Pancras International, improving the perception that East Kent is an easily
accessible and attractive place to invest and do business. In my view, this accords with
the underlying principles of the development and is in accordance with the strategic
objectives of the TPW scheme.

Impact on Existing Local Stations

Concern is also raised about the need for an additional station within Thanet when there
are already 7, and the potential impact that an additional station could have on the
viability of those already operating. With regard to the need for an additional station, as
already discussed above, the case for Thanet Parkway station has been founded in

Page 37 D1.31



Iltem D1

Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet -
TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019)

70.

71.

much research and modelling that has taken place since the prospect of domestic High
Speed services being introduced to Kent was first announced. Since then, Thanet
Parkway has been adopted into Kent County Council’'s (KCC) transport policy, most
recently Local Transport Plan 4: Delivering Growth without Gridlock (2016 — 2031).
Further, the station is a key infrastructure requirement to support Thanet's recently
adopted Local Plan and is identified in the Thanet Transport Strategy as such. The
adopted Local Plan safeguards the proposed development site for a new railway station.
Importantly, the station is not designed to divert passengers from Thanet's existing
stations but rather to provide additional capacity so that a growing population can have
better access to the rail network, as well as to promote economic growth by providing
better journeys to other Kent towns and London.

In considering the above, | am satisfied that TPW is proposed to address an identified
current and future shortcoming in transport provision in Thanet, with the intention of
improving the economic performance of East Kent and drive regeneration and
investment. | am satisfied that the need for the station has not arisen solely as a result
of the deficiencies of existing stations (such as lack of car parking) and an intention to
replace them, but rather a need to supplement and improve rail connections to East
Kent. However, should permission be granted, the likelihood is that a proportion of the
users of TPW would potentially have switched from alternative local stations. In doing
so, this could unlock additional capacity at other local stations for further growth within
their own catchment areas (due to additional housing for example), the impact of TPW
(once operational) on the future viability of existing local stations needs to be considered
and assessed.

The applicant advises that the business case for TPW has assessed the impact of the
proposed station on the surrounding stations and that passenger demand modelling has
also been independently verified. TPW is designed to increase overall station capacity in
the area to cater for future growth. It would not, therefore, make sense to close any
other stations as a result of opening an additional station and | am advised that this is
not the intention. For further reassurance, | am advised that it is a complex and difficult
process to close a station. The Railways Act 2005 sets out the statutory process for a
closure, which includes consultation with passengers and their representative bodies. In
this area of the country, the closure of a station can only be proposed by the Secretary
of State for Transport, the train operating company (currently Southeastern) or Network
Rail. The Department for Transport (DfT) must then come to a view, which must be
ratified by the Office of Rail and Road (the regulator).

72. Given the information above, | am satisfied that a case of need for an additional station

73.

within Thanet has been demonstrated, and recognize that there is no intention to close
any existing stations as a result of TPW. The additional station has strong strategic and
policy support and is predicated on an identified need to address current and future
deficiencies in rail travel provision in Thanet, with the intention of improving the
economic performance of East Kent and drive regeneration and investment. However,
local representations have questioned how the provision of an additional station would
attract inward investment or help to economy of Thanet. This will be discussed below.

Encouraging Economic Development and Investment — Economic Benefits

Thanet Parkway is not just a transport project. It is also aimed at bringing regeneration
benefits to East Kent. The business case for the project has looked at the wider
economic benefits the scheme would bring as part of developing the strategic case.
Kent County Council commissioned a study by Wessex Economics (January 2016),

Page 38 D1.32



Iltem D1

Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet -
TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019)

74.

75.

76.

which describes how, within the South East, proximity and journey time to London is a
key factor influencing local economic performance. There is a direct and observable
relationship between the economic performance of localities in the South East and East
of England and their distance from London, with areas more distant (measured in time)
performing less well. Thanet has historically poor performance because it is, in effect,
“at the end of the line” from London. In 2019, Wessex Economics updated this work for
Thanet District Council and ultimately came to the same conclusions.

This application identifies that the East Kent area is ‘economically disadvantaged’ when
compared with West Kent and South East England as a whole. Poor accessibility is one
factor that has discouraged major employers from locating in the area, which serves to
undermine regeneration and has limited the employment catchment for local residents.
Long commuting times to London are often seen as a barrier for new business
investment and so improving connectivity is a vital step in unlocking development
potential and attracting the necessary investment and job opportunities for local people.
TPW would give a headline journey time of around 60 minutes from Thanet Parkway to
London Stratford International, and just 69 minutes to London St Pancras. Being around
one hour from London reinforces the perception that a place is good for investment.
Further, TPW would stimulate additional housing development (allocated in the local
plan) because of the improvement to rail services to London attracting skilled residents
to the area who could commute to London and other towns in Kent. In turn, that would
attract greater levels of inward investment and accelerate the delivery of jobs in the
area.

It is important to note that Thanet District Council and Dover District Council both
strongly support this application, largely on the grounds of TPW supporting inward
investment, local enterprise and housing growth. Discovery Park have openly supported
the scheme, and local residents have written in supporting the provision of the new
station due the reduced journey times to London, encouraging businesses to invest in
Thanet. This strong support strengthens the applicant’s business case in that having an
accessible station within around an hour’s journey time to London would improve the
perception of East Kent as a place to invest. In light of the above, and the strong
strategic and policy support for TPW, | consider that TPW would support and encourage
inward investment and local housing growth, and attract both commuters and
businesses to Thanet. The economic benefits and regeneration opportunities are
therefore supported and need to be given significant weight in the determination of this
application.

HS1 Capacity

It has been questioned as to whether the existing trains (in terms of available space on
trains) would be able to accommodate the additional passenger movements generated
by TPW. The applicant advises that the capacity of train services was assessed as part
of the business case and no issue was found with the trains being able to accommodate
the additional passengers at this location. Passengers joining at Thanet Parkway should
be able to get a seat. However, it is recognised that capacity coming out of the London
termini in the evening peak is less than demand. Consequently, passengers for Thanet
Parkway may have to stand for the first part of their journey, as they would now if
travelling to Ramsgate. This is not considered a severe impact but has been assessed
as part of the business case when calculating the value for money of the project. When
the franchise is renewed, it is possible that further HS1 services or longer trains may be
specified by the Department for Transport (DfT). Separately, the County Council would
push for this when the future franchise specification is being developed by the DfT. In

Page 39 D1.33



Iltem D1

Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet -
TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019)

77.

78.

79.

considering the above, | can see no reason why the additional passengers that TPW
would generate could not be accommodated on the existing rail services, irrespective of
any potential future upgrades to services.

Passenger Costs

Lastly, with regard to the principle of the development and need, it is suggested by local
residents that the cost of parking at the station and using the HS1 service would render
it an unviable option for Thanet, and that TPW would therefore not be used. The
applicant advises that the pricing strategy for the car park has yet to be determined.
However, the passenger demand modelling has assumed a charge of £3.50 per day,
which compares favourably with other stations in the County. For example, Ramsgate is
£4.80 per day, Margate £3.70 and Sandwich £4.20. The intention is to ensure that
Thanet Parkway is attractive to prospective passengers but that operational and
maintenance costs of the car park are covered.

With regard to rail fares, these are set by the train operating company (Southeastern) in
line with the DfT’s policy and anything specific in the franchise agreement. Whilst it is
recognised that the HS1 service has higher fares than the regular service, the case of
need for the station and support from local businesses and residents alike, suggest that
passengers would choose to use HS1. It is important to note however, that standard
services would also stop at TPW, and that a percentage of passengers are expected to
use TPW instead of other local stations, as discussed above.

In considering the above, | am satisfied that TPW would be used by passengers
choosing to use HS1 and also existing local train services. The station offers competitive
parking rates with sufficient parking facilities to cater for demand. A case of need for
additional train services and an additional station has been made (as discussed above),
and | see reason to disagree with the forecasting undertaken by the applicant, nor the
extensive strategic and policy support for the additional station in Thanet. | am therefore
satisfied that TPW would be used as forecast.

Summary - Principle of the Development, Policy Support and Need

80. Having considered the above, it is clear that there is strong strategic and policy support

81.

for TPW, including the specific designation of the application site for a new station under
Policy SP46 of the newly adopted Thanet Local Plan. | accept the applicant’s case of
need for an additional station in Thanet and am satisfied that the provision of an
additional station would not negatively impact upon the existing local stations. TPW
would satisfy the strategic objectives of the County Council’s Local Transport Plan 4;
Delivering Growth without Gridlock, specifically the strategic transport priority of Journey
Time Improvements (JTI). With regard to economic objectives, TPW supports the aim of
the Growth and Infrastructure Framework (GIF) prepared by the County Council and
Medway Council, in terms of providing improved journey times and connections to
London to support economic growth in East Kent. The proposed development is also a
regional priority for the South East Local Enterprise Partnership (SELEP) and, at a
National level, meets the Government’s objectives of improvements to the countries
transport infrastructure to support economic growth and enhance connectivity.

| accept the principle of the development given the strong policy support and the case of
need provided by the applicant, as supported by local, regional and national strategic
objectives. The NPPF states that proposals that accord with an up-to-date Local Plan
should be approved without delay. However, as also set out in the NPPF, and

Page 40 D1.34



Iltem D1

Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet -
TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019)

referenced in Policy SP46 of the Local Plan, we also need to be satisfied that the
development is sustainable and that other material planning considerations arising from
consultation and publicity are considered and assessed in the determination of this
application. However, before discussing these matters, it is important to consider the
relevant local finance considerations which support the provision of TPW and the
implications for decision making.

Funding — Localism Act

82.

83.

84.

85.

Whilst monetary matters are not usually a relevant material consideration in the
determination of planning applications, in this case, not having regard to the finance
considerations in relation to the Localism Act (2011) would arguably mean that the
Committee had not assessed all relevant material planning considerations in its decision
making. Paragraph 143 of the Localism Act 2011, titled ‘Applications for Planning
Permission: Local Finance Considerations’ states that local planning authorities should
have regard to local finance considerations as a material consideration where they are
relevant to the application before them. Local finance considerations are thereafter
defined as ‘a grant or other financial assistance that has been, or will be, provided to a
relevant authority by a Minister of the Crown.

As set out in paragraph 48 of this report, TPW is a regional priority for the South East
Local Enterprise Partnership (SELEP) and the Kent and Medway Economic Partnership
(KMEP). Thanet Parkway Station is specifically referenced in SELEP’s Strategic
Economic Plan 2014 (SEP), which also identifies the need for Local Growth Fund (LGF)
transport investment in Thanet Parkway ‘as a priority to reinforce the success of
Discovery Park and support investment in Manston, as well as in the Westwood Relief
Strategy, eliminating the major bottleneck impacting on employment and commercial
growth in Thanet Central Island’. SELEP has awarded Thanet Parkway Station a
provisional allocation of £14 million LGF funding.

Further, as outlined in paragraph 19, in August 2020, a further £11.999 million of funding
for TPW was secured from the ‘Getting Building Fund’ - an initiative announced by the
Prime Minister in June to invest in housing and infrastructure projects to support
economic recovery across the Country.

The securing of the above funding for the sole purpose of delivering the TPW project
should, in this instance, be a material consideration in the determination of this
application. It is important to note that Thanet District Council, the East Kent Spatial
Development Company and Kent County Council are also part funding the
development, but those funding streams are not defined by the Localism Act as a local
finance consideration and are therefore not material to the determination of the
application. However, the majority of the funding for TPW is secured from ‘a Minister of
the Crown’ (as defined above), and that funding is awarded, subject to planning, on the
basis of the strategic and regional importance of TPW and its importance in supporting
the regeneration and economic development of Thanet and East Kent.

Siting and Design including Landscape and Visual Implications

86.

As referred to above, the application site is allocated in the newly adopted Thanet Local
Plan under Policy SP46 for a new railway station. The principle of locating a station on
this site has therefore already been tested and agreed through the independent
examination by a Planning Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State and the
subsequent adoption of the Local Plan. However, an alternative site for the station has

Page 41 D1.35



Iltem D1

Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet -
TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019)

87

88.

89.

90.

been suggested by local residents and concerns regarding loss of agricultural land and
wider landscape impacts need to be considered and addressed.

Alternative Site and Loss of Agricultural Land

It has been suggested that a more suitable location for the station is a quarter mile
further west, on flat land beyond the new A256 Sandwich Road. This site is considered
by a local resident to be more suitable due to the increased distance from the village of
Cliffsend and local properties, and also due to the site being flat so no embankment,
thereby reducing the landscape impact of the development. The applicant advises that
they did consider this, and other sites, as part of the early options appraisal. However,
some of the most critical considerations in the site selection process were the
operational railway requirements such as distance from level crossings, being located
on a straight section of track and having a minimal impact on signalling. Of all the
options considered, the application site best met all the operational requirements of the
railway, whilst also having the smallest footprint and therefore minimising loss of
agricultural land, as required by Policy SP46 of the adopted Local Plan.

As set out in paragraph 9 of this report, the application site is located on best and most
versatile agricultural land (classified within the ES as grade 2). Policy E16 of the Thanet
Local Plan states that planning permission will not be granted for significant
development which would result in the irreversible loss of best and most versatile
agricultural land, unless that site is allocated. In this case, the application site is
allocated for the use proposed and the principle of the loss of this agricultural land has
already been considered acceptable by the Local Plan Inspector. The loss of agricultural
land would therefore not be contrary to Local Plan policy. Further, Chapter 14 of the
submitted Environmental Statement (Land Use) concludes that the proposed
development would result in a loss of approximately 3 hectares of best and most
versatile agricultural land, which is regarded as being a negligible (not significant) affect.

Given the site’s allocation in the newly adopted Local Plan, the operational requirements
of the railway resulting in the selection of this site, and the loss of just 3 hectares of
agricultural land, which in this case is not contrary to the Local Plan (due to the site’s
allocation), | am satisfied that the application site is in the most appropriate and
practicable location, and that the development is acceptable in that regard. Further, the
minimal los of agricultural land meets the requirements of Local Plan policy SP46.
However, the design and landscape implications of the siting need to be considered, in
addition to highway and access matters, amenity concerns and other material
considerations arising from the publicity and consultation process.

Wider Landscape Impact and Arboricultural Matters

As outlined in the opening section of this report, the application site is located to the
north western edge of the village of Cliffsend, but set within a rural landscape. When
viewed from the north (Manston Airport and surrounding housing), TPW would affect
views across the application site to the coast and the six designated sites for nature
conservation which are located along the coastline (see paragraph 6). It should also be
borne in mind however, that housing development in the area (approved developments
and allocated sites) would change the nature of the landscape once constructed.
However, it is appropriate to also assess the impact that the development would have
on the existing landscape.

Page 42 D1.36



Iltem D1

Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet -
TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019)

91.

92.

As detailed in paragraph 21 of this report, an application was submitted in May 2018
seeking approval for a railway station at this site (KCC/TH/0105/2018). However,
following an initial consultation and review of the responses received, that application
was subsequently withdrawn by the applicant in November 2019. That application
included an elevated footbridge to link the two platforms, the height and visual impact of
which met with concern and objection from various consultees including the County
Council’'s Landscape Advisor and Conservation Officer. The applicant has subsequently
reconsidered how to facilitate access between the two platforms, and this application
now proposes to utilise an existing Victorian underpass within the embankment to
provide such access. This change is design has been welcomed by consultees, and of
note neither the County Council’'s Landscape Advisor nor Conservation Officer raise
objection to this revised application. However, local residents, Minster Parish Council,
CPRE Thanet, and Ramsgate Heritage and Design Forum raise objection and/or
concerns over the landscape impact of the scheme, including the impact of tree removal
and the design of the station.

Thanet District Council Local Plan policy SP46, which allocates the site for a new train
station, seeks that factors are considered in the determination of the application by the
County Council, including compatibility with the landscape character of its location. The
application site is within the Wantsum North Slopes Landscape Character Area and is
currently an open agricultural field with a raised railway embankment which is heavily
treed. The local landscape would undoubtably change as a result of the development, it
is whether or not that change is acceptable when balanced against other material
considerations. Policy SP30 of the Thanet Local Plan seeks to avoid skyline intrusion
and loss or interruption of long views of the coast, and further requires development
proposals to demonstrate how they respond to the character of the Landscape
Character Area.

93. Chapter 7 of the submitted Environmental Statement (ES) has assessed the landscape

and visual effects of the development on local receptors during the construction phase
and year 1 (winter) and year 15 (summer). The construction phase would inevitably
have significant visual and landscape effects, but the ES concludes that these effects
are considered to be temporary as they would only last for the duration of the
construction works.

94. The development would, due to the need to clear the railway embankments for the

95.

installation of the new platforms and lift structures, result in the removal of a number of
trees. An Arboricultural Impact Assessment (Appendix 7-E of the Environment
Statement) was undertaken to identify the impacts of the proposed development on
trees. A condition survey of the existing trees found that none were high quality trees,
most were of a moderate quality and three were of a low quality. A further tree was
found to be unsuitable for retention and recommended to be removed regardless of the
proposed development.

As set out in paragraphs 41 and 42 of this report a landscaping scheme has been
developed and proposed as part of this development, which includes proposals for new
tree planting along the edge of the railway embankment, as well as within and around
the proposed car park. Tree planting within 5m and 10m of the railway line is restricted
by Network Rail guidance, however, the smaller trees and native shrubs that are
proposed in the areas closer to the railway line would, over time, grow into a wooded
area (subject to management by Network Rail). Local residents have suggested the
planting of Holm Oaks within the scheme, and further evergreen planting. However,
Holm Oak is an invasive non-native tree that can have detrimental effects upon native

Page 43 D1.37



Iltem D1

Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet -
TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019)

96.

grassland and therefore native wildlife. It also produces large quantities of seeds that
germinate readily, and so it can easily spread — particularly affecting chalk grassland,
which is found in the local area. Alternative species, such as pines, would however be
considered in the detailed landscaping plan which would be secured by condition should
permission be granted.

The proposed landscaping scheme, in addition to providing replacement
embankment/tree planting, also seeks to minimise and mitigate the wider visual impact
of the proposed development. Tree and hedgerow planting is proposed along the
perimeter of the car park and a large area of grassland is proposed to the east of the car
park, with perimeter trees. Within the car park, further tree planting is proposed, along
with low-growing shrubs and ground cover planting. A number of areas of tree planting
would be supplemented by a native ‘scrub mix’ composed of flowering and fruiting
species to support birds and other wildlife, including pollinating bees. In addition, a
hedgerow with native trees is proposed along the western boundary of the application
site to create a defined field boundary. A belt of native scrub and trees is also proposed
along the northern boundary where there is more space. Over time this is intended to
develop into a strip of woodland, connecting with the proposed field boundary along the
western boundary, linking with the existing and proposed planting along the railway
embankment

97. Whilst it could be argued that additional trees may further soften the impact of the car

park, this would result in a loss of parking bays and either the car park footprint would
have to be increased or an alternative option such as a decked car park would then be
necessary, which would have greater visual impacts. The applicant also advises that the
landscaping scheme has been informed by the safety requirements of an operational
railway and, unfortunately, this constrains what is possible. In addition to the planting
scheme, the applicant has also agreed to consider options such as planters in front of
the station entrance at the detailed design stage (should permission be granted) in
consultation with Network Rail and the Train Operating Company. The submitted
landscaping scheme, which although comprehensive and detailed, would be subject to
further detailed design post decision should planning permission be granted.

98. The ES has assessed the landscape and visual effects of the development on local

99.

receptors based on the submitted ‘outline’ scheme. The ES concludes that at the year 1
of operation winter scenario the development would have minor, moderate or major
adverse impact depending on the receptor, with the major adverse residential receptors
being those to the south of the application site, on the western edge of Cliffsend and in
Lavender Lane. However, by the year 15 of operation summer scenario, those impacts
have reduced to negligible, minor and moderate adverse. Whilst that moderate adverse
impact, which again would apply to the residential receptors to the south of the
application site, on the western edge of Cliffsend and in Lavender Lane, is considered to
be significant, this should be balanced against the case of need for the development,
strategic and local policy support, and the accepted economic benefits of TPW. Further,
the ES concludes that TPWs impact on the wider landscape, specifically views across
the site from the north towards the protected coastline beyond, would be reduced to
minor adverse as the landscaping matures.

Its should be noted that the County Council’s Landscape Advisor raises no objection to
this application, subject to the imposition of conditions to ensure that trees to be retained
are protected throughout the construction works, and conditions to secure the
submission of a detailed scheme of landscaping and tree planting, and its subsequent
implementation and management. In addition, the applicant has agreed to consider the

Page 44 D1.38



Item D1
Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet -
TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019)

provision of early tree planting (i.e. early in the construction period) should programming
and phasing allow, which would result in the planting scheme reaching maturity earlier
than would otherwise be the case. Should permission be grated, such a requirement
would be specified within the landscaping scheme condition.

100.In my view the proposal is in accordance with relevant Development Plan Policies,
specifically Policy SP26 of the Thanet Local Plan which seeks protection and
enhancement of Landscape Character Areas, unless a development is essential for the
economic or social well being of the area. In such cases, landscape impacts should be
minimised and mitigated as far as possible. Whilst it is accepted that the TPW
development would have some adverse effects on the local and wider landscape as
identified in the Environmental Statement (ES) and discussed above, | consider that in
this instance appropriate mitigations have been detailed in the ES and a demonstration
of how the economic and public benefits outweigh those adverse effects has been made.
On balance, | am therefore of the view that the landscape impact of the development
would, subject to the securing of the mitigation detailed within the ES by the imposition
of appropriate planning conditions, not be so significantly adverse as to warrant refusal
of this application, especially when balanced against the case of need and accepted
economic benefits.

Design Matters

101.In addition to the landscape and visual impacts the development, the design and
choice of materials has been questioned. With regard to design, the use of the
underpass at an unstaffed station has raised security and personal safety concerns, and
the lift shafts are considered to be unsightly. The NPPF and Thanet Local Plan policies,
specifically Policy SP35, requires development to be of a high quality with an inclusive
design, layout and use of materials.

102.First, with regard to the use of the underpass, this was proposed by the applicant as
an alternative to the previous footbridge option, which had a far greater visual impact
than the proposal now under consideration. A Public Right of Way (PROW) (TR32)
currently runs through this underpass, and that PROW would be upgraded as part of the
development (see paragraph 34). The underpass would also be refurbished, and CCTV
and lighting would be installed to fully cover the station, the platforms and the underpass
with no blind spots. The applicant advises that the design is compliant with British
Standards, in addition to adhering the British Transport Police advice regarding CCTV
positioning and coverage. Help points would also be provided as each lift access point
and at the foot of each set of stairs.

103. It is also recognised that although the station is designed to be unstaffed, the train
operating company could post staff to the station in the future should they be minded.
Kent Police have been consulted on this application, and have provided general advice
with regard to designing out crime and crime prevention, and have requested that,
should permission be granted, further dialogue be undertaken between the applicant
and Kent Police, in addition to the British Transport Police. The applicant advises that
Network Rail have been working with the Designing Out Crime Officer at British
Transport Police rather than Kent Police given that the development is a station.
However, the security requirements for the station would be fully developed at the
detailed design stage, and Network Rail have been advised to liaise with Kent Police in
addition to the British Transport Police. Subject to this increased liaison, which |
consider should be secured by way of an informative, | am satisfied that the station has

Page 45 D1.39



Item D1
Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet -
TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019)

been designed in such a manner as to minimise the risk of crime, and that the use of the
underpass is no more/less safe than the footbridge alternative.

104.With regard to the lift shafts, the wider landscape and visual impact of these has been
discussed above as part of the consideration of the impact of the development as whole.
The lift shafts enable a step free access to be provided to both platforms and would be
located outside of the railway embankment profile next to the proposed staircases on
either side of the underpass. Whilst | agree that the design of these structures is fairly
utilitarian in nature, | recognise that Network Rail design guidelines are stringent, and
the station design has to adhere to those. The design we have before us is a
considerable improvement over the footbridge option previously proposed, with the
platforms and lifts now being approximately the same height as the tree line along the
embankment ridge, whereas the previous design extended well above that to gain the
clearance of the tracks. | am therefore of the opinion that the design solution proposed
is acceptable in this instance as not only does it have a far reduced visual impact over
the previous scheme, it is fit for purpose and meets the design and safety guidelines
and regulations imposed by Network Rail.

105. With regard to external materials, the applicant advises that these would be finalised at
detailed design stage and would be chosen to be of the highest quality whilst also being
functional and durable. Again, the external materials and finishes have to accord with
Network Rail’s safety standards. The applicant advises that the lower part of the stairs
and the lift shafts would be constructed of facing blockwork, which is resistant to graffiti
as well as having a pleasant architectural finish. The upper stairs would be covered in
metal perforated cladding for which the choice was informed by the Security Steering
Group assessment of the station. This material enables visibility of passengers using the
stairs from the car park.

106. Having considered the above, it is important to note that the design and materials finish
is heavily constrained by Network Rail’'s design and safety guidelines and must be fit for
purpose and work operationally. In this instance, | am satisfied that the design proposed
would not have a significantly detrimental impact on the local landscape and would be
acceptable in design terms. Should permission be granted however, final details of all
materials to be used externally, including colour finish, should be submitted pursuant to
condition prior to the commencement of construction of the station. Subject to the
imposition of that condition, | am of the view that the development is in accordance with
the aims and objectives of development plan policies regarding general design
principles.

Summary - Siting and Design including Landscape and Visual Implications

107.Given the site’s allocation in the newly adopted Thanet Local Plan, the operational
requirements of the railway resulting in the selection of this site, and the loss of just 3
hectares of agricultural land, which in this case is not contrary to planning policy (due to
the sites allocation), | am satisfied that the application site is in the most appropriate and
practicable location, and that the development is acceptable in that regard. In my view
the proposal is in accordance with Thanet Local Plan policy SP26 which seeks
protection and enhancement of Landscape Character Areas, unless a development is
essential for the economic or social wellbeing of the area. In such cases, landscape
impacts should be minimised and mitigated as far as possible. Whilst it is accepted that
the TPW development would have some adverse effects on the local and wider
landscape as identified in the Environmental Statement (ES) and discussed above, |
consider that, in this instance, appropriate mitigations have been detailed in the ES and

Page 46 D1.40



Item D1
Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet -
TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019)

a demonstration of how the economic and public benefits outweigh those adverse effects
has been included in the supporting statement. Further, it is important to note that the
design and materials finish is heavily constrained by Network Rails design and safety
guidelines and must be fit for purpose and work operationally. In this instance, | am
satisfied that the design would not have a significantly detrimental impact on the local
landscape and, subject to satisfactory details of materials which would be addressed via
condition, would be acceptable in design terms. The development is therefore in
accordance with the aims and objectives of development plan policies regarding general
design principles. | therefore see no reason to refuse the application on these grounds.

Access and Highway Matters, including Public Right of Way

108.As set out in paragraph 54, this application has met with local objection on highway and
access grounds, including matters such as capacity of local roads, bus access to the
site, cycle and pedestrian access, and parking by station users in residential streets.
The NPPF and Thanet Local Plan Policies require development proposals to be
accompanied by an appropriate assessment of highway implications, and mitigation to
be provided if a development would impact on the transport network or highway safety.
Development should only be refused on highway grounds if there would be an
unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the residual cumulative impacts on the road
network would be severe. Chapter 11 of the submitted ES, and the associated Transport
Assessment (Appendix 11 A), considers the traffic and transport impacts of the
proposed development on the local highway network both during construction and
operational phases of the development, and this has been assessed by Highways and
Transportation (H&T) in their consideration of the scheme.

109. As set out in paragraph 49 of this report, H&T confirm that Thanet Parkway Station
forms a part of the emerging Thanet Transport Strategy, which in turn underpins the
Thanet Local Plan. It represents an important piece of transport infrastructure to
encourage increased use of rail-based travel in the locality, by complimenting the
existing stations within the District with improved vehicle access and vehicle parking
on offer. As previously discussed, TPW is also identified as a strategic priority within
KCC Local Transport Plan 4 and is consistent with several national transport
planning policies/strategies including the National Planning Policy Framework
(NPPF). Whilst it is important to recognise the strong policy position for TPW, it is
equally important that its access strategy is appropriately designed and does not
create overbearing residual impact on the surrounding highway network, or highway
safety issues. It is equally important to recognise the status of TPW as a
complimentary transport-based infrastructure to encourage sustainable travel and
relieve parking pressure around existing stations in the locality.

Capacity of the Local Highway Network

110.Before discussing the detail of the scheme in terms of access into the station and
parking matters, it is first important to consider whether the local highway network could
accommodate the additional vehicle movements that the station would generate. The
submitted Transport Assessment has forecast the number of passengers that would use
the station using various housing growth scenarios, and from that has forecast the
number of vehicle trips that the station would generate. It is forecast that during the
highway AM peak (07.30-08.30), TPW would generate 138 vehicle trips. The PM trips
are assumed to be the same as the AM, but it is noted that most commuters would
return to the station after 18.00, after the main highway movement peak.

Page 47 D1.41



Item D1
Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet -
TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019)

111.The TA also includes Junction Capacity Assessments (JCA) to consider the potential
impact of TPW on the local highway network, specifically the Sevenscore and Lord of
the Manor roundabouts located on the A299 Hengist Way. Those JCAs also include
consideration of housing development in the area, and the potential reopening of
Ramsgate Port. Highways and Transportation are satisfied with the survey
methodology, and the housing growth and local development scenarios that have been
tested. It must be recognised that every application for housing in the area would have
to be accompanied by some form of transport assessment, and that each development
would be expected to mitigate its own impacts on the highway network. The TA
submitted with this application has not considered any such mitigation, and therefore the
reality of future scenarios is likely to be better than those forecast. It should also be
noted that the reopening of Manston Airport has not been assessed within the TA, but
H&T are satisfied that no additional survey work is required in that regard and further
consider that TPW would enhance sustainable transport facilities for the airport.

112.The TA identifies that some approach arms of local junctions at Sevenscore and Lord of
the Manor roundabouts would be over capacity within the future due to forecast growth,
and that TPW would create a moderate level of additional queuing and delay. However,
H&T raise no objection to this application, and do not consider that the additional
highway movements generated by TPW would have a serve impact on the capacity of a
A299 and the Sevenscore and Lord of the Manor roundabouts. As noted above, these
forecasts are based on very robust modelling outputs and take no account for future
highway improvements that may be delivered as Local Plan growth is realised or
potential travel mode shift in Cliffsend. There is also a robust level of allowance for
theoretical recommencement of freight activities at Ramsgate Port, which may or may
not materialise in the future. | therefore am satisfied that the vehicle movements
generated by TPW would not have a severe impact on the A299 and the Sevenscore
and Lord of the Manor roundabouts, and therefore is acceptable.

113.In addition to the impact of additional vehicle movements on the A299 and the
Sevenscore and Lord of the Manor roundabouts, local residents also express concern
that TPW would increase the level of traffic using the local roads in the village of
Cliffsend, which are narrow in places and don’t all have pavements and, therefore, are
considered by residents to be unsafe for additional vehicle and/or pedestrian
movements. The majority of local concerns in this regard appear to relate to station
users parking in the village of Cliffsend and then walking to the station, rather than
paying to use the station car park. This matter will be discussed separately when
considering parking matters below. However, given that vehicular access to TPW would
be via the A299 only, and that the roads through Cliffsend would not be a short cut or
through road to gain access the station, | am satisfied that the local village roads would
not be adversely affected by vehicles accessing the station car park.

Access into the station

114. As set out in paragraph 33 of this report, TPW would be accessed via the westbound
lanes of the A299 Hengist Way with a signalised ‘left in / left out” T-junction. The
westbound lane on the A299 Hengist Way would be widened to provide a dedicated left
turn for Thanet Parkway Station, and a two-way single access road within the
application site would provide vehicular access and egress between the A299 Hengist
Way and the station.

115. The applicant advises that alternative options for the access were considered as the
project evolved, including a new access road directly from the Sevenscore roundabout.

Page 48 D1.42



Item D1
Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet -
TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019)

However, that would have resulted in a long access road to the station, thereby
increasing the footprint of the site on to the adjacent agricultural land, contrary to Local
Plan policy SP46. In addition, the roundabout would also need upgrading or enlarging to
incorporate an additional arm, and consequently this option was ruled out.

116. As set out in paragraph 49, H&T accept that the site access is located in a challenging
position in terms of topography and road geometry. However, the access has been
subject to an independent Stage 1 Road Safety Audit (RSA) and is acceptable from a
road safety perspective. It should be noted that the previous withdrawn planning
application (KCC/TH/0105/2018) proposed an all movements signal junction (i.e. access
and egress to both carriageways of the A299). H&T advise that there are benefits and
disbenefits to the current station access proposals, with a reduction in the amount of
delay to traffic on the A299 Hengist Way being an advantage, and an increase in
journey distance/time for those accessing the station (including any future bus services)
from the west of the station being a clear disadvantage.

117. H&T conclude that, on balance, whilst a suitable all movements access arrangement
would be the preferred solution, the current proposals are considered to be acceptable
and in accordance with planning policy. However, it is recommended that should
funding/land availability circumstances change, that the applicant consider the provision
of a suitable all movements access in the future, as that would enhance access and the
attractiveness of the station to residents to the west and improve access for buses in the
future.

118.Having considered the above, | am satisfied that the access as now proposed is
acceptable on highway safety grounds and therefore see no overriding reason to refuse
the application on this ground. However, should permission be granted, | consider that
an informative should be added to encourage the applicant to consider the provision of a
suitable all movements access in the future should funding/land availability change.

Bus Access

119.The station proposals include facilities for buses so that commercial operators are not
prevented from serving the station in future. However, the provision of a bus service that
stops at TPW would be a commercial decision for those operators based not solely on
demand at the new station but also the influence of new development identified in the
Local Plan and the reopening of the Manston Airport site. H&T are satisfied with this
arrangement. Although it would appear that there are no immediate plans by
commercial bus operators to stop at the station, it is eminently sensible to provide areas
within the site for future bus services, as there are plans to link with Manston Airport via
a shuttle bus arrangement. Therefore, should permission be granted, a condition would
be imposed requiring the submission of details of the permanent bus shelter facilities,
and thereafter ongoing retention. Subject to this condition, | am satisfied that the
development is designed to accommodate bus services and that the development is
therefore in accordance with the underlying principles of Thanet Local Plan policy TP04
and SP46.

Parking Provision including Parking in Local Roads and Prevention of Access from
Earlsmead Crescent

120. As set out in paragraph 32 of this report, this application includes the 317 car parking
bays. This includes 16 disabled bays, a dedicated area for motorcycles, 60 spaces
offering electric car charging points (30 active and 30 passive), and a dedicated area for

Page 49 D1.43



Iltem D1

Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet -
TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019)

121

pick up/drop off, accommodating 20 vehicles including taxis. This level of parking
provision has not met with objection, and | am satisfied that sufficient car parking is
proposed to accommodate the forecast number of vehicle trips to the site, as required
by Thanet Local Plan policy TP06. However, should permission be granted, |
recommend that a condition of consent be imposed requiring the provision and
permeant retention of the vehicle parking spaces prior to first use of the site, and a
further condition be imposed requiring the submission of the details of the electric
vehicle charging points, and their subsequent provision and retention.

.Local residents have however expressed concern that users of the station would choose

to park in local roads and walk to the site, rather than pay for carparking charges.
PROW TR32 would link the application site to the village of Cliffsend and beyond, as is
currently the case. There is also an existing informal access from Earlsmead Crescent
that links with PROW TR32 as its joins the underpass.

122.With regard to the informal access, it has been suggested that this should be blocked to

prevent access to the station from Earlsmead Crescent. This application does not
include any formal access to TPW from Earlsmead Crescent, but it is understood that
local residents do use the route informally via the garage block to access the fields
behind Earlsmead Crescent. To alleviate such concerns regarding future use as an
informal access to the station, the applicant has agreed to reconstruct the fencing at the
back of the garage block during the construction phase of the project, which would then
need to be maintained by the landowner. These works are not included as part of the
planning application, however, and would not therefore form part of any approved
works. | accept this good will gesture of the applicant, and also appreciate that it is local
informal route so there is no planning requirement to divert or stop this up.

123. On-street parking by rail users would not meet the aims of the project, which is

designed to be accessed from the A299 rather than increasing traffic on local roads, and
nor would it be conducive to a stable revenue stream to cover the operational costs of
the car park. The applicant does not want any off-station parking to have a detrimental
impact on local residents but recognises that the imposition of parking restrictions may
also have negative impacts. Therefore, the applicant intends to monitor post-opening
and implement a solution with local resident consultation should this be necessary. The
applicant has submitted a signed Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) which sets out
an agreement between the applicant and the Highways, Transportation & Waste
Directorate to address this.

124 .Under the agreement, the applicant commits to monitoring on-street parking within a

600m radius of the new station after opening in comparison to levels prior to opening
through means of a parking beat survey, i.e. a count of on-street parked vehicles.
Should on-street parking levels after opening be found to be of a level than is having
an unreasonable detrimental impact on local amenity, the applicant would commit to
implementing measures to alleviate the problem up to a total capped value of
£15,000 (including survey costs). This could be the introduction of a controlled
parking zone (CPZ) in the residential streets surrounding the new station, on which
this figure has been based. A CPZ would need to be implemented in conjunction with
Thanet District Council and be subject to consultation with the local community.
There are a range of options for such a scheme, which could include a 30-minute ban on
parking at a time when there is likely to be commuter parking (for example 11:00 to
11:30) or a permit scheme for residents.

Page 50 D1.44



Item D1
Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet -
TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019)

125.Highway and Transportation are satisfied that the MoU addresses potential concerns
over parking displacement within surrounding local roads. Should Members be
minded to grant permission, the MoU would be approved as part of the application
documentation and the applicant would be required to adhere to its contents. In
considering the mitigation proposed by the applicant, | am satisfied that car parking
on local roads by users of the station would be monitored by the applicant and, if
deemed necessary, appropriate parking restrictions could be introduced.

Footway and Cycle links including PROW

126. Pedestrian access to TPW is proposed to be provided from the south using the existing
railway underpass which connects to the existing PROW (TR32) that runs adjacent to
the railway line. An additional footpath/cycleway is proposed to the north of the station
connecting to Clive Road. This additional footpath/cycleway would pass along the
southern edge of the proposed car park and over the A299 Hengist Way following the
existing PROW and farm access track. Once north of the A299 Hengist Way, the
proposed footway/cycleway would run along the eastern edge of the field and connect
with Clive Road. The proposed development would not create a new cycleway from the
southern entrance to the station through the underpass because this would create an
unacceptable conflict between station users (some of whom may be persons of reduced
mobility) and cyclists. The cycleway connection is only designed to connect from the
bicycle parking at TPW to Clive Road to the north. Nevertheless, the proposed
development would improve the surface of the footpath through the underpass and on
the southern side of the embankment to the point where the access to the lifts and
platform would be. For avoidance of doubt, the definitive route of PROW TR32 would
not be changed as a result of the TPW development.

127.Kent County Council’'s Public Rights of Way Officer initially suggested that the PROW
improvements associated with the TPW development should be extended to Cottington
Road to the South, and Canterbury Road West to the north. However, housing
developments to the north and south of TPW that have been approved by Thanet
District Council are both subject to S106 agreements to link with PROW TR32, providing
a connection through to the station. Therefore, these links to Cottington Road to the
South and Canterbury Road West to the North have already been secured.

128. Having considered the above, the County Council’s Public Rights of Way Officer raises
no objection to this application subject to the imposition of a condition of consent
requiring the submission and approval of a scheme of access and construction works
setting out any path alignment, surfacing, width and signage details within 6 months of
the date of the permission, and a further condition requiring the delivery of the approved
works prior to first use/occupation of the development. In addition, H&T require the
submission of details of secure, covered cycle parking facilities prior to use of the site
commencing, and their subsequent provision and retention. Subject to the imposition of
these conditions, | am satisfied that the development would offer good pedestrian and
cycle links. This accords with Thanet Local Plan policies SP44, TP02 & TPO03, all of
which require new development to have safe and convenient pedestrian and cycle
access.

Summary - Access and Highway Matters, including Public Right of Way

129.Thanet Parkway Station forms a part of the emerging Thanet Transport Strategy, which
in turn underpins the Thanet Local Plan. It represents an important piece of transport
infrastructure to encourage increased use of rail-based travel in the locality, by

Page 51 D1.45



Item D1
Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet -
TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019)

complimenting the existing stations within the district with improved vehicle access and
vehicle parking offer. Whilst it is important to recognise the strong policy position for
TPW, it is equally important that its access strategy is appropriately designed and does
not create overbearing residual impact on the surrounding highway network, or highway
safety issues. It is equally important to recognise the status of TPW as a complimentary
transport-based infrastructure to encourage sustainable travel and relieve parking
pressure around existing stations in the locality.

130.Having considered the content of the submitted ES Chapter 11 and the Transport
Assessment, and taking into account the advice provided by H&T and Public Rights of
Way, | am satisfied that the proposed development would not have a significantly
detrimental impact on the local highway network. Although vehicle movements
generated by TPW would impact on the A299 and the Sevenscore and Lord of the
Manor roundabouts, that impact is not considered to be severe and is therefore
acceptable. Further, subject to the imposition of the conditions discussed above, | am
satisfied that the development would be designed to accommodate bus access, would
have good pedestrian and cycle access, and would have sufficient parking to
accommodate the forecast need, including the provision of EV charging bays. The
requirements of policy SP46, which allocates the site for a station, with regard to
access, parking and public transport provision are, in my view, met by this application.
Further, the mitigation proposed by the applicant in terms of monitoring on street car
parking and implementing parking restrictions if deemed necessary, as detailed within
the submitted MoU, would address the possible issue of users of the station parking in
local roads and walking to the site. The works to the level crossings would be
undertaken by network rail as part of their routine maintenance and upgrade works, and
any highway implications of those works would be considered and addressed by
Network Rail, as is usual practice. | am therefore satisfied that the development adheres
to the underlying principles of the NPPF and Thanet Local Plan policies regarding
highway and access considerations.

Amenity Concerns — lighting, overlooking and air & noise pollution

131.Local residents have expressed concern over the amenity impacts of the development
in terms of increased lighting, overlooking/loss of privacy, and increase air and noise
pollution. | shall discuss each of these matters in turn in the following section of this
report.

Light Pollution

132.Thanet Local Plan Policy SE08 requires development proposals that include the
provision of new outdoor lighting to minimise light glare, light trespass, light spillage and
sky glow to ensure that there is no adverse impact on residential amenity (and also
ecological interests (see paragraphs 143 to 145)). As set out in paragraph 35 and 36 of
this report, the lighting within the car park and all external areas is proposed to be light
emitting diode (LED) street lighting mounted on columns. All columns within the car park
would be approximately 5m tall and all other external area columns would be
approximately 8m tall, with final details to be confirmed at detailed design. The platforms
would be illuminated by linear LED luminaires. The lighting within the enclosed
underpass, stairs and waiting shelters would be ceiling mounted LED linear luminaires
to illuminate the floor level. Lighting for the underpass and car park is proposed to be on
a light and movement sensor, with light levels taking into consideration the CCTV and
requirement for facial recognition. Emergency lighting is also proposed in the waiting

Page 52 D1.46



Item D1
Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet -
TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019)

areas, the underpass and areas outside the station which form part of an emergency
escape route.

133.At this stage of the application process, although indicative details are provided, exact
lux levels and the position and design of luminaires is not known and would be part of
the following detailed design process, should permission be granted. However, the
closest residential properties to the development are located to the south of the railway
embankment, whereas the main station infrastructure would be to the north. Residential
properties to the north would be separated from the station by the existing A299 Hengist
way, which is lit, and would be over 250 metres from the development.

134.Chapter 7 of the ES (Landscape and Visual) does address and consider the lighting
impacts associated with TPW, and states that the scale and extent of the new lighting
would result in localised light spillage, but set in the context of existing road and
residential lighting, the impact is assessed as neutral. The impact of light glare on
properties to the north of the application site was considered to be minor adverse,
whereas the impact of light glare on properties to the south from the lighting of the
platforms and underpass was considered to be moderate adverse. However, the
platform lighting would not be a direct glare due to proposed acoustic and security
fencing, and the underpass lighting would also be low level, set behind existing
residential boundary fencing and planting, and would also be activated by motion sensor
so not on at all times.

135.By the nature of the development, the introduction of additional lighting in the area is
unavoidable. However, that lighting should have a negligible impact on sky glow in
considering existing road and residential lighting. | do not consider that properties to the
north of the development would be significantly adversely affected by glare from the
lighting of the station and car park but accept that properties to the south could be
moderately adversely affected. However, this moderate impact has to be balanced
against the strategic and policy support for the station, and the case of need and
established economic benefits the TPW would bring to the local area. However, to
protect the amenity of those properties as far as practicably possible, | consider that,
should permission be granted, a detailed scheme of external lighting should be
submitted pursuant to condition, including lux levels and light spill diagrams. Subject to
that condition, | am satisfied that the development is acceptable on lighting grounds in
this instance.

Overlooking/Loss of Privacy

136.0verlooking of properties to the south of the application site has also been raised as a
concern. The platform structures would be approximately 6 metres above ground level,
with lift and enclosed stair access at the eastern end of the platforms. The rear elevation
of properties to the south of the site would be approximately 50 metres from the
platforms, and separated by the proposed station infrastructure, existing and proposed
planting, and existing boundary fencing. In addition, a 2.4metre high acoustic screen
would run the entire length of the platforms. Such screening, by its nature, is solid and
would not allow views out from the platforms to surrounding development. The lift shafts
and staircases would also be enclosed, again restricting views out of the site. Whilst |
appreciate that the outlook from local properties would change as a result of the
development and that until landscaping is mature that change maybe quite stark, that is
not an overriding ground for refusal of this application. | am however satisfied that the
development is designed to minimise impact on the amenity of neighbouring residents,

Page 53 D1.47



Item D1
Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet -
TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019)

and that overlooking of local properties has been precluded as far as is practicable by
fencing and landscaping.

Air Pollution

137.As set out in paragraph 10 of this report, the A299 Hengist Way is included within the
Thanet Urban Air Quality Management Area. That AQMA is the only one in Thanet and
encompasses the urban areas of Thanet including Ramsgate, Margate, Broadstairs and
Birchington. Chapter 13 of the ES has studied in detail the potential air quality impacts
of the proposed development and consequently recommended appropriate mitigation
measures. The assessment has considered the potential for impacts during the
construction phase, including from construction activities and construction road traffic,
and from operational road traffic and emissions from the trains themselves, and
identified possible sensitive receptors for each phase.

138.The operational phase of the development is concluded as resulting in negligible
impacts on air quality, but the construction phase requires mitigation measures to
reduce dust and air pollution. The ES considers that a Construction Environmental
Management Plan should be submitted prior to the commencement of the main
development works setting out dust control measures and suitable mitigation where
necessary. The County Council’s Air Quality Advisor raises no objection to the
application subject to a condition securing the submission of Construction
Environmental Management Plans (CEMPs) for each construction phase, (see
paragraphs 156 and 157) as set out in the ES. | am therefore satisfied that, subject to
this condition, the proposal would not have an adverse impact on air quality or the
Thanet Urban AQMA.

Noise Pollution

139.Thanet Local Plan Policy SE06 states that proposals that generate a significant level of
noise must be accompanied by a scheme to mitigate such effects, bearing in mind the
nature of surrounding land uses. In addition to the noise generated by the trains on the
existing track, the construction of a station would add additional noise sources both
during construction and operation (such as the public address system, see paragraph
37). Local residents have expressed concern over the impact of this additional noise on
their amenity.

140.Chapter 12 of the submitted ES includes a robust assessment of the operational rail
noise impact which concludes that train noise would be no worse than the baseline
scenario. This conclusion was achieved by undertaking additional noise monitoring at a
similar station (Birchington-on-Sea) in order to differentiate and compare high speed
passing train noise (current situation) with noise from a train arriving at a station
(proposed situation). The measured data showed that an arriving train was slightly
quieter than a passing train, but the actual train arrival event was slightly longer. The net
effect was a marginal higher noise level of 0.4 dB. The County Council’s Noise Advisor
has reviewed this information in detail and supports the conclusion of the ES that a 0.4
dB change in noise is negligible (and not a perceptible change) and is therefore
acceptable.

141.The County Council’s Noise advisor also welcomes the inclusion of a 2.4m acoustic
barrier at the rear of the platforms as this would mitigate impacts arising from potential
brake squeal and engine acceleration at receptors to the north-east and south-east of
the station site. The public address system is also considered acceptable, and the ES

Page 54 D1.48



Item D1
Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet -
TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019)

concludes that noise emission from that would be within the recommended limits. The
operational phase of the station is concluded within the ES to have a negligible impact,
subject to the provision of the acoustic barriers. Subject to the imposition of condition to
secure the provision of the acoustic barriers prior to first use of the development, | am
satisfied that the station when operating would not have a detrimental impact on the
amenity of local residents with regard to noise.

142. However, the ES does identify that mitigation is required during the construction phase
The ES considers that a Construction Environmental Management Plan should be
submitted prior to the commencement of the main development works setting out noise
control measures and suitable mitigation where necessary. The County Council’s Noise
Advisor raises no objection to the application subject to a condition securing the
submission of Construction Environmental Management Plans (CEMPs) for each
construction phase, (see paragraph 156 and 157) as set out in the ES. | am therefore
satisfied that subject to this condition, the proposal would not have an adverse impact
on the amenity of the locality as a result of noise. The requirement of policy SP46, which
allocates the site for a station, with regard to noise impacts is, in my view, met by this
application.

Biodiversity

143.Chapter 8 of the ES inlcudes an Ecological Impact Assessment that considers
designated sites, habitats and species on, or in the surrounding area of the application
site, which could be affected by the proposed development. It is concluded within the ES
that both during the construction and operational phases of the development that
designated sites for nature conservation, of which there are six within 2 kilometres of the
application site (see paragraph 6), would not be adversely impacted by the
development. | am therefore satisfied the development is acceptable in that regard, in
accordance with Thanet Local Plan policy GI01.

144 With regard to species on or surrounding the application site, the ES recommends
mitigation during the construction phase in the form of the submission and approval of a
Construction Environmental Management Plan prior to the commencement of the main
works. Such a plan would ensure that construction activities would not adversely impact
on protected species. Therefore, and in accordance with the requirements of the County
Council’s Biodiversity Officer, | consider that should permission be granted a condition
of consent should be imposed requiring the submission of a Construction Environmental
Management Plan. Subject to that condition, and the mitigation measures contained
within that plan, | am satisfied that the construction of the development would not have a
detrimental impact on protected species or local wildlife.

145.During the operational phase however, the Ecological Impact Assessment concludes
that there would be a moderate adverse (significant) residual impact of lighting on bat
activity. It is noted however that the conclusion is precautionary given that the detailed
lighting scheme would be submitted pursuant to condition. The County Council’s
Biodiversity Officer raises no objection to this application, but notes that the Planning
Authority should consider this potential ‘moderate adverse’ impact on bats (as worst
case scenario) when determining the application. Should permission be granted, a
condition of consent would require the submission of details of a sensitive lighting
scheme that minimises and avoids impacts to foraging and commuting bats. There is a
potential that the detailed lighting scheme may demonstrate that the impact on bat
activity may not be ‘moderate adverse’, and could be a ‘negligible’ impact. However, that
may not be the case, so that adverse impact needs to be balanced against the merits of

Page 55 D1.49



Item D1
Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet -
TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019)

the scheme and its accepted case of need, economic impact, and strong policy support.
In this instance, given the fact that the site is designated for the provision of a railway
station, and the role that TPW would take in the regeneration of East Kent, | consider
that, on balance the potential ‘moderate adverse’ impact on bat activity, should that be
the case, is an insufficient ground on which to refuse this application.

146.Lastly, The ES states that biodiversity net gain is an aim of the project, with a
commitment to take reasonable steps to achieve net gain. Thanet Local Plan Policy
SP30 requires development proposals to make a positive contribution to the
conservation, enhancement and management of biodiversity assets resulting in a net
gain for biodiversity assets. The County Council’s Biodiversity Officer recommends that,
should permission be granted, a condition of consent be imposed regarding the
submission and approval of a biodiversity plan demonstrating biodiversity net gain.
Subiject to the imposition of that condition and given that the applicants confirm that net
gain is an aim of the project, | am satisfied that the proposal accords with the underlying
principles of Local Plan Policy SP30, and that the development would achieve
biodiversity net gain.

Water Resources, Flood Risk and Ground Conditions

147 .As set out in paragraph 24 and 25 of this report, following submission of this application
an objection was initially received from Southern Water which related to the proximity of
the built development on the site to a water main. The proposal was subsequently
amended to address the concerns of Southern Water, including a slight revision to the
position of the platform structures, lift shafts and staircases to ensure that built
development was outside of the required 6 metre clearance of the truck main, and
amendments to the infiltration pond and landscaping scheme. Southern Water
subsequently raise no objection to this application and are satisfied that the proposal
would not adversely affect Southern Water's apparatus. However, ongoing dialogue
between the applicant and Southern Water would be required during the construction of
the development. Southern Water have also provided detailed advice with regard to
protection of apparatus, sustainable drainage, surface water, petrol interceptors and
land drainage. Should permission be granted, | consider it appropriate to append
Southern Waters advice to the decision and add an informative to the consent to draw
the applicants attention to the matters raised. Subject to that, | am satisfied that the
development would not adversely affect Southern Waters apparatus that crosses the
site and would meet with their requirements and guidance.

148.The application site is located within a Ground Water Source Protection Zone, and
therefore it is essential that drainage from the site does not contaminate ground water
resources. The applicant is proposing a surface water drainage strategy for the site,
including the use of permeable paving across large areas of the application site, which
would attenuate storm water before releasing it slowly into the ground. A swale and
infiltration basin (storm water balancing pond) have also been incorporated into the
design to manage surface water runoff from the adjacent undeveloped land, which
would minimise the risk of flooding to the railway station and car park. Chapter 10 of the
ES concludes that the development as proposed would not have an adverse impact on
water resources or flood risk, and that the implementation of the drainage scheme would
actually have a beneficial effect on flood risk in the vicinity of the site.

149.Both the Environment Agency and the the County Council’'s Flood Risk Team (SuDs)
raise no objection to this application and are satisfied with the outline drainage details
provided within the planning application documentation. However, further information is

Page 56 D1.50



Item D1
Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet -
TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019)

required pursuant to planning condition, should permission be granted. Therefore, |
recommend that conditions should be imposed to any permission requiring the
submission of a detailed surface water drainage scheme prior to the commencement of
the development (the main station an car park works), the submission of a verification
report pertaining to the above prior to fist occupation/use of the development, control
over the infiltration of surface water to ground, and restrictions on piling and other
foundation designs using penetrative methods. Subject to the above, | am satisfied that
the development would not adversely affect the Ground Water Source Protection Zone
and would result in an improvement in drainage in the vicinity of the site, in accordance
with policies CC02 & SE04 of the Thanet Local Plan.

150.With regard to ground conditions, chapter 15 of the ES has considered this in detail and
concludes that when operational, the development as proposed would have a negligible
impact on ground conditions. However, in order to protect ground conditions during
construction, the Environment Agency require conditions of consent to be imposed,
should permission be granted. Subject to the imposition of these condition, which
require the submission of a remediation strategy to deal with risks associated with land
contamination prior to commencement of the development (other than enabling works),
submission of a verification report regarding the remediation strategy prior to first use of
the development, and the ceasing of work should unexpected contamination be found, |
am satisfied that ground conditions would not be adversely affected by the development.

Climate Change/Sustainability

151.Chapter 17 of the ES considers the impact of the proposal on climate change and
concludes that ‘there are no significant residual climate change effects associated with
the proposed development’. TPW represents an important piece of sustainable transport
infrastructure to encourage increased use of rail-based travel in the locality, by
complimenting the existing stations within the district with improved vehicle, pedestrian,
and cycle access, and infrastructure to support future bus access. 60 spaces offering
electric vehicle charging points are also proposed (30 active, 30 passive) which is over
10% of the 297 spaces proposed (317 including 20 drop off spaces). Given the
conclusions of the ES, and the inclusion of electric vehicle charging points, and the
sustainable urban drainage system that would be implemented, | am satisfied that the
proposal includes sustainable design features and would not have an unacceptable
adverse impact on climate change.

152.Although not part of this scheme, the applicant is looking into the potential to cover an
area of the car park with canopy structures which would accommodate PV panels. Such
development would be subject to a separate full and detailed planning application, and
the landscape and visual implications of such development would need to be considered
at that time. However, | would advise that an informative be added to encourage the
applicant to investigate this matter further.

Cultural Heritage/Archaeology

153.As set out in paragraph 5 of this report, St Augustine’s Cross, which is a Grade Il Listed
monument, lies approximately 90metres to the south of the application site on the far
side of Cottington Road. In addition, five other Listed Buildings are located within a
kilometre of the site, but physically separated from it by existing built development. The
previous withdrawn planning application with the footbridge connection between the
platforms, met with objection from the County Council’s Conservation Officer due to the
impact of that footbridge on the setting of St Augustine’s Cross. As can be seen from

Page 57 D1.51



Item D1
Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet -
TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019)

paragraph 49 of this report, the County Council’s Conservation Officer now concludes
that any negative visual effects arising as a result of the development on the setting of
the historic assets in the area are likely to be of minor significance, and no objections
are raised. It is also of note that Historic England do not wish to offer any comment on
this application.

154.Chapter 9 of the submitted ES has assessed the impacts and effects that the proposal
would have on local heritage assets and also concludes that impacts on local listed
buildings would be negligible. However, this conclusion is made on the assumption of
the provision and maturing of a scheme of landscaping. As also advised by the County
Council’'s Conservation Officer, it is essential that the proposed landscaping scheme is
implemented. As set out in paragraph 97 of this report, a scheme of landscaping and its
subsequent implementation would be secured by planning condition should permission
be granted. Subject to the imposition of that condition, | am satisfied that the proposed
development would not have an adverse impact on the setting of local listed buildings,
specifically St Augustine’s Cross.

155.Chapter 9 of the ES has also assessed the impacts and effects of the proposal on
archaeological remains. Further mitigation was advised, in the form of further
archaeological investigation. To avoid having to undertake such work post decision
(should permission be granted) the applicant has submitted a Written Scheme of
Investigation for consideration as part of this application. The County Council’s
Archeological Officer has assessed this information and considers the Scheme of
Investigation to be a suitable scheme of works to address the archaeological mitigation
of the scheme impacts. However, it is recommended that a suitably worded condition be
imposed to secure the implementation of these work, in accordance with a timetable
agreed directly with the County Archaeologist. Subject to the imposition of such a
condition, | am satisfied that the development would not adversely affect archaeological
interests.

Construction

156.As set out in paragraph 43 of this report, the development is proposed to be constructed
in 5 phases. The first of these phases involves vegetation clearance on the A299
Hengist Way to enable the site access to be constructed (Phase B). The County
Council’s Biodiversity Officer is satisfied that sufficient information has been submitted
with this application to enable Phase A to commence without the submission of further
information. The works are essentially routine highway maintenance works, and |
understand from the applicant that H&T have agreed a programme of works for this. |
am therefore satisfied that phase A could commence without the submission of any
additional information. Further, phase E (level crossing and signalling works) would be
undertaken by Network Rail and would be subject to their own policies and practices
with regard to undertaking the works. | do not consider that the County Planning
Authority need to see any additional information in that regard.

157.With regard to the main construction phases (B, C & D), | consider that a Construction
Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) should be submitted to the County Planning
Authority for approval prior to the commencement of each phase. The CEMP would
need to include and address the requirements of the County Council’s Biodiversity
Officer to ensure the protection of bats, reptiles, badgers, hedgehogs and breeding
birds, the County Council’'s Noise and Air Quality advisors in terms of mitigation
measures required to protect the amenity of the locality from adverse noise and dust
arising from construction, and Highway and Transportation to ensure that the local

Page 58 D1.52



Item D1
Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet -
TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019)

highway network would not be adversely affected by construction activities. Hours of
working should also be specified within each CEMP, in addition to details regarding
contractor liaison with the local community and provision of details of site personnel for
local residents to contact should matters arise. Subject to the imposition of a condition
requiring the submission and approval of a Construction Environmental Management
Plan prior to the commencement of phases B, C & D, to include the information
specified above, | am satisfied that any adverse impacts arising from the construction
phases with regard wildlife, the local highway network and the amenity of local residents
would be mitigated as far as practicably possible.

Conclusion

158. This application proposes the construction of a new rail station with associated car
parking, access, landscaping and other ancillary works at land at Cliffsend in Thanet.
The proposal has given rise to a variety of planning issues, including landscape
considerations and loss of agricultural land, design, access and highway matters,
ecological impacts, drainage matters, heritage matters, and general amenity concerns,
along with the need for the development. These matters have been considered and
addressed throughout this report and must be balanced against the strong strategic and
policy support for Thanet Parkway (TPW), including the specific allocation of the
application site for a new station under Policy SP46 of the newly adopted Thanet Local
Plan. The development would satisfy the strategic objectives of the County Councils
Local Transport Plan 4; Delivering Growth without Gridlock, specifically the strategic
transport priority of Journey Time Improvements (JTI). With regard to economic
objectives, TPW supports the aim of the Growth and Infrastructure Framework (GIF)
prepared by the County Council and Medway Council, in terms of providing improved
journey times and connections to London to support economic growth in East Kent. The
proposed development is also a regional priority for the South East Local Enterprise
Partnership (SELEP) and, at a National level, meets the Government’s objectives of
improvements to the country’s transport infrastructure to support economic growth and
enhance connectivity. Subject to planning permission, the project stands to benefit from
£14 million of funding from SELEP and a further £11.999 million from the national
Getting Building Fund, both material considerations for the purpose of determining this
application.

159.In determining development proposals, planning legislation states that applications must
be determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations
indicate otherwise. The recently adopted Thanet Local Plan states at Policy SP46 that;

Land west of Cliffsend is safeguarded for a new railway station. Proposals will be
required to specifically demonstrate all of the following:

1) satisfactory vehicular access arrangements from the A299,

2) suitable level of car parking,

3) integration with wider public transport services,

4) mitigation of any noise impacts on sensitive receptors,

5) compatibility with the landscape character of its location, &

6) located to minimise the loss of best and most versatile agricultural land.

160. | am satisfied that the applicant has demonstrated that the site would have satisfactory
vehicular access arrangements from the A299, a suitable level of car parking, and
infrastructure in place to enable integration with wider public transport services. Further,
as discussed in paragraph 139 to 142 of this report, any noise impacts on sensitive

Page 59 D1.53



Iltem D1

Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet -
TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019)

161

receptors would be adequately mitigated. The landscape implications of the
development have been considered and assessed in detail and deemed to be
acceptable in this case, subject to the implementation of a scheme of landscaping.
Further, the location and layout of the development has been developed to minimise
loss of agricultural land, and would result in the loss of approximately 3 hectares of best
and most versatile agricultural land, which is regarded as being negligible and not
overriding.

.I am therefore satisfied that the application as proposed meets all of the requirements of

Policy SP46 and therefore consider that the application is in full accordance with the
Local Plan designation. Further, having examined the information included within the
submitted Environmental Statement, | am satisfied that, subject to the imposition of the
conditions outlined in this report, the development would not have any significant and
overriding effects on the environment. In my view, the development would not give rise
to any significant material harm and is in accordance with the general aims and
objectives of the relevant Development Plan Policies. The NPPF states that proposals
that accord with an up-to-date Local Plan should be approved without delay.

162.Subject to the imposition of conditions, | am of the opinion that the proposed

development would not give rise to any material harm and is otherwise in accordance
with the general aims and objectives of the relevant Development Plan Policies and the
guidance contained in the NPPF and other material considerations (as set out in
paragraph 48 of this report) and is sustainable development. | therefore recommend
accordingly that planning permission be granted subject to compliance with the agreed
Memorandum of Understanding and conditions.

Recommendation

163.

I recommend that subject to compliance with the agreed Memorandum of
Understanding PLANNING PERMISSION BE GRANTED SUBJECT TO conditions,
including conditions covering:

» the standard 3 year time limit for implementation;

» the development to be carried out in accordance with the permitted details;

» the submission and approval of details of all materials to be used externally prior to

the commencement of the construction of the station and car park;

» the submission of a detailed scheme of external lighting including lux levels and
light spill diagrams, and details of how the lighting aims to minimise impacts to
foraging and commuting bats, prior to the commencement of the construction of the
station and car park;,

» the submission of a biodiversity plan demonstrating biodiversity net gain;

+ tree retention and protection of trees to be retained, including root protection areas;

» the submission and approval of a scheme of landscaping and tree planting prior to
the commencement of the development (apart from enabling works and site
clearance), including the provision of early tree planting if possible;

» implementation of the approved landscaping scheme in the first planting season
following completion of the development, and replacement of any trees/plants that
are damaged/diseased/dead within 5 years from the completion of the
development;

* should any mounding be proposed details to be submitted and agreed by the
County Planning Authority;

+ all tree work to be undertaken in accordance with BS3998:2012 ‘Recommendations
for Tree Work’;

Page 60 D1.54



Item D1
Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet -
TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019)

» the submission of details of the permanent bus shelter facilities prior to bus
services commencing, and thereafter ongoing retention;

» provision and permanent retention of vehicle parking spaces prior to use of the
site commencing;

+ the submission of details of the Electric Vehicle Charging Points as indicated on
the application drawings, and thereafter ongoing retention;

» the submission of details of secure, covered cycle parking facilities prior to use of
the site commencing, and thereafter ongoing retention;

» the submission and approval of a scheme of access and construction works setting
out any path alignment, surfacing, width and signage details within 6 months of the
date of the permission,

» the delivery of the approved PROW works prior to first use/occupation of the
development.

» the implementation of the archaeological scheme of investigation;

» the submission of a detailed Sustainable Surface Water Drainage Scheme prior to
the commencement of the development (works on the main station and car park);

» the submission of a verification report pertaining to the approved SuDs scheme
prior to first occupation/use of the development;

» control over the infiltration of surface water to ground;

+ restrictions on piling and other foundation designs using penetrative methods;

* submission of a remediation strategy to deal with risks associated with land
contamination prior to commencement of the development (works on the main
station and car park),

» submission of a verification report regarding the remediation strategy prior to first
use of the development,

» development to cease should contamination not previously identified be found to be
present at the site;

* installation of the 2.4metre high acoustic barriers to the rear of the platforms prior to
first use of the development;

» the submission and approval of a Construction Environmental Management Plan
prior to the commencement of phases B, C & D, to include details regarding the
protection of bats, reptiles, badgers, hedgehogs and breeding birds, mitigation
measures required to protect the amenity of the locality from adverse noise and dust
arising from construction, measures to ensure that the local highway network would
not be adversely affected by construction activities, hours of working, details
regarding contractor liaison with the local community and provision of details of site
personnel for local residents to contact should matters arise.

164.] FURTHER RECOMMEND THAT the applicant BE ADVISED of the following
informatives:

¢ the applicant is encouraged to consider the provision of a suitable all movements
access in the future should further funding/land become available;

e the applicant should give consideration to the inclusion of canopy structures within
the car park which could incorporate an array of solar panels. Such development
would need to be subject to a separate detailed planning application.

¢ the applicant’s attention is drawn to the advice and guidance provided by Southern
Water with regard to protection of apparatus, sustainable drainage, foul and surface
water drainage, petrol interceptors and land drainage. The letters containing this
advice would be attached to the decision notice.

e the applicant is encouraged to explore the potential to incorporate public art into the
development;

Page 61 D1.55



Item D1
Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet -
TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019)

e in addition to dialogue with British Transport Police, the applicant and Network Rail
are encouraged to have further dialogue with the Designing out Crime Officer at
Kent Police;

Case officer — Mary Green 03000 413379

Background documents - See section heading

Page 62 D1.56



Appendix 1 - Item D1

Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet - TH/19/1696

(KCC/TH/0256/2019)

Wider Site Location Plan

' X i oL, byacdoct NSEh \

Vi ol T T »°. .&‘J ” i 5 ol o G5 U

WA OO O = %}§%; BROAD
Ok . o7 1 ~" g\ g 3 ‘ l f‘

S >
Z,

k =, \ 5 7
— a > Park < R ) 7 N
e "I',‘E‘.\\&\k\ <Hy \@‘k\}% "?E\i SN
=27, 5 \Q IS N RN
U= |50 cad <0, \ \/:",\:',/ @& S
— hq[] =X ' \\§ LY. y
(rems s S mesionen & D)
< 25 - fi:,
It = 597
_-=”l/ * el
f E <
i‘ 1)
4 \
118,

,’ 2 SUCSR ()] 7 ==
X : ‘ st :
ON 5 ¢ B 57 I Fﬁj = :%\Tj?.%
l;f S b | $& § oot 2 < ’;’-""-%l: \EﬁSg}; .,E*J Eﬁ"g\ h Clft( 7
A RS A=l
"‘S,«m‘ TOSCh _ <= v S\ ¢ N[ Dumpton Gap
i | ‘ 7 0
% =120\ VA 7/

- ! ¢ ‘@.\' A ‘w.%\‘ 'nl = 66
*1  Application A f{‘g‘%{/ : S ?}.«
~  Site = e /

: - ) g/
] 5/ Lawre 7 D 44 \
AR A S o= T 0T RAMS GATE -
o ot or, Y T/ "«\\‘\ X 7 o

@ ﬂl:[_jﬁ
= = v"r',’.:““

Pdgwell Bay {
Mud & Sand /

N |
Ebbsfleet :

l“ (HJZ(BS{:‘ Isite'o anding },/ A) ; "
“Reof t Sa:xonséslﬁ Aug 'm;sﬂ 63

~

op nﬂean‘ Shell Ness £ Kent County Council
e £ 2019 Crown Copyright Ordnance Survey
5§
N ' an

Page 63 Appendix D1



Appendix 1 - Item D1
Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet - TH/19/1696
(KCC/TH/0256/2019)

Site Location Plan

% T BFE S TR
' 4 Ve, & £ [NFo o2 | Hainei
% > AP Hamirer B s =
Tartiwerk H R /0% 01 035\ Haine 02
Mandtons of Y& \ S R
b Court_t__& RN \ \ ) 'l
(gL (
Yo Xt T EeELtling Streer. ‘.5”' :
Spmlhl S 3
Manston 0% & AP ‘Fm

ms(on Fa
" Golf
Centre P
oad - S
Staner
Hill\ g —
Ul
Lord of the
Manor
Foads Hill Roundabout
o~ = st @
, —. ; 30 A299  |es Cantormry 803 .
b |, TR 28 it . : ! 78 Lord of the 4 295
20" [Way Farm ... | \ Jz#-Chapel House (]  Hengist 4 I
80fand remaies of 1 Clive Road
P 5 JCaravan SRS Shapel 17 - Way . H H
ey i 3 Application
Cinsei ' | sevenscore |. & . — Site
Pond Coteage Wl | Roundabout ! . P s
ER CP o Earlsmead Arunnelf ;\;’,...
(Y9 CY
“ Crescent
y A256 ,
/ <4
be (3 / Richborough Way Cliffsend
‘il K0
Capper Hill 2\#‘ St Augustine’s
st TN ‘ Cross
/Ebbsilect
Marshes Traditional sitg of the a
Landings of the Saxons (449) 8
iy i and of St Adgustine (597)3 g
N /‘-—\,-/‘ / Qg
N / 8
/ﬁ({ Area covered by 6
A ¢ %‘r designated sites for

\% nature conservation

o3
3%
~a

Page 64 Appendix D1




1000-V-¥a-XX-00-aWW-6ztzor | Py s
ais v0d 3ud |oszh:L | o ’ ~
Roes e - tvnewn
| wosby W | peaidhy| 90 | om0 [ wapteq
T e N Y T o
30| wewso| weeta| 30| wewsa| peseeo ks , a0 s umnbay 15
& |
«.v.%% N e
2 &@ Paseo wars
veigars oo 9

uonels Aemyed jaueyy o

Appendix 1 - Item D1

3 ,
£
SNO 13S ‘uopuo] . &
\\ - 199118 YIoUNS 1esIO . - : - N >
18y yiom3apy SSNOH $8GI04 sawer - -
|Iey siomjaN ,4 S
= ©39 8NL Way s
llexnu »
abpuquap3 w2 8
weq * peoy uonels os | 8 /
IIBUNN Y8 z g
3
waro wany 8
3
awNoaovIW uBap oy 2 8 g
W -1 ¥ i ‘
= &
punatiey - il
=T o] e - 3
FTRNT) i —— 2557 : wiopeld 05z 1
30 [ 90 s Bl on & fmog Buisso1) |ana ypoN aueT 32a)ysqq3
NTw Somigry Kool o N y i

Site Plan

SYIO =

stumap sameEy

Kiepunog aig

S0quiS o} Aoy OY

DOIER SAMS0 59601 SSAURK U SUOTRIBUD Y : [
N |

Buanaip 304 10 X300 4} O PERIOGI 99 IS AU iy [ E T * | | | | |

papuRN 1 Ko ram o 990 o) U 50 SOMNEIS b . [
50 Jo 951 8 1) SISO 10 10410 Ak 03 RIS 10 51 NS BOW

SUCHEOUONS § SOUMEID 1IASHS) 1S B UOIUNKOD U PR 80 0L o 3

Z

Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet - TH/19/1696

(KCC/TH/0256/2019)

s

Appendix D1

Page 65




s et 912t sy o

QLO0-0-HO-XX-00-0WW-BL 1207

e tup
ais vod Jud 000471
oo - s e
| voonom | mndor| 5| gworws | westa
oa|  wosalown [wymipees | ol | xmsengvi|  wwm
0] nosmwa| weeta| s | owervs| eedea
UB|d 9pIM 8IS

juswaebueuy [eisusn
uojels Aemied 19UByL +Z1091

Appendix 1 - Item D1

o
TH9 8NL
uay
i ebpuquep3
weq 4 peoy uonelg
IBRNN WYE
ot
[E——
o vapacet) v 4
002 vcza s v
ety poun aramogaT
a0
— W
g WERRAE 058
et W
L ] vogdyosag | uwes | g | e
W | o mayay By o) panss yna | B shenee | Lod
| o s zood | o | wwana | o
™| o vopsmugng Supund | BV sLonLl | eod
W | Ba s g Bunuey | o3 D00 | Fod

General Arrangement Plan

e

i s lilE L —

e e T B — —- s T i I

Rpaneg vogscde Bupa { e Bl snwag

mymEtun —
Egon

-oun e ke ) ey
i P 7§ CEBYE S i e 1 DA

v et er o [[1]
seussmarpyamoamntons [
et [
s [

O

s Eupgus
Ao SR 0261

[repe—

pgie o ey

Supynd sphine ¥ - w5 13 0040 SHlEA
Sl i s

g o aurng )
fawns faun R
———
Aaning wumiga e an e pue -t
g ”
[t o -

Budéen

ssodiogun == -
B e L e o =

g sveisE

s s e gl ] s by

o

Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet - TH/19/1696

(KCC/TH/0256/2019)

Appendix D1

Page 66



Appendix 1 - Item D1

ted

access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet - TH/19/1696

(KCC/TH/0256/2019)

(Thanet Parkway) and assoc

Construction of a new rail station

Station and Car Park

g _ 404GV -2988650)

oo

saljow
05 (]2 0

€40} 133HS
JN3HOS
ONIdYOSANYT ANITLNO

onten

VY HIOMLIN

LM 3349V Sy u3n0oannowo svAnikim I

G3UINYTd 38 TIM INFWINVENI 40 W §° nkwkt
/

Q3NIV13Y 01314 ONILSIE N T

'NOLLONMLSNOD ONI¥NG GIAOWZY

NOILYLS
AYMOEYd 1INVHL

by

38 TIIM INIWYNVEWT AVM TV FHL ONOTY STTAL ONLLSII

Ve YUOMLIN HUM

FIYOV SV 1138 ITuL GILVLIOIA HVINIT
V40 SMIN NIVLIY OL INSWINVEWT AYMTIVY
31 40 1004 IHL ONOTY GILNYTd 38

TIONNOD ALNNOD N3N

TN STFUL GRFHLYIS ONY GHVANVLS MYIH

ONINNY1d 404

| o v

QDDDDDDL

0 Lo i
(om0 u51) oy Pl o g gy 1 V|
ot A RS0 13 Yoo R KL

wenstows ——]

suew Biem weyos [———]

e p ey xond oy [ m]

spepagesyd [ |

i cbeute o) e Buwers woieo [
{swsopeid pue syy ‘seseoe)s

‘e6pugioqy Bupniou) wogers pesodord
1040

hewepkoedoo pesoda [T
ateospue peyposodong [

spen sss0e wey poscdod bueg [77777]
specs pesodond /B [ ]

Buideaspue peH

Weunuequo yn sseib Aywewe pesodoy _H_
‘Buipess ssesb Ayewe pesodoxy _H_

1 o Buposs ssesd you-sa0ads pesoday D

o semapes st LS8 [77]

5 o nwoseo ougedd s Sued o ||

N:sﬂm;mé.mﬁuﬁaﬁ_.ﬁ
i bl e g Wousieque A
2230 ossccns el gucs eyl
U PAUEI PUE popOS IUBUMEQU e B

o
orde yun Wb ssodssnpeh o
919y Suer Jorcopunosf pasodo

o e snosceqssy o s pesodond
“px Sopued quos posodoy (@D |

|6 Xay "o} saveds anjeu 10 EjUewe0 pasodoy ﬂ.u
2 eansapeds aweuposodoy [ @ |

Vo ‘auos puesee o yeq sesus pesodowd [N

) X1 408 aJEQ 0 JoRcOpunIE
B0 ety ot R 27

NOLLONYLSNOD ONI¥N G310310¥d
GNY GNIVL3Y LNGWXNYEINI AYMTIVY
NONOLLY1393A GNV S3381 ONULSIX3

[~

o
\ O_N W
FIT0 LHOSNYAL HSLUINE ————————S—— >

7 WOud 30N QY AL3HYS 43 SV SENUHS \
GNY 43A09GNNOYO ONMOYOMOT \\ ¢
N\

[T ——

aged

i)
PUEIPOOWQNS pue o um« mﬁ i (aNyION3 TvainLYN)
I {0 o1
Budeospue yos. |5 INY LNNAOT3A30 0350d0¥d
“epunog uoneosddy Buwei

GNOd ONIONVIVE
WILYM WHOLS

I

1

/]

|

|
\\
|

\

NOLLONHISNOO

ONRING 0319310 ONY

GENIVAZY INFWINVENI

AVMIVY NO NOUVLIDIA
ONY 331 ONLLSDA

GANVLIY
@734 ONLSIXA

*30110d LYOJSNVRLL HSLLI¥E
WO 3IINGY A L33VS ¥3d SV SENUHS
NV ¥3A00GNNOYD ONIMOYIMOT

"ONLINYTd SNOFOVEY3H ONY SENYHS
'HLIM ONLLNYTd 3341 TVINTWYNO

JONVOING M3LVM NYIHLNOS 133N 0L
WZ NYHL ¥3HOIH ON L G3NIVINIVA 38 01 9 GH

“INFWIOTIAI] 03500 FHL 40 ¥V
“WVdIONRId KL 01 3903 GIN3 ¥ ONLLY3HO LSTIHM SHNIT
JUNLONYLSVHAN NIZHO ONY ALALLOINNOD T¥I907003
SIAOYANI LVHL LVLI8YH ISYIAIQ ¥ 30IA0¥d OL

TTYMS YILVM WHOLS FHL FAISONOTY SITL ONY ENHOS

QANVLY
Q114 ONILSIX3

Appendix D1

Page 67



Appendix 1 - Item D1

(Thanet Parkway) and associated

access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet - TH/19/1696
Station Access and Footway/Cycleway Link to Clive Road

(KCC/TH/0256/2019)

Construction of a new rail station

_ g _ D e I I—
. it

ONY GINIVL3 LNIMINYENS AVM TV
NONOLLYL393 ONY S3341 ONLSOE

€40€ 133HS

3JNIHOS
ONIdYISANYT INITLNO
NOILYLS
AVMMYYd LINVHL

-

TIONNOD ALNNOD N3N U ﬂv

ONINNY1d 404

Z ¢ e o
7 2% 3010 JHOUSHVAL HSURE ———— Nt _
- D7 MO¥4 30IAY AL34YS ¥3d SY SENUHS \ o
Z = GNY H3A0IANNOED INMOYIMOT N\ ¢
- e h% \\\\
\ o
N\ o

N A
\
(aNYI9N3 TvenLYN)

35 YONJ0 £03S GNY 5 035 ONLLHOJANS  "ONLINYTd SNO3OVBAEH ONY SSNYHS '.
'HIYON 3H1 01 LTIGYILTIHS ONUSIG  HLIM ONLINYTd FT8L TVINIWYISO

———— , NIHONIULS ONY INFWJOTINIT 03S0J0Ud
o, g NF3¥OS 01 17139 GNYI000M GIAVIIOVO¥E
oy —
DX premm—

Ao 0 ey o By o o [
wepagasyd [ | |2

44 9Beuesp o) pem Bursenns voges [T
{SUOUeR pUB SN SAEE LS
“9bpudio0) Buipnru) uess pasodoy ﬂ.&

ey ssmoce e pasodon s [
spoaspasocon Bugma [
[rrss— s
uepequn e ssef o pesoceng [T
upsss sses aue pasodoig [ | T 5

10 Bageos s g st pootong || N |

oy amp oossse oot psocis || [ | T

3 4 isses s v B sy ||
o iy s e s Ty [
:ﬂﬁ.&“ua!huh..sh,ﬂﬂﬁm %
" el 7
[rrap————r el 2|
D funer wopnat psacony [ @S|
‘g O smxeqan 0 quis pasodosg (D)
o S gros pasocoid | @D |
6 904 so0ads anpeu » s posocoid | @) |
2o son ssoads ampeuposocors [ @) |

v ares poe soan e o posocesd [
M =t E |
parr—y | n

Budesspuer yos n
“epunog uoaeodcy Buuely

angem WOy 3N

[r——— | — ]

Appendix D1

Page 68



Appendix 1 - Item D1

Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated
- TH/19/1696

access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet

(KCC/TH/0256/2019)

Platform Site Plan

Kent, TNS BEG

| Network Fail e -
James Forbes House Network Ra

Great Suffolk Street Pyl
London, SE1 ONS

| &

I'g; = Thanet Parkway Staton

5 | Platiorm Site Flan

|8

[ &

| &

I & | o | B e E i

| TSI =y ryrgy gy ey preee— ey

| g [cowe oo [aomes [umess w0
1-200 | “PRE Po4 | ST

Platform Section 01
+:100

Up Platform

Kent, TN GEG

Metwork Rail

& H
Great Suffolk Street
London, SE10NS

™ Thanet Parkway Station
Platform Sections

Platform Section 02
+:100
ol LN N FE N
i i o ) [ )
ST S o [ o
- e | _1:100| PRE P4 STD
— et — e

402172 -MMD - 00 - XX - DR-A- 0011

Page 69

Appendix D1



Appendix 1 - Item D1
Construction of a new rail station (Thanet Parkway) and associated

access, car parking and infrastructure, at Cliffsend, Thanet - TH/19/1696
(KCC/TH/0256/2019)

Visual Image from the Car Park looking South — (without landscaping)

=t S .,

Page 70 Appendix D1



Agenda Iltem E1

E1 COUNTY MATTER APPLICATIONS AND DETAILS PURSUANT
PERMITTED/APPROVED/REFUSED UNDER DELEGATED POWERS -
MEMBERS’ INFORMATION

Since the last meeting of the Committee, the following matters have been determined by me
under delegated powers:-

Background Documents - The deposited documents.

CA/96/794/R Non-material amendment of planning permission CA/96/794 for the
placement of a storage container on existing hardstanding.
Shelford Landfill Site, Shelford Farm Estate, Broad Oak Road,
Canterbury, Kent CT2 OPR
Decision: Approved

DO/19/656/R10 Details of a Scheme of Landscaping pursuant to condition 10 of
Planning permission DO/19/656.
Whitfield Pumping Station, Sandwich Road, Whitfield, Dover, Kent,
CT16 3LA
Decision: Approved

TM/19/1931/RVAR Details of wheel and chassis washing (Condition W37); Details for
recording vehicle movements, estimated excavation tonnages and
recording any incidences itemised in the Voluntary Traffic Management
Scheme (Condition W38); and Details of how the terms of the Voluntary
Traffic Management Scheme will be communicated to staff/drivers
(Condition W39) pursuant to planning permission TM/19/1931.

Aylesford Quarry, Rochester Road, Aylesford, Kent ME20 7DX
Decision: Approved

TM/19/1932/RVAR Details of wheel and chassis washing (Condition W45); Details for
recording vehicle movements, estimated excavation tonnages and
recording any incidences itemised in the Voluntary Traffic Management
Scheme (Condition W46); and Details of how the terms of the Voluntary
Traffic Management Scheme will be communicated to staff/drivers
(Condition W47) pursuant to planning permission TM/19/1932.

Aylesford Quarry, Rochester Road, Aylesford, Kent ME20 7DX
Decision: Approved

Page 71
E.1l



E2 COUNTY COUNCIL DEVELOPMENT APPLICATIONS AND DETAILS

PURSUANT PERMITTED/APPROVED UNDER DELEGATED POWERS

MEMBERS’ INFORMATION

Since the last meeting of the Committee, the following matters have been determined by me
under delegated powers:-

Background Documents — The deposited documents.

CA/19/1633/R16A

CA/19/2221/R13

DA/18/0039/R17

DO/17/1057/RVAR

DO/19/1486

GR/18/510/R3

GR/18/510/R4

Revised location of site compound for Phase 2 of the development.
Former Chaucer Technology College, Spring Lane, Canterbury, Kent
CT11ST

Decision: Approved

Details of a landscaping scheme pursuant to Condition 13 of planning
permission CA/19/2221

Water Meadows Primary School, Shaftesbury Road, Hersden,
Canterbury, Kent CT3 4HS

Decision: Approved

Details of an Operation & Maintenance Manual for the sustainable
water drainage scheme pursuant to Condition 17 of planning
permission DA/18/0039.

Wilmington Academy, Common Lane, Wilmington, Dartford, Kent,
DA2 7DR

Decision: Approved

Details of External Roof Plant & External Lighting pursuant to
conditions 13, 14 & 27 of planning permission DO/17/1057.

Land on the South East side of Archers Court Road, Whitfield, Dover,
Kent CT16 3HU

Decision: Approved

Section 73 application to change the site boundary, amendments to
previously approved plans, including amendments to fencing and
external materials.

Land on The South East Side of Archers Court Road, Whitfield, Dover,
Kent CT16 3HU

Decision: Permitted

Details of a Written Scheme of Investigation for an Archaeological
Evaluation pursuant to Condition 3 of planning permission
GR/18/0510 as amended by GR/20/285.

Mayfield Grammar School, Pelham Road, Gravesend, Kent DA11 0JE
Decision: Approved

Details of a Construction Management Plan pursuant to Condition 4 of
planning permission GR/18/510 (as amended by GR/20/285).

Mayfield Grammar School, Pelham Road, Gravesend, Kent DA11 0JE
Decision: Approved

Page 72
E.2



GR/19/1045

GR/20/200513

GR/20/553

MA/20/502338

SE/20/1472

TM/19/2964

TW/19/239/R12

TW/20/1525

Erection of a new two storey teaching block and an activity studio
extension to the existing sports block.

Northfleet School for Girls, Hall Road, Northfleet, Gravesend, Kent
DA11 8AQ

Decision: Permitted

Construction of an infill extension to the existing external garage to
create a flat roofed music room.

Cecil Road Primary School, Cecil Road, Gravesend, Kent DA11 7BT
Decision: Permitted

Proposed two storey teaching facility which would replace the
temporary 2 classroom unit, which is currently on the school site under
Permitted Development Rights. The proposed replacement would
comprise of 4 classroom Portakabin units over two storeys to
accommodate a 0.5FE pupil expansion.

St. Johns Catholic Comprehensive School, Rochester Road,
Gravesend, Kent, DA12 2JW

Decision: Permitted

School security improvements including replacement of four
polycarbonate canopies, guard rail installation on high risk roof areas,
landscaping wall heights increased, fire escape handrail alterations
and fence relocation and replacement.

Sandling Primary School, Ashburnham Road, Penenden Heath,
Maidstone, Kent ME14 2JG

Decision: Permitted

Proposed erection of two single storey temporary buildings (4
classrooms total) to serve Trinity School, required until the
construction works associated with planning permission reference
SE/18/1726 (KCC/SE/0095/2018) has been completed.

Trinity School, Seal Hollow Road, Sevenoaks, Kent TN13 3SL
Decision: Permitted

Erection of a new primary school and nursery with associated hard
and soft landscaping, Multi use games area, boundary fences and
associated works.

Land North of Platinum Way, St Mary's Platt, Sevenoaks, Kent,
TN15 8JE

Decision: Permitted

Details of an Ecological Enhancement Plan pursuant to Condition 12
of planning permission TW/19/239.

Bennett Memorial Diocesan School, Culverden Down, Tunbridge
Wells, Kent TN4 9SH

Decision: Approved

Section 73 Application for variation of planning conditions following the
grant of planning permission TW/18/7023 (that was subsequently
amended under Section 73 permission reference TW/19/3535) for the
erection of a new 2 Form Entry Primary School and associated works.
Hawkenbury Farm, Hawkenbury Road, Tunbridge Wells, Kent
TN3 9AD

Decision: Permitted

Page 73
E.3



E3 TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT
ASSESSMENT) REGULATIONS 2017 - SCREENING OPINIONS
ADOPTED UNDER DELEGATED POWERS

Background Documents —

e The deposited documents.
Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017.
e The Government’s Online Planning Practice Guidance-Environmental Impact
Assessment/Screening Schedule 2 Projects

(@) Since the last meeting of the Committee the following screening opinions have been
adopted under delegated powers that the proposed development does not constitute
EIA development and the development proposal does not need to be accompanied
by an Environmental Statement:-

KCC/FH/0131/2020 - Proposed access improvements to the front of the school site
including drop off area.

Stelling Minnis C of E Primary School, Bossingham Road, Bossingham, Canterbury,
Kent, CT4 6DU

KCC/MA/0152/2020 -Section 73 application to vary condition 1 of planning
permission MA/17/503482 to allow for a further 3 years in which to complete the
slope remediation within Phase 1.

Lenham Quarry (Shepherds Farm), Forstal Road, Lenham, Kent, ME17 2JB

(b) Since the last meeting of the Committee the following screening opinions have been
adopted under delegated powers that the proposed development does constitute EIA
development and the development proposal does need to be accompanied by an
Environmental Statement:-

None

E4 TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT
ASSESSMENT) REGULATIONS 2017 - SCOPING OPINIONS ADOPTED
UNDER DELEGATED POWERS

(b) Since the last meeting of the Committee the following scoping opinions have been
adopted under delegated powers.

Background Documents -

. The deposited documents.
o Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017.
. The Government’s Online Planning Practice Guidance-Environmental Impact

Assessment/Preparing an Environmental Statement

None

Page 74
E4



E5- COUNTY MATTER PROPOSALS AGREED PURSUANT TO THE
URGENT MATTER PROCEDURE UNDER DELEGATED POWERS -
MEMBERS’ INFORMATION

Since the last meeting of the Committee, the following matter has been determined under
the Council’s urgent matters procedure as set out in Section 10.15 (Schemes of Delegation)
of Part 2 (Functions and Decision-Making) of the Constitution.

Decisions are required to be reported to the next meeting of the Council or Committee.

Blaise Farm Quarry, Kings Hill, West Malling, Kent, ME19 4PN — Request by Gallagher
Aggregates Ltd for extended operating hours at Blaise Farm Quarry to supply an
urgent Brexit related Government contract for the Ashford Inland Port Project

The Proposal

The urgent decision related to a request by Gallagher Aggregates Ltd (GAL) as the operator
of Blaise Farm Quarry to allow HGVs to arrive, be loaded and be dispatched outside the
normal operating hours to supply an urgent Brexit related contract for the Ashford Inland Port
Project off Junction 10A of the M20 at Ashford.

GAL stated that the contact requires the delivery of 200,000 tonnes of capping and type 1
sub base for the foundation layer of the Ashford Inland Port Project. GAL envisaged the
delivery taking place between 17 August and 31 October 2020. However, whilst it was
confident that this would be during 2020, it stated that the timing could be delayed as a result
of decisions by Government / Department for Transport (DfT).

Condition 15 of the relevant mineral planning permission TM/88/1002 states:

“No operations authorised or required under the terms of this permission, other than with the
prior approval of the County Planning Authority, shall be carried out except between 0700
and 1800 hours on Mondays to Fridays and 0700 and 1300 hours on Saturdays; and no
operations shall take place on Sundays, Bank Holidays or National Holidays.

Reason: In the interests of safeguarding the local environment by ensuring minimum
disturbance and avoidance of nuisance to the locality consistent with mineral working.”

GAL proposed that the County Council (KCC) additionally allow the arrival, loading and
dispatch of HGVs between 6:00 and 07:00 hours and 18:00 and 21:00 hours Monday to
Friday and between 6:00 and 07:00 hours and 13:00 and 16:00 hours on Saturdays for the
duration of the contract. It also sought approval for HGVs to park at the quarry overnight
and for drivers to use the existing welfare facilities outside normal operating hours and to
install a second temporary weighbridge next to the existing weighbridge for the duration of
the contract. It also proposed the use of four low level lighting towers within the quarry (well
below the surrounding unexcavated land level) and the existing lighting around the
weighbridge, site office and welfare facilities as necessary during the contract period.

GAL stated that HGVs would travel to and from Ashford on the M20 and use the A228 to
access Junction 4 of the M20. In the unlikely event of the A228 being closed, HGVs would
be instructed to travel south on the A228 and A26 and use Seven Mile Lane (B2016) to
access the M20 (via the A20 and M26). GAL advised that it would issue driver rules which
would prohibit HGV drivers from driving through Offham and / or West Malling and stated
that overnight parking would take place only in appropriate locations (i.e. lorry parks). It
advised that it would make provision for secured parking at Blaise Farm Quarry and at the
delivery site in Ashford and that welfare facilities would be available at both sites. It stated

Page 75
E.5



that being neighbourly and respectful to all villages around Blaise Farm Quarry is very
important to the Company.

GAL indicated that whilst the majority of the aggregates would be loaded and delivered
during the normal working day, the use of the additional hours was essential for the contract
to be met. It stated that:

1. Itis essential that GAL be able to start loading and delivering aggregates from 06:00
hours (Monday to Saturday) in order that HGVs can complete sufficient deliveries in
the day to make the project viable (due to the additional time it allows in the context
of 2 below);

2. The 06:00 hours start time is significant in avoiding the worse effects of the morning
peak period (on the M20 and its approach roads);

3. It estimates that up to 50 HGVs could be employed as part of the project and that it
would expect up to 25 to be loaded / dispatched between 06:00 and 07:00 hours;

4. It assumes 10 minutes to load and dispatch each HGV and states that 3 loading
shovels would be employed for this;

5. Subject to traffic conditions, each HGV is likely to transport 5 or 6 loads a day to
Ashford (with a 90 minute round trip);

6. It would not be possible to undertake the project using both Blaise Farm Quarry and
Hermitage Quarry during permitted hours without GAL having to stop honouring
existing contracts at Hermitage Quarry;

7. The materials at Blaise Farm Quarry are better suited to the Ashford Inland Port
Project, with those at Hermitage Quarry more beneficially used for “higher” end uses
such as ready mix concrete, etc.;

8. Existing material stockpiles at Blaise Farm Quarry are already almost sufficient to
meet the demands of the project;

9. An additional weighbridge would be temporarily installed next to the existing one to
speed up the operation;

10. HGVs would be loaded in an area significantly below surrounding land levels (i.e. in
the quarry void) and circulate in such a way as to avoid the need for reversing in the
site (site plant is fitted with white noise reversing alarms);

11. It is happy to accept that the proposed additional hours only be used for the Ashford
Inland Port Project;

12. Some HGVs may be loaded ready for dispatch the following morning; and

13. Four low level lighting towers would be used within the quarry (well below the
surrounding land level) and existing static lighting around the weighbridge would be
used when required (noting that the entire site, including weighbridge and offices, is
well screened from surrounding land by existing woodland).

It is understood that GAL were first approached to undertake the scheme directly by Central
Government at the end of June 2020 given its successful delivery of two similar Brexit
related projects undertaken in 2019 and that the contract has only just been awarded (July
2020). For these reasons, it was unable to secure planning permission to amend the
operating hours in the usual way (i.e. via a planning application).

Member Consultation
The views of the Chairman of the Planning Applications Committee (Alan Marsh) and the

three Local Members (Sarah Hohler, Matthew Balfour and Trudy Dean) were sought in
advance of the decision being made.

Page 76
E.6



Alan Marsh (Chairman of the Planning Applications Committee): In response to the request
as initially made, Mr Marsh requested that officers explore the possibility of avoiding or
offsetting the proposed 06:00 hours start time. Following those investigations and receipt of
additional information from GAL (which is reflected in the information set out above) and
further consultation with the Chairman and KCC Local Members, Mr Marsh accepted the
strategic need for the additional hours and agreed that approval should be given.

Sarah Hohler (KCC Member for Malling North): Mrs Hohler stated:

“Offham has had a lot to put up with recently, not just from the blasting, which is a major
concern with most blasts resulting in worried residents reporting the vibrations and noise.
Quite a log has been compiled.

Now residents are going to have many extra HGVs on the roads they use but there is bound
to be noise from loading activities and from early to late, most days.

| am very concerned that the parish will only be notified after the decision has been made to
authorise all these additional HGVs and quarry activities. They, like me, will question why
this had not been planned sooner.

I note the low level lighting being proposed and the banning of the reversing of HGVs but
remain uncomfortable about the effect it will have on residents. The roads in the vicinity —
A228 and M20 — are very busy, even at 6am as we discovered during the M20 road works
overnight closures until 6am with large numbers of vehicles, HGVs included, diverting on
the A20 and other residential roads.

As | cannot see that there is an alternative to agreeing this | would urge that a condition is
added to prevent any HGVs driving through Offham for any reason as this is already a
problem with farm produce HGVs doing just that. The HGV drivers also need to be made
very aware that turning up Church Road is strictly forbidden for HGVs as there is a low
bridge, narrow lanes, a farm and school to negotiate before turning left on Teston Road in
Offham and then right for the Blaise roundabout.

Finally, if an HGV takes the West Malling road (first left) off the Blaise roundabout and then
turns left for Offham, they will shortly find a large and inviting layby on their left, opposite
some houses. For some time | have been trying to get this layby closed to HGVs as it is
surprisingly often used for HGV overnight stops and all the ‘inconvenience’ this causes, not
just to the neighbouring houses. Please do something to prevent this happening during this
period either with bollards or a chain but probably not with signs alone. HGV drivers needing
to be in the area overnight for an early start (or late finish) must not be allowed to use laybys
or park up in the village.”

Matthew Balfour (KCC Member for Malling Rural East): Mr Balfour stated:

“As the KCC member for Kings Hill, | cannot agree to this change to the working hours being
treated as an Urgent Decision without it being properly consulted on. The local roads are,
even in the current situation, busy and | do not know if there will be an increase in the noise
disturbance.

| am also unaware if GAL can fulfil this contract, with the increase in material leaving the
quarry, within their current permissions. Local people may well take the view that this is
some "backdoor" way to increase the blasts and thus the disturbance to the local
communities.

| also feel that we are being "bullied" into agreeing by HMG who should have thought about
this long ago, given that it was their incompetence in failing to follow KCC's advice that lead
to the Judicial Review that stopped the ill-fated lorry park.

Page 77

E.7



| suspect that this will come down to an executive decision but | hope my views will at least
be recorded.”

Trudy Dean (KCC Member for Malling Central): Although Mrs Dean stated that she was
sympathetic to the request, she expressed concerns about the increasing numbers of
complaints about the effects of blasting locally and requested that officers continue to
explore what more could be done to reassure the local community (particularly in terms of
blast monitoring). [Members should note that issues relating to blasting are being addressed
separately.]

Discussion

The urgency of a decision meant that there was not time for KCC to undertake the
consultations that would normally take place for a planning application submitted in the usual
way for a proposal of this type (i.e. approval pursuant to a planning condition). Responses
from those who would normally be consulted on such an application would however, in all
probability, have closely reflected those raised by the KCC Local Members (above) such that
the application would have had to be reported to KCC’s Planning Applications Committee for
determination. The next such meeting was not scheduled to be until 2 September 2020
(after the expected commencement of deliveries).

Allowing the additional out of hours for the arrival, loading and dispatch of HGVs would be
likely to reduce pressure on local roads during the peak periods (particularly in the morning).

Blaise Farm Quarry has excellent access to Junction 4 of the M20, and a suitable alternative
route can be used if it is not available for some reason. GAL agreed to instruct drivers not to
travel through local villages and to only use appropriate overnight parking facilities.

The area of the quarry which would be used for the loading and dispatch of HGVs is
relatively remote from residential properties (although some additional disturbance cannot be
ruled out, it is not likely to be significant and would be for relatively short duration). The
location of the proposed loading area within the quarry and the woodland surrounding the
entire site (including weighbridge and offices) would serve to minimise any lighting impacts.

The mineral permission includes no specific limitations (i.e. conditions) in terms of HGV
movements and output such that in theory a greater amount of material could be transported
from the site and a larger number of HGV movements could take place each day (or over a
2.5 month period) than is now proposed.

The amount of activity (including blasting) at the quarry is clearly influenced by demand for
the mineral. However, there is a finite (albeit large) quantity of mineral in the site so the
quicker it is extracted, the less time the quarry will operate overall (technically the permission
lasts until 2054).

It would have been preferable if the Government had been better prepared for Brexit such
that the need for urgent decisions of this type had been avoided. However, ensuring that
GAL is in a position to supply the necessary minerals is likely to assist in the Ashford Inland
Port Project being delivered. Failure to ensure delivery of the project could have potentially
serious implications for large parts of Kent once Brexit happens at the end of 2020.

Whilst there may be a more sustainable way of meeting the demand at Ashford (such as
importing the required minerals by rail via the Waterbrook Park rail depot), KCC was asked
to help facilitate the Government’s proposed means of meeting the required demand for
mineral now. It is difficult to comment on the likelihood of the material being imported by rail,
although there may be difficulties in arranging this as short notice and GAL would not be
able to supply the materials in this way from its quarries.

Page 78

E.8



Local concerns about blasting are noted and are being considered and addressed
separately.

In considering the request, regard was given to the following:

e Correspondence between officers of KCC Planning Applications Group and GAL;
e The National Planning Policy Framework;

e The Kent Minerals and Waste Local Plan;

e The Tonbridge and Malling Local Plan; and

e Comments received from elected KCC Members.

Decision

In accordance with the Council’s urgent matters procedure as set out in Section 10.15
(Schemes of Delegation) of Part 2 (Functions and Decision-Making) of the Constitution, the
request was approved by the Head of Planning Applications subject to the following
conditions:

1. The additional hours (i.e. between 6:00 and 07:00 hours and 18:00 and 21:00 hours
Monday to Friday and between 6:00 and 07:00 hours and 13:00 and 16:00 hours on
Saturdays) shall only be used for the arrival, loading and dispatch of HGVs associated
with the contract for the delivery of minerals for the foundation layer of the Ashford
Inland Port Project.

2. The additional hours shall only be used for the duration of the contract and all
operations during the additional hours shall cease no later than 31 December 2020.

3. Gallagher Aggregates Ltd shall notify KCC Planning Applications Group in advance of
the actual dates for the commencement of the out of hours operations and of the actual
cessation (when known).

4. HGVs shall use the A228 (north of the quarry) to access Junction 4 of the M20
whenever this is possible. If it is not possible (e.g. it is closed), HGVs shall use the
A228 (south of the quarry), A26, B2016 (Seven Mile Lane), A20 and M26 to access the
M20.

5. Gallagher Aggregates Ltd shall instruct HGV drivers not to travel through local villages
(e.g. Offham, West Malling and Mereworth) and to use designated lorry parks or
secured facilities at Blaise Farm Quarry and the delivery site at Ashford for overnight
parking and take measures as necessary to secure compliance.

In agreeing to the request, considerable weight was given to the exceptional circumstances
in this case, the urgent need to make appropriate arrangements for a potential hard Brexit
and the fact that it was not possible to secure any formal planning permission in time to
facilitate the proposed operations.

It was also considered that whilst the request may give rise to some additional adverse
impacts to local amenity and the environment, these would not be significant.

It should also be noted that local concerns about blasting referred to above are being
considered and addressed separately and that the Director for Highways, Transportation and
Waste is considering how best to prevent potential HGV parking in the layby referred to by
the local Member above.

Page 79
E.9



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item F1

SECTION F_KCC RESPONSE TO CONSULTATION

Background Documents - the deposited documents; views and representations received
as referred to in the reports and included in the development proposals dossier for each
case; and other documents as might be additionally indicated.

KCC Response to Consultations

Reports to Planning Applications Committee on 2 September 2020.
These reports set out KCC’s responses to consultations.

Recommendation: To note the reports

| Unrestricted

1. Introduction and Supporting Documents.

The County Council has commented on the following planning matters. A copy of the
response is set out in the papers. These planning matters are for the relevant
District/Borough or City Council to determine.

F1 Written Statement to the Examination of the Folkestone and Hythe District
Council Core Strategy Review
County Council’s response to Folkestone and Hythe District Council on the above

F2 SW/18/502190/EIHYB - Land North Quinton Road, Sittingbourne, Kent ME10
2SX

Proposal - Full Planning Application - Phase 1 North - Erection of 91 dwellings
Full Planning Application - Phase 1 North - Erection of 91 dwellings accessed
from Grovehurst Road, public open and amenity space (including an equipped
children's play area) together with associated landscaping and ecological
enhancement works, acoustic barrier to the A249, internal access roads,
footpaths, cycleways and parking, drainage (including infiltration basins and
tanked permeable paving), utilities and service infrastructure works. Full
Planning Application - Phase 1 South - Erection of 252 dwellings (including 34
affordable dwellings) accessed from Quinton Road, public open and amenity
space, together with associated landscaping and ecological enhancement
works, internal access roads, footpaths, cycleways and parking, drainage
(including infiltration swales, ring soakaways, and permeable paving), utilities
and service infrastructure works. Outline Planning Application - for up to 857
new dwellings (including 10% affordable housing, subject to viability), a site of
approximately 10 ha for a secondary and primary school, a mixed use local
centre, including land for provision of a convenience store, public open and
amenity space (including equipped children's play areas), together with
associated landscaping and ecological enhancement works, acoustic barrier

Page 81



to the A249, internal access roads, footpaths, cycleways and parking, drainage
(including a foul water pumping station and sustainable drainage systems),
utilities and service infrastructure. All matters reserved, except for access for
the schools site from Grovehurst Road.

County Council’s response to Swale Borough Council on the above

Background documents; As set out in the reports.

Page 82



Kent

County
Council

kent.gov.uk

Growth, Environment & Transport
Ms Caroline Williams

Programme Officer (Core Strategy Review) Room 1.62
Civic Centre Sessions House
Castle Hill Avenue County Hall
Folkestone MAIDSTONE

Kent CT20 2QY Kent ME14 1XQ

Phone: 03000 415981

BY EMAIL ONLY Ask for: Barbara Cooper
Email: Barbara.Cooper@kent.gov.uk

3 July 2020

Dear Caroline

Re: Written Statement to the Examination of the Folkestone and Hythe District Council
Core Strategy Review

Thank you for inviting Kent County Council (KCC) to submit a Written Statement to the
Examination of the Folkestone and Hythe District Council (FHDC) Core Strategy Review.
The County Council provides the following response in respect of the Matters Issues and
Questions (MIQ), alongside relevant updates to its Core Strategy Review Pre-Submission
Regulation 19 Consultation, submitted 11 March 2019.

Education
(Policy SS9, MIQs 21, 22 and 24)

The County Council remains mindful of changing demands on the level of primary school
spaces required in the district and, with FHDC, will manage required increases in school
places through new schools and expansions as appropriate. Where new primary school sites
are required, the developer will be responsible for delivery of suitable land. Where the need
for new schools are identified against a site, other sites that benefit from those new school
places may be required to contribute towards both land and build costs.

KCC will continue to work with FHDC to plan for provision of secondary school places and to
ensure additional land is safeguarded. As raised in KCC’s previous consultation responses,
additional housing identified will increase the pressure for secondary school places which
will need to be mitigated. The County Council is not aware of any other opportunities outside
the Otterpool Park development to secure land locally for the purposes of a secondary
school and the County Council is unable to identify additional land outside of that site that
could be secured, at this stage, for education purposes or through future planning

Page 83



applications. The proposed development at Otterpool Park presents the most appropriate
opportunity to secure the required land take to deliver the secondary school places required
to mitigate the impact of this development, the wider masterplan framework and potentially
additional secondary school places. Therefore, to manage this pressure, there is the need to
safeguard two appropriately sized secondary school sites within the proposed Otterpool Park
development. Selective provision would also need to be increased proportionately.

This process will be kept under review with FHDC and may be subject to change as the
Local Education Authority will need to ensure provision of the additional pupil spaces within
the appropriate time and at an appropriate location. This is particularly relevant where
developments do not come forward in the first ten years of the plan period and for major
strategic sites within the District.

Minerals and Waste

(Policy SS8, MIQ 19)

Within KCC’s Regulation 19 consultation response, the County Council drew attention to the
existence of a materials recycling facility and anaerobic digestion plant at Otterpool Quarry
(which was granted planning permission by KCC under reference SH/08/124) that lies within
the site of the proposed development. Whilst the facility is not yet active, the planning
permission has been implemented and is therefore extant. The County Council previously
recommended that Policy SS8 of the Core Strategy Review should make specific reference
to the need for a planning application to be submitted with an Infrastructure Assessment (1A).
This advice was given to ensure the retention of the safeguarded facility, to assess the
acceptability of the proposed development in this part of the strategic allocation, and to
provide an assessment against the exemptions to the presumption to safeguard the facility
(as set out in adopted Policy DM 8: Safeguarding Minerals Management of the Kent
Minerals and Waste Local Plan 2013-30). To the County Council’'s knowledge this has not
been submitted.

The County Council also noted within its response that the Core Strategy Review was silent
on minerals and waste safeguarding consideration for all proposed sites. KCC remains of

the view that the Core Strategy Review should reference this, where applicable.

The County Council would be happy to help on any of these mineral and waste safeguarding
matters, as may be required.

Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems

(Habitats Regulations Assessment, MIQs 8 and 11; Other matters MIQs 12 and Policy
CSD5, MIQ 1)

KCC welcomes the provision of Policy CSD5 and the commitment made for sustainable
water resource management and supports the targets for water usage and sustainable
drainage and the ambition for integrated water management. The County Council is
concerned that the evidence base for impacts on the water environment may have changed
since the assessments for the Local Plan were completed. In particular, the water quality

Page 84 2



issues on the River Stour, which parts of the district naturally discharge into, and the
consequent impacts on the European designated site of Stodmarsh Natural Nature Reserve,
have only recently come to light. These present a significant challenge to developments in
the Stour catchment, notably Otterpool Garden Town. Achieving the requirements set out in
policy CSD5 in this area will be challenging, but will be increasingly necessary. KCC expects
that any measures employed to mitigate water quality impacts from new development on the
River Stour will not have a detrimental effects on water resources in the catchment or on
water quality in coastal waters, nor affect the sustainability of the catchment as a whole.

Climate change presents significant challenges for Kent and the water environment in
particular, and this policy helps to mitigate these impacts from new development. KCC notes
the challenges that may arise in delivering this policy for the developments in the catchment
of the River Stour, where the effects on the water environment from cumulative impacts are
particularly acute.

In respect of the detailed wording of Policy CSD5, the inclusion of ‘wastewater capacity’ is
restrictive, as it does not recognise other discharge situations. KCC would recommend the
following new wording:

Policy CSD5: New buildings and dwellings must be delivered in line with wastewater sewer
capacity and receiving watercourses. Surface water drainage systems must be designed
so as to match greenfield discharge rates and volumes and for development on
previously developed land to reduce discharge rates and volumes where feasible,
incorporating sustainable drainage systems with full consideration given to integration of
water management. The quality of water passed on to watercourses and the sea must be
maintained or improved, and flood risk must not be increased by developments within the
district.

Finally, it is also noted that the Habitat Regulation Assessment (HRA) does not include an
assessment of the impacts on the Stodmarsh National Nature Reserve, which takes water
from the River Stour and is affected by its water quality, which is in turn affected by
developments in the district. KCC appreciates that the evidence base may have changed
since the Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA) was prepared and would welcome
Natural England’s views on whether the HRA is appropriate.

If you require any further information or clarification on any matter raised in this letter, please
do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely

Barbara Cooper
Corporate Director of Growth, Environment and Transport

Page 85 3



This page is intentionally left blank



County
Councll

kent.gov.uk

Highways and Transportation

Swale Borough Council Ashford Highway Depot

4 Javelin Way
Ashford
TN24 8AD
Tel: 03000 418181
Date: 24" July 2020

Application - |SW/18/502190/EIHYB
Location - Land North Quinton Road, Sittingbourne, Kent ME10 2SX
Proposal - Full Planning Application - Phase 1 North - Erection of 91 dwellings

accessed from Grovehurst Road, public open and amenity space (including
an equipped children's play area) together with associated landscaping and
ecological enhancement works, acoustic barrier to the A249, internal access
roads, footpaths, cycleways and parking, drainage (including infiltration
basins and tanked permeable paving), utilities and service infrastructure
works. Full Planning Application - Phase 1 South - Erection of 252 dwellings
(including 34 affordable dwellings) accessed from Quinton Road, public
open and amenity space, together with associated landscaping and
ecological enhancement works, internal access roads, footpaths, cycleways
and parking, drainage (including infiltration swales, ring soakaways, and
permeable paving), utilities and service infrastructure works. Outline
Planning Application - for up to 857 new dwellings (including 10% affordable
housing, subject to viability), a site of approximately 10 ha for a secondary
and primary school, a mixed use local centre, including land for provision of
a convenience store, public open and amenity space (including equipped
children's play areas), together with associated landscaping and ecological
enhancement works, acoustic barrier to the A249, internal access roads,
footpaths, cycleways and parking, drainage (including a foul water pumping
station and sustainable drainage systems), utilities and service
infrastructure. All matters reserved, except for access for the schools site
from Grovehurst Road.

Thank you for consulting the Highway Authority on the above application for which we have the
following observations and comments on the updated drawings and information provided in
June of this year.

Development proposals

Parking

Cycle parking shed designs have been reviewed and are agreed to be of sufficient length and
width to meet with standards.

Properties 149,218 and 133, 317 and 346 appear to have no cycle parking provision and this
should be reviewed.

Page 87




Single, twin and triple car port plans and elevations are agreed as suitable. These all include
2.9m entry width and sufficient length. A condition will be required to ensure that car ports
cannot be adapted and retained for vehicle parking only.

The resubmitted RSA drawings demonstrate a slight increase of vehicular parking bays and all
visitor bays have now been marked. Both the Northern and Southern parcels include a number
of properties with tandem parking bays located along the spine road. The recommendation
previously made, that the spurs currently demonstrated on the spine road driveways are
extended to be sufficient to accommodate 1 vehicle has not been addressed. Whilst it is noted
that the car ports have been moved forward the areas of tandem parking on the spine road
remain likely to cause concerns of highway safety. It is recommended that some inset visitor
bays are added to the side roads and spine road to further avoid the likelihood of on street
parking. Ongoing discussions are being completed with Swale Borough Council in respect of
their suggestions for addressing the turning head provisions. So long as a turning head of
suitable length and width is available to each pair of dwellings accessing from the same drive
then the Highway Authority would have no objection. We will continue to work with the Borough
and applicant to find an agreeable solution.

All on-street parking bays now include tapered entry and exits to ensure accessibility.

Refuse tracking

Tracking has been further reviewed and we would wish for a further demonstration that the
movement can be accommodated within the turning head adjacent to property 159. The tracking
drawing 10298/1951 Rev P5 would appear to demonstrate an overrun beyond the extent of the
highway.

Access to Medical Centre

It has been confirmed that this access will no longer form part of the application. As
requested, the applicant has reassessed the Northern access junction to demonstrate
that it is able to accommodate all development traffic previously proposed to use the
medical access.

Grovehurst Road Site Access

The access drawing D118/12 Rev C is largely agreed. A Stage 1 Road Safety Audit has been
completed with no issues identified that could not be resolved at the detailed design stage.
These relate to the extent of high friction surfacing, road markings and the width of the southern
footway on the access to the development. The access and toucan crossing will be required
prior to any occupation of the Northern parcel with an accompanying Section 278 agreement.

No further details on the expected turning movements and capacity have been submitted at this
stage and we will need to review these prior to our full agreement.

Quinton Road Site Access

The continuity of the 3m shared facility is now included in the hard landscaping plans and layout
plans. The latest drawing for this junction arrangement is demonstrated on drawing
27239 5504 021 REV F and a Stage 1 Road Safety Audit has now been completed and been
reviewed. The drawing does not include the continuous 3m shared footway heading West from
the access as demonstrated on the latest Reserved Matters Layout drawing P1076_10 Rev Z
and as such it is advised that a revision to the access drawing is completed that addresses the

Page 88



issues 2.1 to 2.5 raised in the safety audit. Additional tracking drawings will also be required to
ensure that movements can be accommodated in the revised layout. The access and crossing
will be required prior to any occupation with an accompanying Section 278 agreement.

Bramblefield Lane Crossing

The Northern Access RSA drawing now clearly shows that the 3m shared cycling facility
connects Bramblefield Lane and on to the proposed school on the Eastern side of the spine
road. This is welcomed and agreed.

Lighting

The adoptable areas of the development have been extended to include a number of the main
side streets. It is also noted that street lighting has now also been included along the majority of
side roads and both the extension to the adoptable highway and street lighting are welcomed.

Our lighting engineer is in direct contact with the applicant with a view to resolve concerns.
Following the conclusion of those conversations a further drawing submission will be expected
for final comments.

Section 38 adoptions plans

Drawing 10298/1131 Rev P4 — NW Sittingbourne Phase 1 (South)
e The proposed table indicated on Spine Road between plots 178 and 200 should be
extended to ramp position as per the previous table.
e Visibility splays assumptions for a 30MPH max speed are agreed.
e The proposed drainage carrier lines should be a minimum diameter of 225m

Drawing 10298/1132 Rev P4 — NW Sittingbourne Phase 1 (North)

e Speed reducing features have been added for the straight sections of the road.

o Clarification needed on proposed ownership/maintenance of swale areas/connection
leads.

¢ Visibility splays on the junctions to the spine roads with assumptions for a 30MPH max
speed are shown and agreed.

¢ The footway along Street 1 appears to measure at barely 1.2m and it is recommended
that this be increased into the carriageway to provide a minimum of 1.5m

e The proposed drainage carrier lines should be a minimum diameter of 225m

e Street 1 and 2 have not indicated the highway drainage

Further plans will be required that address the above points.
Drainage

1. Details will be required for how the properties will be served as we will not adopt the
main system if this is serving private connections.

2. We will need to see the micro drainage reports to confirm if hydro brakes are required
and would need the full drainage strategy for the site.

3. Confirmation of whether the proposed paving is permeable or not will be required.

Page 89



4. There is a drainage easement along the private road (1) and emergency link and we will
need it indicating who would be responsible for this. We will need to see the full drainage
strategy and proposed private drainage systems including any adoption by a Statutory
Undertaker before confirming if we would require this easement.

5. We request that the applicant provides infiltration test results to confirm locations of
soakaways. These should be located a minimum of 3.66m from the edge of carriageway
and ideally all soakaways should be located 10m from the property. This is because
building regs require them to be located 10m away from properties if they a deep bored.

6. For the soakaways we will need vehicular access, and some appear to have street
lighting columns located on the edge of the soakaway locations which will be difficult to
construct and may create issues when carrying out cleansing works with using the
boom. Risk of the Street Lighting columns being struck.

7. We have concerns about the soakaways as at the end of their life and when they require
replacement, there are no alternative locations other than the highway to locate them,
which is not viable.

Walking and Cycling

Detailed drawings remain outstanding. That the section from Bramblefield Lane to Quinton
Road should be open and available from the opening of the Secondary School or occupation of
the 250™ dwelling, whichever is the sooner.

Spine Road, Bus and Rail

It has been confirmed that the site will be served by a regular 334 service and the site will need
to include two pairs of stops along the internal spine road. A contribution is also being made to
provide vouchers to homeowners to the amount of £350 to be used for either rail or bus travel.

The Spine Road should be made open and available for public use to a standard agreeable to
the Highway Authority between the Grovehurst Road entrance to the proposed school entrance
prior to either school opening or the 100" occupation. Construction access for the school land
should be made available in accordance with requirements from KCC education colleagues.

Details of the Spine Road between the Phase 1 North and Phase 1 South should be submitted
to the Highway Authority for approval by way of a Reserved Matters application, prior to the
occupation of the 345" dwelling. The Spine Road shall be open and available for public use and
to a standard as agreed by the Highway Authority by occupation of the 780" dwelling.

A temporary pedestrian/cycle link between the Phase 1 South site and the school site entrance
will need to be made available prior to the opening of either school.

The Kemsley Halt pedestrian cycle link as demonstrated in drawing 2535-SK-15 Rev P2,
(subject to clarification), is largely agreed although it is considered that further overlooking
should be provided by way of relocating/redesigning of the attenuation pond to the South of the
school land. The link will need to be implemented prior to the opening of the school or 200®
occupation, whichever is the sooner. A contribution of £13,147 is requested on the basis of
costs received from the rail operators to improve the facilities at the station as required by
policy. It is recommended that payment is made on full occupation of the 100" dwelling.

Page 90



Grovehurst/A249 junction

In order to avoid objection from the Highway Authority a Section 106 contribution towards the
preferred HIF scheme is required for an amount of £3,598,503 and will be required to be made
through a separate Unilateral Undertaking with the Highway Authority. This should be payable
as follows;

25% at 250 occupations, 50% at 450 occupations, 75% at 650 occupations and 100% at 900
occupations.

A Grampian restriction will be required to prevent any occupations beyond 41 dwellings of the
phase 1 North element, up to the end of 2022 unless the Highway Authority have awarded a
contract for works to deliver the HIF improvement scheme and/or it can be demonstrated with
the agreement of the Highway Authority that there is sufficient capacity on the highway to avoid
any severe impacts on highway safety or capacity. No further occupations to be permitted
beyond the 91 phase 1 North element until such a time as the Highway Authority have awarded
a contract for works to deliver the HIF improvement scheme and/or it can be demonstrated with
the agreement of the Highway Authority that there is sufficient capacity on the highway to avoid
any severe impacts on highway safety or capacity.

Bobbing/A249 junction

An interim capacity assessment has yet to be provided to assess the proposed impact following
the suggested restriction up to a point of 450 dwelling occupations. As mentioned above there
will however be required a Grampian condition restricting all development beyond the 91 phase
1 North dwellings until the Grovehurst/A249 junction is improved. The Grampian restriction
includes the proposed phase 1 South development of 257 dwellings and will be required until
such a time as it can be demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Highway Authority that the 257
phase 1 South occupations can be accommodated without unacceptable safety or congestion
concern for both the A249/Grovehurst and A249/Bobbing junctions.

The proposed mitigation for the Bobbing/A249 junction as demonstrated on submitted drawing
27239 5504 029 should be implemented prior to occupation of the 450" dwelling. All
development beyond that of any of the 257 dwellings within the Phase 1 South element will be
required to have vehicular access to the site via the Northern access point onto Grovehurst
Road, not Quinton Road. This restriction should be in place until such a time as the
Bobbing/A249 junction improvements are completed and open to the public and occupation of
the 780™ occupation.

Concluding summary

There remain many outstanding elements to be submitted before our final analysis can be
made. On submission of the details the Highway Authority will be in a position to submit its final
response detailing the conditions and 106 contributions required.

INFORMATIVE: It is the responsibility of the applicant to ensure, before the development
hereby approved is commenced, that all necessary highway approvals and consents where
required are obtained and that the limits of highway boundary are clearly established in order to
avoid any enforcement action being taken by the Highway Authority.

Across the county there are pieces of land next to private homes and gardens that do not look
like roads or pavements but are actually part of the road. This is called ‘highway land’. Some of
this land is owned by The Kent County Council (KCC) whilst some are owned by third party
owners. Irrespective of the ownership, this land may have ‘highway rights’ over the

topsoil. Information about how to clarify the highway boundary can be found at

Page 91



https://www.kent.gov.uk/roads-and-travel/what-we-look-after/highway-land/highway-boundary-
enquiries

The applicant must also ensure that the details shown on the approved plans agree in

every aspect with those approved under such legislation and common law. It is therefore
important for the applicant to contact KCC Highways and Transportation to progress this aspect
of the works prior to commencement on site.

Yours faithfully

Colin Finch
Principal Transport & Development Planner

Page 92


http://www.kent.gov.uk/roads-and-travel/what-we-look-after/highway-land
http://www.kent.gov.uk/roads-and-travel/what-we-look-after/highway-land

	Agenda
	A3 Minutes - 15 July
	D1 Proposal TH/19/1696 (KCC/TH/0256/2019) -Construction of a new railway station consisting of two platforms connected via an existing underpass (to be refurbished) with stair and lift access and associated infrastructure including vehicle and cycle parking, public announcement system, drainage, security and lighting, landscaping, level crossing upgrade works, and vehicle, pedestrian  and cycle access including the creation of a vehicle access onto the A299 Hengist Way with associated highway works and a footway/cycle link to Clive Road  at Land to the north and south of the A299 (Hengist Way) and to the east of the A256 (Richborough Way) including an existing railway line and part of the A299, Cliffsend (Thanet Parkway Station);  KCC  Growth, Environment and Transport
	Item D1 Appendix - Thanet Parkway Plans

	E1 County matter applications
	F1 Written Statement to the Examination of the Folkestone and Hythe District Council Core Strategy Review
	F1 Folkestone & Hytrhe Core Strategy Review

	F2 Application SW/18/502/EIHYB - Housing Proposal at Land North Quinton Road, Sittingbourne

